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SECTION 1

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Io
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited

51, Central Road, Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1205
Telephone: 56610056-59, 9677781, Fax: +EE-02-58613965

E-mail: spshare@younuigroup.com; Website: www.spbmlbd.com

RIGHTS ISSUE OT SHARES

Date: 23 April 2022

Dear Shareholder(s)

We are pleased to inform you that, the honorable shareholders of the Company in the 2"d Extra-
Ordir,"ry General Meeting held on November 71, 2O27, approved righB issuance ol 70,987,729

Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10.00 each at par totalint Tk . 109,817,290.N at f (One) [R]: 2 Cfwo) ratio i.e. 1

(One) Rights share for 2 (Two) existing share held on the record date for entitlemmt.

The demand for products Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited is increasing day by day and it needs to

further strengthen the operation through capital machinery import. The proceeds received from Rights

Issue of Sonali Paper & Board Mills Lirnited will be invested to procure a portion of capital machinery
of the Company (or growth of overall business olxration.

Having satisfactory operatiorg total comprehensive income of the Company is Tk. 89,465,514'00 for the

period ended on June 30, 2021. The success couldn't have been possible with the suPPort of our

customers and efficient dirrtion of the Board of Directors as well as patronization and active

participation of our valued shareholders.

To maintain the growth and to inoease the capital base of your Company, we hope you would come

Iorward with full support and assistance to make the ofler a sucress.

A ser-explanatory Rithts Share Offer Document prepared in the light of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (Rights Issue) Rules, 2005 of the Securities and Exchange Commission is enclosed for your
kind information and evaluation.

On behall of the Board of Directors,

sd/ -
Mahfuza Younue
Managing Director & CEO

Md. Ras dul Hossain
,r\rs
. MANAGING DIRECTOR

^ SottlttplpeR a golRD iYrLLs tID
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Managing Director & CEO
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SECTION 2

CORPORATE DIRECTORY OF THE ISSUER

Registered Name Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
Nature of Business Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited (SPBML) started its

business for the manufacturing and marketing of Media,
Linel Simplex, Duplex paper board, and quality writing
Papers.

Date of Incorporation September 5, 197
Legal Status Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited was incorporated vide

registration no C-5576/734 in Bangladesh in the year 1978

under Companies Act, 1913 & 194 as a Public Limited
Company.

Date of Listing The company got listed with Dhaka Stock Exchante Umited
(DSE) in the year 1985 & Re-listed on 15 lune 2020 and listed
with Chittagong Stock Exchange Lirnited (CSE) on 21

December 1995 & Re-Iisted on 15 June 2020.

Authorized Capital Tk. 500,000,000/-
Paid up Capital Tk. n9,634,590/ -
Net Asset Value per Share Tk.23s.27 / -
Eaminge per Share T'k. 4.07 / -
Number of Directors in the Board 05 Directors including 02 Independent Directors
Office Address 51, Central Road, Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1205

Factory Address Jatramura Tarabo, Rupgoni, Narayangoni
Statutory Auditor MABS & | Parbrers

Chartered Accountants
SMC Tower (7th Floor), 33 Banani C/A, Road #17,

Dhaka 1213, Baneladesh
Rating Agenry Credit Rating Atency of Bangladesh Ltd. (CRAB)

D H Tower, Level-15,
6 Panthapath, Dhaka 1215

Corporate Governance Auditors Rahman Zasim & Co. Cost & Management Accountants
House # 9, Road # 2, Sector # 7, Uttara, Dhaka-1230

Manager to the Rights Iesue UCB Investment Lirnited
Bulu's Centre, (17th Floor) Plot-CW$(A)-1,
Road No-34, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-1212

Banker to the Propoaed Righte
Iseue

United Commercial Bank Limited
Bulu's Centre, Plot-CWS(A)-1,
Road No-34, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-1212

Md. R ul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chlof Fintndal Of,icar

Soodl Pr!.t I Eoard MiIt Ltd.
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SECTION 3

DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

The Company
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited (SPBML) is a one of the maior concelns of Younus Group of
lndustries. The Company was incorporated in Bangladesh in 197 under companies Act, 1913 & 1994

as a public limited company. The present owner took over all the shares of the company in 2006. Before

that the company was out of operation for a long time. After taking over the charge the management

brought the company into operation on March 11, 2mZ by injecting new fund and efforts. Its principal

activities are manufacturing of Media, Liner, Simplex, Duplex paper Board and Quality (newsprint &
white news) Papers.

The industrial units are situated at Jatramura, Tarabo, Rupgonl, Narayanganj

Hietory of Non-Operation:
Due to continuous loss the previous manatement was failed to provide financial statements and to

hold AGM (Annual General Meeting) for the consecutive years from 1998 to 2006. Subsequently, the

management of the Company was bound to close its production. They could not run the Company well

due to insufficient business policy. Besides they did not comply with the provisions of the Bangladesh

Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEQ, Usting Regulations of the Dhaka & Chittagong Stock

Exchanges, and other necessary obligations of various regulatory authorities. On those periods the

Company did not hold AGMs, dedare dividend, make proper books of accounts and so on. Under these

circumstances, they intended to sell the entire share of the Company to Mr. Moharmed Younus and

his family. Mr. Younus finally took over the Company through buying the entire shareholding in the

year 2005 and successfully started commercial operation in the year 2007 with necessary renovation.

Nature of Bueiness
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited (SPBML) was established as a Private limited company in
September 1977 under the Company Act 1913. It was then converted to a public linrited company in

1985. The company started its business for manulacturint of papel board, box board, duplex board,

triplex board, cardboard, coated board, packing board, file board, comrgated board etc.

Mieaion
To strive continuously for excellence and sustain our poeition as a preferred supplier oI quality paper,

board, and packaging material within a team errvironment and with a customer focused strategy.

Vieion
To be the market leader and an enduring force in the paper, board and packaging industry, positively

influencing & providing value to stakeholders, society and our nation.

Md. Ra dul Hossaln 't\rc'
,"**d,ff,

Managing Director & CEO
UCB lnvestment Limited
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Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chis, Ftn.ndrl Ofiicsr

Sqtd P!p.r e Bo6d ltiur tld.
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Company Secretary
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MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Type of Service
Manufacturing various grade of paper & marketing them to the local buyers.
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Ethical Code of Conduct
Performance with integrity i6 cmEal to operating at SPBML The Company is committed to protecting
the environnrmtal issues.

IndustrSr outlook and poesible future development
The outbreak of the Covid-l9 pandemic created highly uncertain circumstances for paper making

business in Bangladesh. The people in Bangladesh, like elsewhere are in an unprecedented situation
where the economy is struggling to recover from the elfect of the Covid-l9. From producers to
inporters, wholesalers to retailers, everyone in the paper industry takes a hit as schools and offices

remain closed or have gone virtually to cope with the pandemic. We, the SPBMI- have always tried to

maintain the best quality in our manufacturing activities over the last few years. We are committed to
providing the best possible product at the most reasonable price available in the market. We hope that
in the coming years our sustainable growth will be improved.

Quality Policy
We, at SPBML, have always tried to maintain the best quality in our manufacturing activities over the

la6t few years. We are committed to providing the best possible product at the most reasonable price

available in the market.

Human Resources
The total skength of SPBML employees stood rl40 at the end of the year. SPBML believes that a strong
skille{ and dedicated workforce is the key ingredient to Euccess. SPBML has also ir:rplemented the

Workers' Profit Participation Fund for its employees. The company provides 5% of profit before

charging such expense to employees as Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) in accordance with
the Bangladesh t abour Act 2006 (amended in 2013).

Health and Safety
SPBML is committed to providing a healthy and risk-free €nvironm€nt for its employees. We have

made it compulsory that various tools like a Iire extinguisher, orygen cylinder, mask first-aid box, etc.

should be available for the topmost security of its employees and workers.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Company was not involved in any activities conravening the laws and regulations of the Country
The Company ensures compliance with the provisions of all concemed regulatory authorities.

Corporate Social Reaponsibility
The Company continues to contribute to the welfare of the local comrnunities tfuough its CSR projects.

Subsidiaries of Sonali Paper and Board Mills Limited.
SPBML doesn't have any subsidiaries.

+5s.H
e soltnitp,lpea a aortRo MItts iID
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Managing Director & CEO
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SECTION4
Rules(a)&(b)

PARTICULARS OF THE RIG}ITS OFFER

(a) Date of the rights share offer document

The Rights Offer of Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited amounting Tk.7@,877,290/- was

approved by the Bangladesh Secr:rities & Exchange Commission on 20 APRIL 2022. The date

of this rights share offer document is 20 APRIL I22,

(a) Date of the rights share offer document

o) Amount of rights shares, divided into number of shares, 1mr value and issue price of each

share, and number of right share offered for each existing share

sl L'l l( )\l ( t)N I I ri I s

Amount of rights shares Tk.109,817,290/-

70,987,729 nos

Par value rk. 10/-
Issue price of each share rk.1.0/-
Number of right share offered for each existing share 1 (One) Rights Share for 2

(Two) existing Shares

Md. Ra Hossain
Company Secretary
S.nali P8p6r & Board t4ilh Ltd.

2TAPRMz

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chirf Finendd Omcer

&oafr Pape.l hd tti,l8 Ltd.

2 t APR2022
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,"n],-l,fi,
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limlted
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I.

(b) Amount of ri6hts shares, divided into number of shares, par value and issue price

of each share, and nunber of right ehare offered for each existing share

Number of shares
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SECTION5
Rule 8 (c)

HIGHLIGHT OF THE RIGHTS OFIIE& RISK FACTORS, AND MANAGEMENT PLANS
FOR REDUCTION OF SUCH RISKS

(") Highlight of the rights offer

(b) Risk factors, and management plans for reduction of such risks

ST C'I I0\ C()\ I I \ I S

Md. Ra edul Hossain
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Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chief Financial Of{icor
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(a) Highlight of the rights offer

The Rights lesue
The Board of Directors of Sonali Paper and Board Mills Limited in its 59s meeting held on 15 September
2021, recommended Rights Ofler ot 70,987,729 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10.00 each at an issue price of
Tk.10.00, totaling Tk.709,817,290/ - offered on the basis of 01 (One) [R]: 02 (Iwo) i.e.,01 (One) Rights
Share against 02 flwo) existing shares held on the record date. The recommendation of the Board was
approved in the 2"d Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 11 November 2021. The purpose
of issuance of Rights Shares is to procure a portion of capital machinery of the Company for growth of
overall business operation. It is hereby stated that after the completion of the rights issue (post-dividend

June 2021 paid-up capital), the paid-up capital of the company will stand at Tk. 329,451,880.

Isaue Price
The Issue Price per share has been fixed in the 2 Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company

held on 11 November 2021 at Tk.10.0O totalingTk.L@,817,290/- offered on the basis of 01 (One) [R]:
02 (Iwo) i.e., 01 (One) Rights Share apinst 02 (Iwo) existing shares held on the record date subject to

approval of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

(b) Risk factors, and management plans for reduction of such risks

Any business will have to incorporate the intetral componmt of risk and concerns associated with it.
Risk management is the prioritized process of analyzing exposure to risk and Fobability of risks

occurring as well as determining how best to handle such exposures. This involves identifying and

charaaerizing the risks involved, assessing the threat from each, assessing migratory p,recautions and

ways for coot-e#ectiveness, and devising a comprehensive risk managemmt strategy to reduce those

risks. We have a s€parate Legal deparbrrent and an l:rternal Control and Compliance department to

identify different business risks. In the case of complexities, we consult outside expert/ legal adviser.

Induetry Risk
i) Market demand: The company's sales and revenues are depended on the aggregate demand

for its products. Any economic recessiorl changes in requirements, national income and other

related factors may cause to decline in the market demand of the Company products.

Manrgement plan for nitigation:
The world's top-class raw materials, best quality, attractive price, strong brand loyalty of the

company's products to its customets has enabled the Company to captue significant market

share in the sector. The Company is continuously pereFating the market and uPgradint the

quality of the products to minimize market risks.

ii) Raw materials and energ;l costs: Instability in raw materials and energy costs may hamper the

profitability of The Company significantly. A recent government decision regarding the

escalation oI electricity prices will put huge pressure on the product cost of the local business.

Management plan for mitigation:
Our mana6ement believes that efficient management of inventories, proper sourcing & timing,
economic order quantity and efficient handling of credit facilities can reduce the cost of
procurement. For power and electricity, SPBML has own power teneratot for uninterrupted
production The electricity cost is the same for all other competitors so it will be adiusted with
price accordingly.

Md. Ra I Hossain
Company Secrelary
&oaliP8psr & Bosrd Uills Ltd,

2 { APR 2022

Molummad ZiaulHaque
Chiel Financlal Omcar
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Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of potmtial financial loss due to the non-performance of a financial
conEact or ffurancial aspects or non-perforurance in any contract arising from the Comp.rny's
accounts receivables from customers and othcr receivables.

M.natement plan for mitigation:
Company's credit poliry is in place and the uposure to oedit risk is monitored by taking into
consideration of all aspects o{ such risk. NPIL has credit evaluation poliry and standard

business cycle process€s, and a large portion of its goods are delivered on COD basis.

Therefore, credit risk is minimal and well managed.

Interest rate riek:
Interest rate risk is associated with the flucfuations in market interest rates which cause

a company's cost of deb,t to inoease. Changes in the Govemment's monetary policy also

t€nd to increase interest rates. The high rate of interest may adversely alfect the operating

results and financial performance of the Company with additional firancial chalges and

squeezes the profit of the company.

Management phn for nitigation:
The management of the Company is always aware of the intarest rates at which the debts

of The Company are being firunced. Management finances both long'term & short-term

funds at competitive rates. The Company has been repaying borowed funds on a

continuous basis to reduce such interest rate risk.

Exchange rate risk:
Most of the raw materials used by SPBML are imported from abroad against payment of

foreign currenry. Unfavorable volatility or fluctuations of foreign currency to the BDT

exchange rate may have an impact on the cost structure and profitability of the company.

ManegEment plen for rnitigation:
The risk of foreign exchange cannot be eliminated fully as we require importing raw
materials. However, the management is always aleat in minimizing the negative imPact

of currenry fluctuation cost by looking for new soutces of raw materials and constantly

negotiating with suppliers in reducing the price. It always takes stePs to hedge all maior

currency dealings to safeguard the interest of the company.

Md. Ras dul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financlal Oflicer

Sonrll PaP€r t Eotd Mill! ttd.

2 t APR 2022

- ]r\t
- MANAGINC DIRECTORr solutrplpra & goAno M/LLs tID
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r"n=*aifisi,
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited
Z 1 APR TS:2

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is a fum's possible inability to meet its short-term debt obligations, thereby

incuring exceptionally large losses.

Management plan for mitigation:
The Management of the company ensures that it has sufficimt caah and cash equivalmts to

meet the expected operational expenaes, including financial obligations through preParation

of the cash flow forecast based on timeline of paym€nt of the financial obligation and

accordingly arrange for sulficient liquidity to make the sPected Payment within due date.

Moreover, the Company seeks to maintain short term credit lines with rheduled commercial

banlis to ensure payment of obligations in the event that there is insufficieart cash to makc thc

required payment.

Company Secretary
Sooali Paper & Board Mills Ltd.

2 t APR 202
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Market and technology-related rieks:

Market risks refer to the risk of adverse market conditions affecting the sales and
profitabilify of the company. Such as, shortate in raw rnaterial supplies, indlicient labor
supplies, fall in product deman4 etc. whidr signifies the adverse extemal and internal
business errvironmerrt. Those tlpes of risks may hamper the success of the business-

Technological developmmt may make the old machinery obsolete which may lumper
the profitability of The Company's overall business.

Management plan for mitigation:
Own research for market and new products to retain the existing rrarket and to attract

new customers. It has a plan for required BMRE/ expansion regularly if required. It will
continuously upgrade its machines and technology as required and any new one comes.

So, the risk of the market and obsolescence of technology is minimum for the Company.

Potential or existing Govemment regulations:

The Company operates under the Companies Act, Taxation policy adopted by NB&
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)'s Rules and Rules adopted by
other regulatory bodies. Any abrupt changes in the policies formed by those bodies will
impact the business of The Company adversely.

Management plan for mitigation:
The economy of Bangladesh has been developing over the decades because of business-

friendly Rules and Regulations adopted by the various regulatory bodies of the country.
Unless any adverse policies are taken, which may materially affect the industry, the

business of The Company will not be affected. The govemment emphasizes the growth
oI the local indusEy to meet the local need. Yet the prornoters and the sponsors have

endeavored to convince the policymakers Ior adopting favorable terms and conditions,
which will eventually help the industry to compete with the low-cost locations in the

global arena and to save foreign currency.

Potential or existing changes in global or national policies:

Changes in the existing global or national policies can have either positive or negative
impacts on the company. Any scarcity or price hike or global or national poliry change

may hamper the profitabiiity.
Mana8ement plan for mitigation:
Political turmoil and the disturbance are bad for the economy and so for the company.
The Company can prosper in the situation of political stability and a congenial business

environment. The management of SPBML is always concemed about the prevailing and

upcoming future changes in the global or national poliry and shall response

appropriately and timely to safeguard its interest.

Operational Risk:
Operational Risk is the prospect of loss resulting from inadequate or failed procedures,

systems or policies, Employee errors, Systems failures, Fraud or other crimiral activity.
Any event that disrupts business processes.

Management plan for miHgation:

To reduce the operational risk, the management of SPBML has been monitoring a few
sectioru regularly. Apart ftom those, routine checks and proper maintenance of the
eq also red te the operational risk.

Md. Ra edul Hossaln mmad Ziaul Haque
,r\rr
. MANAGING DIRECTORPsoulu 

P,qpeR I ao,qno Altrs LID

? I APR zr/N

))f
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limiled

?{ APR ?Oi?

CompanY Socretary
Sonrl Paper & Board Milh Ltd.

? T APR 202

Chiof Financial oflicsr
Sontli P89u E Board Mlllr ttd

2 ( APR 2022
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SECTION 5

Rule 8 (d)

DATE AND TIME OF OPEMNG AND CLOSING OF SUBSCRIPTION

The date and time of opening and dosing of subscription of this rights offer are disclosed

below:

\l.rr lll. ll)21Il('.ord I )rtr

Opens on hrne 07,2O2!l
Closes on lane ?-8,202!2

(Within Banking hours)

sL lis( l{ :, t t()\

Md. Ra ul Hossain
Company Secretary
Sonali Papet & Board Mills Ltd.

2 ( APR 2022

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financi8l Ofiicsr
Sondi PaDor & Boad Mi[s Ltd

7l APRz0?2

I*r$":tr
a'{ffi ,:r-iiEa C,Aino n'riiLs iia

2 { APR 202

)--' 
'Tanzim Alamglr

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

2T APR MU
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SECTION 7

Rule 8 (e)

PURPOSES OF RAISING FT.]ND THROUGH RIGHTS SHARE, SPECITYING CLEARLY
TI{E HEADS AND AMOUNT OF THE zuND UTILISATION AND IDENTIFYING
vARrous PRoPoSED PROJECTS WTrlI HEADS AND AMOT.JNT OF EXPENDITURE
FOR EACIr PROJECTS, AND ALSO HTGHLTGHTS OF SUCH PROJECTS

PURPOSE OF RIGHTS ISSUE AND IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

The demand for products Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited is increasing day by day and it
needs to further strengthen the operation through capital machinery import. The proceeds
received from Rights Issue of Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited will be invested to procure
a portion of capital machinery of the Company for growth of overall business operation. The
Company shall issue 70,987,729 Ordi.r"y Shares of Tk. 10.00 each at par totaling Tk.
709,877,290.N as rights offer at 1 (One) [R]: 2 (Iwo) ratio i.e. 1(One) Rights share for 2(Two)
existing share held on the record date for mtitlement.

The estimated utilization plan of the fund to be raised through the said Rights Issue is stated
below:

Particulars
Amount
in USD

Amount in
Taka

Implementation Period

Capital Machinery:
Brand new Caterpillar
Gas Generator Sets with
Complete Standard
Accessories

1,350,000/- 709,877,2%/- Three to six months

Total 1,350,N0/- 709,877,290/-
Note: Any excess of fund due to exchange rate shall be covered from intemal source of
financing.

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 11 November 2021

il/-
Mohammad Zaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer

sd/-
Md. Rashedul Hoasain

Company Secetary

lld. Ras dul Hossain Mohammad ZiaulHaque
Chisf Financisl Ofiic.r

Som[ PaDot & Boad tlu LE

2 { APR 202

}))rffiffi
'solt4tiP,tpER & goARD r,itt s lIi

2I APRNN

-\; f-
Tanzim Alamglr

Managing Director & CEO.

UCB l?JestmentlimiteoGompany Secretary
Sd Papsr & Board Mills Ltd.

2 4 APR 202

s/-
Mahfuza Younus
Managing Director
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NAME OF fiIE PRODUCTS MANUFACTURED OR TO BE MANUFACTURED OR
SERVICES RENDERED OR TO BE RENDERED BY THE ISSI,JER TOGE-THER WTITI
CAPACITY OR PROPOSED CAPACITY OF THE UISTING AND PROPOSED
PROJECTS VrS-A-VrS CAPACTTY UTTLTSED BY THE ilrSTrNG PROIECT Dt RTNG
TI{E LAST THREE YEARS OR SUCH SHORTER PERIOD DI,IRING WHICH THE
ISSUERWAS IN COMMERCIAL OPERATION

Md. Ra ul Hossain
Compeny Secretary
Smali Paper & Boatd lilills Ltd,

2 t APR 202

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiof Financial Oflicer

Sondl P896r I Boad ltill! Ltd.

2 t APR 20n

'l*frs"m
f 

sorunitp,lpeR a goARD l,,ltts 17,

2 { APR 2022

SECTION 8

RuIe 8 (f)

-L: r-
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestmenl Limited
?{ APR 2OT?
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Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited (SPBML) started its business for the manufacturing and

marketing of Media, Liner, Simplex, Duplex paper board, and quality writing Papers.

Principal Product & Services rendered by the Company and the markets for such products
or services:

SPBML manufacturing and marketing of media, liner, simplex, duplex paper board, and

quality writing papers. The market for those products is the local market.

Name of any Associatq/Subsidiary/Related holding company and their core atea of
business:

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited doesrlt have any associates, subsidiary or holding
comPany

Competitive conditions in the business:

There is a huge demand-supply gap for the product of the company in the Bangladeshi

market.

The Company eamed a good name & fame in the local market oI the county for its quality
products. The following are the major paper producers in Bangladesh:
o Bashundhara Papet Mills Ltd.
. Asia Paper and Board Mills Ltd.
r Hakkani Pulp & Paper Mills Ltd.
. Pioneer Paper & Board Mills Ltd.
. Kamaphuli Paper Mills, Chittagong
o Magr.ua Paper Mills Ltd.
. Khub:ra Printing & Packing Limited
. T. K. Paper ltoducts Ltd.
. Maq Papev Industries, Narayanganj, Bangladesh

Md. Ra ul Hossain
Company Secretary
SonaliPapr & Board Mills Ltd

2 t APR 2022

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiof Financial Otficor

SonaliPap$ & Boald Milh t.r
Z I+ APR2O22

*m,ffir solilitplpER d eoARD ti/tts tID

24APRM2

I'f
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

z$ AP|l 2ni2

Nature of Business

Distribution of Product{Services:

Distribution involves the physical distribution of the company's products to the sub-

distributor or directly to the customer base. Typically, this is a combined transport and

warehousing operation, responsible for storing and delivering products to meet the

customels needs. Again, this combined activity will often be placed with a 3rd party serrrice

provider who will control and implement the processes.

The Company supplies its products from its own factory premises to its customers at the risk
of customers against delivery order.
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Sources and availability of Raw materials and the names of the Principal Suppliers:

The major raw materials of SPBML are imported from overseas, mainly from Singapore, UAE,
Indonesia& Hong Kong. Suppliers are evaluated periodically on supply teliability, quality
and prices with new suppliers being added after they meet the required quality and reliability
benchmarks througlr supplier appraisals and track record.

The names of Principal suppliers are mentioned below:

SI Supplier Name Items Address

1 April Intemational Enterprise Pte

Ltd
Pulp

80 Raffles Place, # 50-01 UOB

Plaza 1, Singapore

2 Zenath Paper Traders Dubai, UAE

3 Ekman PuIp and Paper Limited Wastepaper
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

Production capacity and curent utilization:

The production capacity and capacity utilization as on June 30, 2021, is as follows:

Md. Ras ul Hossain
Company Secretary
SonaliPaper & Board Mills [td.

2 l, APR 2022

*Hffi,,ffit sollu p,qprR E Bo,qRD ri/us LIo

2I APR Mz

L--, f-
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

Z { APR zoiz

Major Products Unit Production
Capacity

Actual
Production

Capacity
Utilization %

Writing Paper & Board Paper

Qo2G2f,f)
MT 38,500 32,738 85.03

Writing Paper & Board Paper
(207y2020\

MT 38,500 29,695

Writing Paper & Board Paper
(201&2019)

MT 38,500 35,003 90.92

Prlp

71.73

Note: The capacity utilization declined in 2019-2020 due to world-wide COMD-19 pandemic.

Mohammad ZhulHaque
Chirt Financial Ofiicar

Soodl Ptpor I Eodd ilin! Ltd.

2(APRMz
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SECTION 9

Rule 8 (g)

JUSTTFTCATTON FOR THE ISST.JE PRICE OF RIGHTS SHARES

(i) Net ass€t value per share

(ii) Eamhg-based-value per share calculated on the basis of weighted average of net profit alter
tax for immediately preceding five years

(in)

Md. Ra ul Hossain
,t\t

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Finsncial Ofiicot

Son8fi PaPd & Board itill! Ltd'

2 ( APR 2022

Company Secretary
SoC hr & Boald Milh Ltd.

2 t APR 2022 2 4 APR 207?

I.

st( It()\ ( ()\ It \rs

Average market price per strare for the last six months immediately prior to the offer for rights
issue

1---
Tanzim Alamglr

Manaqing Director & CEO.

IJCB lnvestment Limited

?'t APR 2o?l
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The issue price of rights share is not higher than the par value and the rights issue price at Tk.
10.fi) each per share is justified as per the guidelines of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC) as given in the table below:

(0 Net asset value per share

Net Asset Value per Share (with Revaluation) 215.27
Method (i)

Na Asset Value per Share (without Revaluation) 10.93

Historical Earning Based Value Per Share Market P/D 47.89Method (ii)
Historical Eaming Based Value Per Share (Sector P/E) 134.68

Method (iii) Average Market Price per Share for the last six months 652.97

()ffel Prict'
('l ak.r)

ts prr -4udited [:inanrial Slnlcnrcnl for thc 1cal euded 3(l Junc, 2021

Particulars Note Amount (BDT)
Paid-up Capital
(BDT 183,028,830y' Plus 20% Stock Dvidmd tsDT 36,605,760/-)
Add: Retained Earninge
(BDT 93,540,25U- bss 40% Dioidend BDT n,211,520/)
Add: Reeervee-

Revaluation Res€Tve

A

B
C

279,634590

20,328,737

4,927,446,&58

Total Equity A+B+C=D 5,167,470,179

Number of Shares E

Note: After considering 20% Stock Dividend & 20% Cash Dividend on June 30, 2021

2"t,963,459

{h) Nct r\sset \/.rlur' r,r'ithrrut l{cscn t's

Particulars Amount (BDT)
Paid-up Capital
(BDT 18i,U8,830/- Plus 2O% Stock Dipidcnd BDT 36,605,760/-)
Add: Retained Earningo
(BDT 93,540,2sU- Less N% Dividetrd BDT 73,211,520y')

A

B

279,634,590

20,328,73^l

Total Equity A+B=C 239,963,327

Md. Rashedul Hossain
Company Secretary
Sonali Paoer & Board Milh Ltd.

2(APRM2

Mohammad ZiaulHaque
Chirf Financhl Ofiicor

SonCt PaPor E Bosd Mi$l ttd'

2 { APR 202

2^1,963,459

1--,4
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limiled

Z{ APR zON

Number of Shares D

Note: After considering 20% Stock Dividend & 20% Cash Dividend on June 30, 2021

2 t APR 2022

\et Asrct \'.rluc (N \\'l [,er \h.rrc rrithout rc\'.rlu.ttion <'ltt

,.

Valu.rtiorr \lt l horls

(.rI Nct .\ssct \',rluc rrith Rcsclver

Nct.\ssct \'.r lue shar r. * ith rr.r'.rluntion I 235.27

As per Auditcd Financial Statemcnt for thc ycar cnded.10 lunc,2021

I0.e:i
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(ii) Eaming-based-value per share calculated on the basis of weighted average of nd
profit after tax for immediately preceding five yeare

l l i.tolicitl hrning-t,.rsr'd \'.rlurtirrn using \l.rlkr't I'/t l\lu ltiplt

I'eighted
\r'erage Nel
Profit aftcr
Iax (BDT)

A
B

C
D
E

30 Jun, 2021
30 Jun, 2020

30 Jun, 2019
30 Jun, 2018
301un,2017

27,98,459
15,638,985

15,126,350
75,12635O
15,1263s0

89A65,5L3
26,732,38L
63,429,U8
30,785,788
28,566,254

0.26
0.20
0.18
0.18
0.18

2i,397,680
5,296,441

77,424,673
5,545,771
5,145,219

F

G
H
I
J

Total 83,987,4Y

Number of Shares before IPO
Weighted Average Eerning Per Share
Market P/E Multiple (12 Months Average)
Sector Months

238,980"384 1.00 50,8(D,$3

2r,%3,459
2.31

18.11

58.22

F/c

Note: After considering 20% Stock Dvidend on June 30, 2021

Ili.,trrric.rl [.rrrring
Historic.r l [:rrnirrg

r Shirr
r Sh.rrr

1\larLr
lSt'ct rrt

li.tst.d \
l\'.rlut I

lltl(

l'll (-alculatiorr

Peb 2022 16.15 58.68

lan 2022 16.58 58.75
Dec 2021 76.29 67.96

Nov 2021 77.79 56.11

Oct 2021 1.8.75 58.48
Sep 2021 20.12 62.72
Aug 2021 20.02 52.01

Jul2027 "19.17 47.05

Jun 2021 18.50 39.24

May 2021 18.31 43.20

Apr 2027 16.91 42.64

Mar 2021 16.89 42.86

ts.

Scctor P/E

tPapt'r & l'r'inting)

Source: DSE Monthly Reviews (https://www.dsebd.org/mrg.php)

Md. R ul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financisl Ofiicer

Sonell P8Por A Boerd llilr Ltd '

2 
', 

APR 202

'xt'1o,.
. l.TANAGING DIRECTORr 

s0liALl pl pER g ec i.pD t,t!t-i-t t-rD

2{APRMN

,."J;afin,,
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestmenl Limiled

Z l, APR 20n

Company Secretary
SonaliPleer & Board Milh Ltd.

24APRM2

5l Year
No. of
Shares

Nct Prufit
aftcr T.rx

(BDT)

I4'cight on
fotll Number

of Shares

I Ll.tg

| 1-1.6r\

l

lt'

i\lrrrrlh i\larket P/li

,.\ r'r r.r ge 53.:2
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(ii| Average market price per share for the last six months immediately prior to the offer
for rights issue

\r tr.r{t' rtt.rlLcl pr-ict' pcr- 'harc for thc l.tst rir, rrrrrlrths

Nlonlh Opening ( losing
Feb2O22

larr2022
Des2021
Nov 2021

Oct 2021

n2.20
930.00

570.00
644.90
463.90

358.00

774.20
716.30
957.70
544.70
639.80

453.90

n3.20
823.15
763.85

594.80
551.85
410.95

Md
Company Secretary
Sonali P@ & Board Milh Ltd.

2 { APR 20n

2021

Chlof Financial Oflicer

r.n.i-%i"fl,
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

Z4 APR ?ON

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Sonall PaPsr e Board M

2 t APR 2022

\r'cr'.rgt rrralkct plicc [rcr sh.rlc lr)r thc r.r\t sir nronths

ill! Ltd

t,5l.rt7

- MANAGING DIRECTOR4 
sor,JALtP,4peR e golED M/Lis LTD

2 t APR m22

*"*ffio.,.,n
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SECTION 10

Rule 8 (h)

CASH FLOWS STATEMENT, PROFTT AND LOSS ACCOT.'NT, BALANCE SHEET,
CHANGES IN EQUTTY AND NOTES TO THE ACCOI,'NTS OF THE ISSUER,
TOGE THER WTII{ CERTIFICATE FROM THE ATJDITORS AS IN FORM.C

(a) Auditors Report along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 3Q 2021

(b) Auditors Certificate - Form C

\l( ()\ (()\tt\t\

Md. Ras ul Hossain Mohammad ZiaulHaque
Chicf Financhl Ofiicor

SonrllP8PsEBo.d i s ttd.

?t APR2172

,r\-s
- MANAGING DIRECTORe solirttt pepER a aolP9 ttrLts t ro

2I APR ?02

r""=i;dG
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited
7_t APR 2t12

Oornpany Secretary
{Bi Paper & Board ililh Ltd.

?T APR2l,?2
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h) Auditors Report along with the Audited Financial Statemente for the year ended
Iune iltl, 2021

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders
of

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Linited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2021, and of its financial perfonrrance and its
castr flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intematiorul Financid Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

Wc conductcd our audit in accordancc with Intcmational Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our resporsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and Bangladesh
Srurities and Exchange Commission (BSEQ, and we have fulfilled our responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code and the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
(ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have ob,tained is sufficient and
applopriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit rratters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most sigrrificance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statemmts as a whole, and in
fomring our opinion thereory and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below our description of how our audit addressed the matters provided in that
context.

Md. ul Hossain ZiaulHaque
Chiol Financisl OfiicoI

Sonali Pspor & Bosrd MiI! Ltd.

2 4 APR 2022

_m,ffit' 
so[,.,tt pApER & Bolrp, ii,lr. s ir!

2 { APR 2022

T, f-
Tanzim Alamglr

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

Z 4 APR 2Ci2

Company Secretary
Smd Paper & Board Mills Ltd.

2 ,. APR 2O??

We have audited the financial statements of Sonali Papet & Board Mille Limited, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.
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Risk Our response to the risk
Revenue Recogrition
During this year, net sales revenue of Tk.
7AL4,67548.

Revenue is measured net of discounts,
commission and rebates eamed by customers
on the sales. Within a nurnber oI the markets,
the estimation of discounts, commission and
rebates recognized based on sales made
during the year is material and considered to
be complex and ludgrnental. Therefore, there
is a risk of revenue being misstated as a result
of faulty estimations over discounts,
incentives and rebates.

There is also a risk that revearue may be
overstated due to fraud tfuough
manipulation of the discounb incentives and
rebates recognized resulting from the
pressure local management may feel to
achieve performance targets.

. Timing of revenue recognition

o Within a number of the Company's
markets, comparing curent year rebate
accruals to the prior year and, where
relevant, completing further inquiries and
testing.

. Agreeing a sample of claims and rebate
accruals to supporting documentation;

. Critically assessing manual journals posted
to revenue to identify unusual or irregulat
items;

o Finally assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures against
relevant accor:nting standards;

Performing cut-off test by obtaining
delivery challan for goods delivered during
the beginning of the ner<t accounting period
and at the close of curtent accounting year
to verify whether sales are recorded in the
current accounting period; and

r Inspecting VAT retums submitted to VAT
authority to determine consistenry of
sales revenue recognized.

See note no 16.00 to The Financial Statements

,4, ffi.ffi;e sotlnLipeprR a aoARD llts LTD

2TAPRMN

'va.
Tanzim Alamglr-

,HriiH3"fi:,;il,;i:,
ZT APR 2O:2

Md. Ra I Hossain Mohammad ZiaulHaque
Chisf Flnsnci.l ofticar

Sondl PaPor & 8o!rd ilifi! Ltd'

2 t APR 202

Corngany Secrotary
Sool hper & Board Mills Ltd.

2 t APR 2022

We have tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls focusing on the
follon'ing:

. Seglegation of duties in invoice creation
and modificatiory and

Our substantive procedures in relation to the
revenue recognition comprises the following:

r Obtaining supporting documentation for
sales transactions recorded either side of
year end as well as credit notes issued after
the year end date to determine whether
revenue was recogrrized in the correct
period;



Secretary
& Board Mills Ltd.

Chisf Flnsncisl Olllcor

$ndlPlPs A 8o!rd Milh Ltd'

2 ( APR 202

22

mad Ziaul Haque
,t\t

Md
MohamCompany

SondPrpr

Valuation of Inventory
The lnventory of Tk.782,278,876 as at 30 fune
2021, held in warehouses and across multiple
product lines.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. As a result, the
directors apply judgement in determining
the appropriate values for slow-moving or
obsolete items.

We challenged the appropriateness of
management's assumptions applied in
calculating the value of the inventory
provisions by:

o evaluating the design and implementation
of key inventory controls op€rating across
the Company, including those at a sample
of warehouses;

. Testin& on a sample basis, the stock aging
profile, expiry dates and the market price
used in assessing the net realizable values
of inventories to the related documents.

. comparing the net realizafolg rr1r.,
obtained through a detailed review of sales

subsequent to the year-end, to the cost
price of a sample of inventories and
comparison to the associated provision to
assess whether inventory provisions are
complete;

. reviewing the historical accurary of
inventory provisioning, and the level of
inventory write-offs during the year; and

. challenging ttre completeness of inventory
provisions through assessing actual and
forecast sales of inventory lines to assess

whether provisions for slow-
moving/obsolae stock are valid and
complete.

See Note No 5.00 to the Financial Statements
Measurement of Deferred Tax Liabitties
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities Tk- 289,324,596
as at 30 June 2021.

Significant iudgment is required in relation to
deferred tax liablities as their recoverability
is dependent on forecasts of future
profitability over a number of years.

See Note No 12 to the Financial Statements

2 t APR 2022

Hossain

'Lt- f-
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

z r, APfl 2$:2

. MANAGING DIREC|ORa 
soileLipnpeR c goARD l,tilLs l"7D

2 t APRnz2

We additionally carried out the following
substantive testing for this item:
o We obtained an understanding evaluated

the design and tested the operational
effectiveness of the Company's key
controls over the recognition and
measurement of defened tax liabilities.

. We also assessed the completeness and
'accuracy of the data used for the
estimations of future taxable expense.

. We involved tax specialists to assess key
assumptions, controls. recogrrition and
measuremert of deferred tax liabilities.

. We also assessed the appropriateness of
presentation of disclosures against IAS 12
lncome Tax.
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Management is responsible for the other information. The other infor:mation comprises all
of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assutance conclusion thereon.

ln corurection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other informatiory we are required to report that fact. But we have nothing to report
in this regard.

Md. Ra dul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiof Financial Officol

Son.ll PrP.t a Bo.rd ills Ltd,

2 ( APR 2022

1--r-
Tanziri-Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited
Z { APR 2IJ2

Valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment

The carrying value of the PPE amounted to Tk.
5,764,270,439 atfi June 2021. The valuation
of PPE was identified as a key audit matter
due to the significance of this balance to the
financial statements.

Expenditures are capitalized if they create
new or enhance the existing assets, and
expensed if they relate to repair or
maintenance of the assets. Classification of the
expenditures involves judgment. The useful
lives of PPE itens are based on management's
estimates regarding the period during which
the asset or its significant componmts will be
used. The estimates are based on historical
experience and market practice and take into
consideration the physical condition of the
assets.

Our audit included the following
procedures:
o We assessed whether the accounting

policies in relation to the capitalization
of expenditures are in compliance with
IFRS and found them to be consistent.

o We obtained a listing of capital
expenditures incurred dudng the year
and, on a sample basis, checked whether
the items were procured based on
intemal purchase order that had been
properly approved by the responsible
individuals.

. We inspected a sample of invoices and
L/C documents to determine whether
the classification between capital and
operating expenditure was appropriate.

o We evaluated whether the useful lives
determined and applied by the
management were in line with historical
experience and the market practice.

We checked whether the depreciation of
PPE items was colunenced namely, by
comparing the date of the reclassification
from capital in progress to ready for use,
with the date of the act of completion of the

See Note No ffi to the Financial Statements

Company Secretary
S0Ci Paoer & Board Mills Lld.

2tr'APR2122

Other Information
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Ac! 1D4, the Securities and Exchange
Rules, 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such intemal control as

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatem€nt, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disdosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but
to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statem€nts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includer our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ertor and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expec'ted
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Ident$ and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, desigrr and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidmce that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for or:r opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve collusiorl
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

> Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design.
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstancet but not for the purpose oI
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control.

) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a rnaterial
uncertainty exists related to eventE or conditions that may cast significant doub,t on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statemerts or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor'

t-

mad ZiaulHaque

However, future ev€nts or conditions Eury cause

't\T r*=i?fr^den
^MANAGING 

DTREC!91 - _- Managing Director & CEO

" sofl/,u P,1P5R t 30lP9llllts:I) ucB invesrment Limited
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Md. Ra ul Hossain
Company Secretary
Sonali Papr & Boad Mills Ltd.
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the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
) Evaluate the overall presentation, structur€ and content of the financial statements,

induding the disclosures, and whether the financial statem€nts represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair preseartation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with the
mall relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and whee applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determjne those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the advetse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicadon.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirem€nts

a) we have ob'tained all the information and o<planation which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessa5r for the purpose of our audit and made due
verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of
account; and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Company's business.

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 15 September 2021

sdl-
fagadish Chandra Biewas, FCA
Partner
ICAB Enrollment No: 199
DVC No.: 210921m99AS970338

Md. Ra dul Hossain
Company Secretary
Soia Paper & Eoard Milb ttd.

2 t APR 2022

t5rs.r:
^ lYlAr !Aur'i u

'o sor,teLi PIPER & ooAPD liitts tiD

7.t APRnn

1.(-
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limlted
ZI APR MN

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987
and relevant notifications issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we
also report the following:

Signed for & on behalf of
MABS & J Partners
Chartered Accountants

ZiaulHaque



Particulars

ASSETS

Non-Current AsEetE

Property, Plant and Equipments

Current ABsets

Investment in Shares

lnventories
Trade and Other Receivables

Advances, Deposits & Prepaymmts

Cash and Cash Equivalmts

TOTAL ASSETS

EQI'ITY AND UABIUTIES
Share Holdera' Equity
Share Capital
Revaluation Reserve

Retained Earnings

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Bank toan (Secwed)

Deferred Tax Liability

Cunent Liabilities
Short Term Bank l-oan (Secured)

Curent Portion of long Term loan
Trade and Other Payables

Provision for llcome Tax

TOTAL EQI,JITY AND LIABILITIES

Net A8set V.lue (NAV) Per Share

Plece: Dhaka
Dated: 16 September 2021

Amount in Taka
30 fune 2021

26

Amount in Taka
30 fune 2020

3.00

5

439281269

182278876
754,n8171

49,749,837

85365p50

gtrA5l,2r3 512,527,723

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

263923,073

797240,297

22,t68,947

35,189,412

5 5 95 7

9.00

10.00

13.00

11.00

14.00

15.00

315

849 866582,849

777,658387

75,792,251

55,813,399

77 3O837E

23.00 28433 307.88

sd/-
Managing Director

Signed for & on behalf of
MABS & J Partncrs
Chart€red Accountants

sd/-
Jagedirh Qun&a Birwas, FCA
Prrtn€r
ICAB Effollment No: 199
DVC No.: 2109210199 ItSg7OS3g 

1_: f_)tJt"R ranzimAbnEir
^MANAbttN 

DtlEcToR Manaqinq Dll.b.l CEO
'- S0l/Ai/P;PER I 80APJ 1l':ls tID UCe inu".lqrrt t-t.it"o
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sd- sd/- sd/-
Chief Financial Officr Compeny Secretary Director

sd/-
Director

This is the Statement of Financial Position referred to in our separate report of even date.

Md. Ra edul Hossain
company secretary
Smali Paper & Board Milh Ltd.

2 4 APR M2?

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chi6f Finenciel Ofticor

SfiallPapn& Board Mlllr !td,

2 4 APR 202

0,4395 5,792A68,096

183,028,830

4,927 A46,858

93540251

166,389,850

4,927 ,446 ,858
29,033,209

332877,660

289324596
L5A76,709

300,0603,14

640,282,253

728,977 320
s7324533
22,867 352

Sonali Papet & Board Mille Limited
Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 fune 2021

Not€6

11.00

12.00

6,675,653,6s2 6304,989879

6,575,653,652 6304,989,879

The annexed notes form an integral paft of these Financial Stat€ments. These Financial Statements

were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 Septembet 2021 and were signed on its behall
by:



Sonali Paper & Board Mille Limited
Statement of hofit or Loea and Other Courprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2021

-t,474,657,548

(1,230,027 348)
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Amount in Taka
2079-2020

1108,650300
(7 ,228 ,606 ,943)

Not€s Amourt in Taka
2020-2027

Revenue

kss: Cost of Sales

Groee Profit
I:es: Operating Expeneee:
Administrative Expenses
Selling and Distribution Expenses

Profit frorr OperaHon

hss: Finance Cost
Add: Other lncume
hofit before W.P.P.F
Less: Workers Profit Participation Fund @ 5%

Net Profit before Tax
Income Tax E:rpense

[.ess: Current Tax Expenses

Add; Deferred Tax Income

Net Eofit after Tex

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 15 September 2021

16.00

17.00

1E4,630200 1E0,043,357

893
18.00
19.00

20.00

21.00

22.OO

22.00

705,555279

(66,168,778)

268,290

t00'Is2;731
(4,770,606)

39;154,792

(1.893,085)

9s472;124 37,867,706

,946571 7,129

24.OO 4.89

The annexed notes form an integral part of the6e Financial Statements. These Financial Statements
were authorized for issue by the Board o[ Directors on 16 Septembcr 2021 and were signed on its behall

{:
s{- sd/- sd/- sd/- sdl-

Chief Financiel Offica Courpany Secretary Director Director Maneging Director

This is the Statement of Profit or [,oss and Other Comprehensive Income r€{erred to in our separate
report of even date.

Signed for & on behalf of
MABS &f Partners
Chartered Accountants

sd/-

lagadish Chandra Biswas, FCA
Partner
ICAB Eruollment No: 199
DVC No.: 2109210199AS97033E

Md. edul Hossain m,ffiF soltAttPIPER g BortE, llt'!ls LID

1:f
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CE0-

[JCB lnvestment Limited

21 APR 2ei2

(67,465,246)

4285e6

(63,s29,232)

10,E5E,846

(16,582,3se)

70:735,748

("12,O49,708)

979,783

2 t APR 202

Particulars

108,736"358

(61221.,079)

52,667,451

89A65514 26,732,387

Earnings Per Share (EPS) r.46

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chiof Financial Oflicar

Sofleli Papor & Board Mills ttd.

2 4 APR 202

Company Secretary
Sonal PrFt & Board Milk Ltd.

? t APR 2022
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Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
Fr the year ended 30 June 2021

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 |une 2020

The annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statemsrts. These Financial Statemmts were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 September 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

sd/-
Company Secretary Director Director

sd/-
Managing Director

sd/-sdl-

Md. Ras lHossain
Moha mmad Ziaul Haque

Chi6f Financial Officer

SonallPaPer 0 Board ilill8 ttd

,r\^sry
. MANAGING DIRECfORa soleu PApER & eotrP, l,,rLLS LTD

2 t APR m22

du

Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Ltd.

2 4 APR 2022

Particulare Share Capital
Revaluation

Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Total Taka

As at 30 lune 2020 1663E9,850 4,927,446,E58 29,033209 5,L22,869,977

I,tofit for the year 89465,574 89,465,574

Stock Dividend (2019 -2020) 16,538880 (16,638,980)

Cash Dividend (2019-2020) (837e4e3) 18379,493)

Balance at 30lune 2021 183,028,830 4,927 A46Bs8 93,54O257 s204,07s,939

Particulars Share Capital
Revaluation

Reserve
Retained
Earnings

Total Taka

As at 30 June 2019 151,263500 4,9?7 446,858 77 A27 )78 5,096,^t37 536

Profit for the year 26,73238^t 26,732,381,

Stock Dividend (2018-2019) 75,726350 (15,126350)

Balance at 30 June 2020 166/389,850 4,927 446,8s8 29,O332O9 5,122F69,977

2 { APR 2022

#*ff,'nffii*
2T APR 23:?

Place: Dhake
Dated: 15 September 2021



Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
St.terncnt of Cash Flows

As at and fm the year cnd€d 30 June 2021

Note6

6.01

21 (d)

29

Amount in Taka
2020-2021

Arnount in Taka
2019-2020

Particulars

.{. Caeh Flowc from Opreting AcHvlHea
Received from customers
Received frorr Bad Debt
Paid to suppliers, payables and other experrses

Paid for administra tive orpenses

Paid for Selling and distribution expensea

Advance, depGit & prepaym€nts
VAT paid
Forei8n ExchanSe Rate L.ocs

Income Tax paid
Net ca6h generated from operating activities

B. Cesh Flowa fton LweEtin8 Activitie!
Puchase of prope!'ty, plart and equipmmt
Investment in Shares
Received fron Bank Intere6t
Received frsn Sales of Shares (Realise Gain)
Received fronr Sales of Motor Vehicle
Received frorn lnsurance Claim
Net cash used in investing activities

C Caeh nowe from Financing Activitice
tong term bank loan received/ (refund)
Shqt term bank loan received/(refund)
Finance cost
Paid {or Cash Dividend
Net cash from finarcing activities

D. Net cash inllow/(outflow) for the period (A+B+g
E Qening cash and cash equivalents
F. Goeing Creh and C.eah equivelenta (IlrE)

sdl-
Conprrry Secretary

Place: Dhela
Dated: 15 Septernber 2021

Md. Rrs I Hossain

18.00

19.00

7.00

14.01

3.00

Annex-E
6.O2

21 (b)

21 (e)

18.01

"1544,926,695

377,625

(1,1035s0,806)

(56,873,674)

(E,4265e5)
(22,699 ,089)
(90,069,901)

(35,420)

(16,017,726)

-t,469,484fr-10

(1,005,899J18)

(55269,624
(10514J83)
(s0r87,2ss)
(83r33,93s)

(69135)
(19 224,754\

247,635,768 243J85,103

(43,U7,83!)
(4J'0,768,9831

141384
49256AEE

800,000

13300,000
(427,1t8,942) (51,1Es,182)

37O585,020
(n 386,628)
(67227,079\
(8379A93)

223,658,821 (183,927,894)

(67As1t72)

268290

11.00

13.00

20.00

(50,104206)
(67,554910)
(66,168:178)

50,775,548

x5,789,412
(1,527,e73')

36,717 385
85,365,060 3s189472

Net Operating Caah Flow Per Share 25.00 1353 13.31

The amexed notes form an integral part of thes€ Financial StateEEnts. These Financia.l Statesr€nts were

authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 September 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

sd/-
Chief Financial Offics

sdl-
Director

sdl-
Director

sd/-
ManaginS Director

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chisf Financial Ofiicer

Sonall Pepor e Bosrd llilt! Ltd

24APRM2
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ComqlnY Secretary
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Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
Note6 to tltc finrmial Statementr

As at and fq the ye.r ended 30 IurG 2021

1.$ Abort thc Coperry

1.01 hgd Fam d the CmrP.ny

Rcpcting C@rprIDa Sonali Paper & Bosrd Mills Limited wa8 incorporated vide registatiur no C-5576/134

in Bangladesh in the year 1978 undq Companies Act,1913 & 1994 as a PuHic Limited Cocpany. The

cornpany listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Umited (DSg in the year 1985 & Re.listed on 15 Jrme 2020 and

listed with Chittagong Stak Exchange timited (CSD on 21 Dccember 1996 & R€-lbted on 15Iune 2020. Tlre

slrares of the company are traded in Dhaka Stck Exchante Limited and Orittstont Stock ExchrngE Limited

of Banglad€ttl

1.02 Ad&ces d thc Rcgirtcrcd Offict and Frctry
The registered office of the Company is Laated at 51, Central Roa4 Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1205. The

lndustrial Unit is situated at Jatramura, Tarabo, Rupgoni, Narayanpni.

1.03 Natuc d Busincss Actividcs
Principal activities of the comguny are manulacturing & marketing of Media, tiner, Simplq, Duplq B@rd

Papers and Quality Writin& Printint Papers.

2.m SiFificurt Acconnting Poltcler and Othcr Mrtctirl llfmatto"
2.01 Brie d Prcparetidr urd hcsGnt tion d Fioemiel Statcmcnte

The financial statements have been prepared on toing cqrce!'n concept, histtrical c6t cqrvention and on
accrual basis in accordance with Int€rnatic,nal Accounting Stan&rds (lASc) and lntcrnatiqrnl Fmancial
Repoting Standard6 (IFRS6) aIrd h comptianc€ with the coqrpanieo Act 19 , the Securitie and Exchanges

Rules 1987 and listing regulations of Dhaka St6k Exchange Ltd (DSg.

2.02 Authaizrtidr fG lsruc

The dnancial stat€rr€nts were apFroved by the Board of Dircctos of the company ut 15 S€ptember 2021.

2.03 Going C-olIcrn

The company has adequate resou!'ces to continue in opgation for the fores€eable future. The cuirqt credit
facilities and resources of the company provides sulficient fund to meet the present requiremmts of its
od8tint bo6iness. For this reason the directors continue to adopt toint concetn aesumpion in preparing the
Fiiancial Statcmqrts.

2.04 Punctiqrd and Prescntatiqrel Currency
These finanriral statemsrts are prepared in Bangladeshi Taka flaka/Tk) which is the Cornpany's functional
currercy. All firancial inlormation presented in Taka has been rounded off.

2.05 UBc of EstimateE and JudgmcntE:

The preparation of Financial Staternealts requires manaternent to make €stimateE and assurhptions that
affect the reported amount of asset6, liabilitie6, income .nd expense6. Due to inher€nt unc€!'tainties involved
in making estimates actual results may dif{er from thG€ estimates and under lyin8 a66umptions are
reviewed on a gqing concem basis.

2.05 Coftparative Informatior end Rc-arrangErnenl there!tr
Comparative information has been disclced in resp€ct of the previous year for all numerical information in
the financial statementE and also the na[ative and descriprive information whete it is relevant for
under6tanding of the current year's financial slatements. Previous year's figures have been rearranged
wherever considered nece$ary, to ensure better comparability with the current year's financial statements
and to comFly with relevant lASs.

CompanY Secrelary
Sonali Papel & Board Mills Ltd.

2 /, APR 20n

,,*'k,fi'''
Managing Director & CEO.

UCB lnvestment ]'imlted
Md. Ra Hossain mmad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer
SonsliPap€, E Bosrd MiIs ud
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2.07 R.pGtingPeriod

Accounting and valuation methods are disclosed for reasons of clarity. The company dasaified the expenses

u6ing the fimction of expens€d method as per IAS 1 .

2.09 Compliame with Ittrenutionrl Accountint Strndrds (IAs6)

IAS 01 Ites€ntation of Pinancid Statements
IAS 02 Inventories
IAS 07 Statement of Cash Flows
IAS 08 Accomting Policies, Changes in Accquntint Estimates and Error6
IAS 10 Ev€nt6 Alter the Repoding Period
IAS 12 Income Taxes

IAS 15 Property, Plant and Equipm€nt
IAS 19 Employee Bcnefits
IAS 21 Thc Effccts od ChangG in Forcign Exchargc Ratca

IAS 23 Borrowing Coets

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosur€8
lAS 33 E rnings Per Share

IAS 36 lmpairms of Assets

IAS 37 Provision6, Cq*ingent Liabilities and As6ets

IFRS 7 Financial lnstrum€nts: Di6clo6ures

IFRS 9 Financial lnstrum€nts
IFRS 15 Revenue frorr Cc,ntract with Customers

The related IFRS6 are also complied for the preparation of these financial statem€nts

2.10 hoperty, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

RecoEnitio! ard Meaaur€trcnt:

ftop€lty, Plant and Equipmmts have be€n stated at cct and sub6equent revaluation (ody land) amount
less accumulated depreciatim. Accunulated historical cct and depreciaticm have been shown in t}le
Fina-ncial Stat€m€nts. The cct of acquieition cotnprises of puchase price, including impon duties and non-

tefundable Taxes and any diecfly attlibutable c6t of bringing the aas€ts to its state of intended u5€.

SubBequent Exp€nditure:

Exp€nditure incurred after the ascets have beqr put into operation, such as rePairs and maintenance is

normatly charged off as revenue expenditure in the period in which it is incured In aituation where it can

be clearly demonshated that the exp€lrditure has resulted in an increase in the futuie economic benefit

expected to be ottained frorn the use of the lired ass€ts, the expenditure is capitalized as an addition to cost

of the asset6.

Diapcal:
The gain or loss arising on the dispoeal or retirement of an a6s€t is determhed a6 the difference between the
sates proceeds and the carryin8 amount of the asset and is r€cotnized as non operating incdne and reflected

in the Stat€urent of Profit or t G6 and Othsr Compreheisive Income.

Md. ul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chisf Flnsncisl Olficer

Sonall Papet E Boad tlill! ttd'

2{APRM2

*\rsry
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Z T A?P. ?T:2
CompanY Secretary
Sonali Psper & Board Mills Ltd.

2I APR 2822

MANAGING DIRECTOR
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,c

The Financial Statemmt6 covers twelve months fron 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 con6istently.

2.m Prin iFl AcccrDtinS Policics

Sp€cific accounting policies were selected and applied by the company's manatement for sitnficant
trancaction and event6 that have material €ffect within the framework of IAS 1 (rrPre6entation of Financial

Statementsr') in preparation and presentation of financial 6tatement6. The previous yeats figure were
present€d according to the same accounting principles. Granges made to the pressrtation are explained in
the note fc,t each lespective item.
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Depreciation on Prop€rty, Plant & Euipments other than land and land development has been computed
during the year using the reducing balance method so as to write off the assets over their expected useful
life. Depreciation has been charged on additions on the basis of when it is available for use.

Aft€r consid€ring the useful life of assets as per IAS 15, the amual depreciati@ rates have been applied as

u.nder which is considered reasonable by tie management.

Sl No. Non-Current As6etg
R.t€ of,

DGpr.ciation
01 Building & Godown 5%

02 labour Shed

03 Plant, Machinery& Boiler 70%

04 Bectric Equipments & Others 10%

05 Generator & 5 M WPower Station LO%

06 Weighting & Road S.ale 10%

07 Electric & Gas Installation 10%

08 Motor Vehicles 15%

09 Fax Machine 10%

10 PABX & Telephone Set 10%

11 Computer 10%

72 ETP

13 Fire Fitting F4uipmmts
14 Crane, Trolley & Fork Lift
l5 Workshop & I-oose Tools
16 Furnihue & Fixture 70%

2.12 Imp.irmcnt d Alscts

All assets have been revi€wed accordint to IAS 35 and it was confirmed that no such a66€ts have been

impated during the year and for this reasott no provision has been made for impairment of a6sets.

Besis of valuation

Raw Matedals FIFO Method

Work-in Progress
Material co6t plu8 proportionate convergion co6t based on percentage oI
completion.

Finished Goods Valued at co6t or net realizable value whichever is lower

2.14 Lc@s Taxcc

Cr.rrrent Ta*
Current income tax exp€ns€ repres€nts the sum of the tax currently pyable

Md. ul Hossain
Company Secretary
&ai Papsr & Eoard Mills Ltd'

? i APR m22

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer

Sonali Paper & Boad ilifis Ltd.

2 4 APR 2022

_m',ma somLr p,tpgR i Bo;,q9 r,''i.i.s r:,
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2.11 DeFeciation

2.13 Invent6ies

Inventories are measured at the lows of co6t and net realizable value as pescribed @ IAS 2. The cost oI

inventories is based on the FIFO method, and includes orFnditure incurred in acquirin6 the inventories,

production or cqrversiqr c6ts and othel ccts incurred in trindng them to their existing lcation and

condition. ln the case o{ manufactured inventories and work-in-ptogress, c6t include6 an apF,ropriate

allocation of production overheads based on normal operation capaqity.

Nature of !nventorie6

'.nJ;i'fi,,Manaqing Director & CEO.

IJCB lnvestment Limtteo

2 ! APR TT:?
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Dcfctred Ter
Metred tax liabilities are the a.mount of income taxes payaHe in future year6 in respect of taxable

temporary differerrces. W€rred tax a86et6 are the amount of income taxes recoverable in future years in

rcpect of deductible temporary differences. Herred lax assets and liaHlitic are recorinized for the future

tax corsequ€nc€6 of timing differences arising between the carrying values o{ asEets, liablitiB, income and

qpstditure and th& respective lax bas€6. Merred tar a66€t6 and liablitie6 are mea6ured u6ing ta( rates

and tax laws that have been €nacted tr Eub6€quently enact€d at the financial Elatedrent date.

2.15 Flnrnci.l lfutrumcntr

A financial inshument is a cqrtract that $ve6 rise to a financial a66et of one cntity and a financial liability
ot equity instrunent of anoth€r €ntity.

2.15.1 Financial Aaretc

Financial assets of the company include cash and cash equivalerrts, cquity instrument of another €ntity,
trade receivable and other receivables. The company initially recognizes receivable on the date they are

originated. All other financial assets ar€ recognized initially on the date at which a contractual right is
created to receive cash or another financial aseet fron anothet company. Ihe company d€recognizes a

financial a6set wherr and only when conbactual rightE or Fobablities oI receiving the cash flows from the

asset6 expire or it tranEf€r the righte to receive the contractual cash oows on the linancial asset in a
hansaction in which subEtantially all the ri6k and teward of ownerehip of the financial assetE are

transferred-

Caeh rnd Caeh Equivalenta
Accotding to IAS 7 'Statement of Caoh Flows ' cash comprises oI cash in hand, demand deposits and cash

equivalents which are shot t€rm hi8hly liquid investm€r*s that are readily convettible to cash and which

are subiect to an insignilicant risk of changes in value. IAS 1 "Pres€ntation of Finarcial Statements"

provides that Cash and Cash Equivalents are not restricted in use. Considering the proviaion oI IAS 7 & IAS

1, Cash in }Iand & Banl Balances includhg FDR have betrr treated as Castr & Caah Equivalents.

Available fc Sale of Finantial A.saets

Duing the year the company had no financial asset for sale.

Trrdc and oahar Racalvableg
Trade receivaue are carried at cignal invoice amormt le66 an estinate made for doubtful debte based on a

review of all outstandint amormt at the Friod end.

2.152 Finenciel Liabilitics

The company initially r.cognize6 financial liabilitie6 on the transaction date at which the company becomes

a paty to the contractual provisions of the liability. The company deecognises a financial liat ility wh€n it's

contractual oHitations are dirharged or cancelled or expired. Finarrcial tiabilities are recognised initially at

Iair value le66 any ditectly attributable transactiong cGtE. Sub6equmtly to initial recognition, these finarrcial

liatrilities are measured at amortiEed cost using the effective hterest method. Financial liabilities include

loan and borrowing trade creditors, liabilities lor ocpenses and liatilities for other finance.

2.16 Employ€eu Bcncfit SchcE|c

r) Prwidcrs Fllnd
The Compary has established an contributory provident firnd scheme in accordance with IAS 19. A Board of

trrstees administers the fund. No part of the fund is included in the ass€t of the Company.

b) Dcfined bencfit p!.n (Gr.tuity)
The Company operates at unlunded gratuity scheme. Each employee who has completed five years of
service is elidble to one month tratuity for each completed year.

Md. Ra dul Hossain
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chi6f Financial Officor

Sonsli PaPoI & Eoard Mill8 Ltd

2 t APR 202

*mffi,me sorl,u pnpgR I Eo;,PD t.l:t-Ls t-lD

2TAPRMz

Company Secretary
Sonali Popt & Boud Mills Ltd.

2 4 APR 2022 ,

m:ftfri:G"
UCB ln\i estment Limlleo



.) Medicil Ald Bcn€fit
The company provides medical aid benefit to all employees.

2.17 Wckerr Profit P.rticiFti@ fund

The cwrpany has inEoduced wckers prof,it panicipaticr frurd in accordame with chapa 15 mder labour
Act 2006 as am€nded in 2013.

2.18 Rcv.nue Rccotnition

Revenue has been recqinized as per IFRS 15: Revenue from contract with cu6tomer6 rmder 05 (five) 6tep

approach of recognizing revenue. According to the core principal of IFRS 15, the entity has recognized

revenue to depict the trander oI promise goods or service to custom in an amount that rerlects the

consideration (paymcnt) to which the entity e)(pects to be entided in o<changing for thce goods u service.

05 (five) step approach applied are as follows :

i. Identify the contracu
ii. ldentiify the se?arate performance obligatiqv
iii. Determine the transaction price;
iv. A.llocate the price to the performance oblitations;
v. Recognize revenue.

Intercst Inc@rc

It i6 lecogized on accrual basis.

2.19 Foreign Currcn y Tr.nslction

Transactions in Forcign Curencies are translated into BDT at the rate of exchange ruling on date of
tlansaction in accordance with IAS 21. Monaary assets and liablities eryrressed in foreign ourencies are

translated into BDT at the rate of exchange rulint at the Statement of Financial P6ition date. Gains or loss€s

resulting fiom foreign currency lran&rction6 are taken to tie Statern€nt of Profit or Ioss and Other
Compreheasive lncome.

220 Statemertr of, Cech flows

Statement of Ca6h Flows has been prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 "Statem€nt of Cash Flows"

and the cash flows from the operating activitie6 have been pre6€nted unde( ditect method.

221 Eerning Per Shere

Thir has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS 33: Eamings Per Share has best

calculated by the profit atkibutable to otdinary equity holders of the courpany by the weighted average

nuurber of ordinary shares outslanding during the period.

222 Reletcd Perty Tranactiur

There wa6 no relat€d party transaction durin8 the year other than Director Remrmeration and MeetingFeec

a6 di6clGed in Note-18 & 30.

2-23 Finance Co3t
Finance cct (Borrowins Co6t) incurred during the year was recognized as levenue exP€nditue in
accordance with IAS 23'Borrowing Cosl," Finance co6i compriE€s interest on borowings and bank

commission & charges.

Md. ul Hossain
Company Secretary
Son{ P4or & Board Milh Ltd'

2 ( APR 2022

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chi6f Fhancial Ofiicor

SondiPeger & Bosrd l i[r ttd

2 [ APR 2022

tmffi4 sottAr.tpApeR e EoAR! trrl-ts tI!

2 { APR 2022
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Managing Director & CEO

uCB lnvestment Limited

2t APR ?312
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224 Provisions

ln accCdanc€ l'ith the guidelineE a6 prcEcribed by IAS 37: Provisiuu, Contingent Liabilitie6 and Contintent
Assets, provisions are recognized in the following situations:

a) when the company has an obligation (le6al or conctructive) as a result of past sv€nts;

b) wh€n it is probable that an outflow of reeources embodyint economic bqtefits wifl be requircd to settle

the obligation; and

c) reliable €stimates can be made of the amount of the oblitation,

2:5 Event Aft€r thc Rcpatint Period

Evslts aftq the re?orting date that provide additiqEl information about the Cotnpan/s FGition at the
reportint date are r€{lected in the financial stat€ments. Evsrts aJt€r the reportint date that are not adiu5tinE

events are didosed in the noteo when material.

227 Condngent Liabilltlcr

There are Contingetrt Liabilities as retards National Board o( Revenue (NBR) caee aSainst Custom6 Duty oI
TL 190914362 since 1996 and Tita8 Gas ca6e of Tk 123,789,334 since 2006 Totaling Tl( 314703696 which
are pmding in the Court8 and Tribunal&

. Accounting Policies and Explanatory Note6 to the Financial Statenent6 for the year ended 30 Jurc 2021 .

2.29 Genetal

The Financial Statem€nto are prepard and pres€nted in Banglad€Bhi Currery $aka) which is the
Company'e Functional currency. All financial inforrEtion preaented have beerr rounded qlf to near$t
Taka.

ossarn ohammad Ziaul Haque

xSrr*
MANAGING DIRECTOR
S0lv/4llP/4PER & 80AR0 l,,/irs tID

2 t APR20n

r"nriltfii,
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited
2 r APR 20:2

)

Company Secretary
&nali Paper & Eoard llills Ltd.

2 I APR ?022

Chiof Flnanclal Ofricor
Soosli P.por I Bo$d ltillt ttd

2 { APR m22

tb

225 Scgm.nt Rcpadry

No setmmtal repo*ing is ap,plicable for the codrpany as required by IFRS 8: 'Segment RcportinT' aa the

company operates in a single industry segment ard within a single geographical territory.

2.28 C@rponents dBln n l.l St tements

The Financial Statemmts comprise the followints;
. Statemert of Financial PGition as at 30 June 2021;
. Statement of frtofit q toos and Other Cornprehensive Income for the.veat erded 30 lune 2021;
. Stat€rnent of Chante in Equity fo the year ended 30 Iune 2021;
. Stat€meart of C-ash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2021; and

Md.



Noae # Parti(uI ars

3.m Eq.rty, n.! ..d Equipo.it Tlc 5;7AAOA39
Th€ b..ak-up i6 ar below:

C6(
opening Balance
Additidi dudrg the year

Adiushl€ dudnt the yedr

Clcing Ealance
A.cumsl.tcd f ,cFcd.tidr
Opening Balance
Chrr8.d during the yea,
AdFsln.rrt durin8 the year
Closing Balence
ftitt n Dorrn Vrlu.

5.00

5s7 An 373
s8342409

(19,193,602)

492,077,018

60150"355

Note5.01
Note5.02
Note5.03
Note 5.04

89255.395
74,764,056
78,031,994

224,432

190514,16,9

12579,822

60,712,492

116590

3966286
37,784fr7

9422,864
31,4a7,60a

41;751,1

40,105262
40,910A76
36,944,190

@ning Belance
Add: Pwchase & lmport durin8 the year
Available for Use

l*ss: Corsumption dudngthe Year
O6in8 Bdan e

5.02 Materi.l3-In-Prftess

Opcrrin8 B.lance
Add: Input lrosr Store during the yeat
Available f or Ploductioi
166: hoduction (Proces6 Colrpletcd)

L66: Clo6ing Balance
N6nia! Pr6c'' Lds
X o( Normal Pra€6s L066

35

AfioErt in Taki
2020-tt

Am@* in T.li
201920

6,2Aa,497,97
61A53,472

742,740
40,1052E2

743387
36914,190

40284,O22
32,737,790

37,O47,577

29,695,13E

7 550232
206,05E

7 392439
782;740

6349,945A69
43347 33t

(32,e56fi7)
6360836,619 6,319,945,469

3,955285

Quantiw GG) ta"..rtt(KGn

596,626;tE0 557 477)71
s;764210139 5,792,458 t95

kailB of Prop€rty, Plant and Equipm.nt along with depleci.tion charged thereon as or 30 Jue 2021 has beetr showa
in AnncrErc-'A'. Fu.tl anldnrt of depreciatiGr has been cha!8ed to adnrinisEative €re€n6€s.

56550 Decimal tand under Mouza: Tarabo, SRO Rupgoni, District: Narayangoni and the prop€r9/, plant and
equipmmt of the company has be€n pled8ed as security against loan with Islami Bant Bangladesh Limited, Chawk
Mugoltolly Branch, Dhaka.

1933s0380
245 930,889

Total 439287259

Details oI investment in shares (company wise) as on 30 June 2021 has been shoun in Annerura-nP

IrrEntci.cr Tlc 182,278175

The bicak-up is aE belorr,:

Raw Mataials
Materials-ln-Prce66
Flnished fus
SparE Parts

To..l 7t221t875 263,9XA7f

The basG of valuatisr is stated in note 2.13. DEtail6 of Inv€rttrics hav. bcerr ehown in Armcrre '8".
The inventories o{ the compeny has be6r pledged as g€curity a8ainst loan with Islami Banlg Bangladesh Umite4
Chawk Mudtoly Br.nclL Modhufioti Bank Limited, Aganagar Branch and Pubali Bank Uriit€4 Gulshan Corpor.te
Branch.

5.01 Rrw Matcriale

t a"fit txcll t a"*'tttl[q-]

7,341;t?1 7 209,599

22.43 14.2a

Md. ul Hossain
- )t\r6'

. MANA6'NG DIRECIOR

'iolt,qLtp,cprR 
a eoARD Mrus LID

2 T APR fl}A

Tanzim mgir
ZiaulHaque

Chiof Financial Officor

a
Company Secretary
Sonali Paptr t Eoard Milh Ltd.

2 t APR m22 SonalltuPsr & Betd iliilr ttd

2 ( APR 202

{O0 ltrwBtncrd in Shircf;TL 439 2A1269
The break-up is as below:

Bdldnc€ as p€t Portfoli,o of SBL Capital Marugernent lintited
Balance as per Por{olio of EBL Securitiee Litdted

7,64s977

Managing Director & CEO

ucB lnvestment Limited

2 !, APR 20:2



Noar {t ParticularB

5.03 [ini6hed Goods

Opsing Balance
Add: Production during the year
AvailaHe Ictr 5ale6

I-ess: Sales during the year
Claiqg B.lrltc

5.04 Sp.re P.ttr: Tlc Zl4l32
The treak-up ie as below:

opcning Belance
Add: h,rchace during the year
AvailaHe foi Use

l6s: Cql6uErplion (Machine Rep. & Maintenan.e)
cldint B.lar€

Toaal

5.01 TrrdeReceiv.blcr:Tk.152159115
The tneak-up is ae below:

Op€ning Balance

Add: Sale6 durin8 the year (Note { 16.00)

l-ess: Realised during the year

tese: Provisisr for Bad Debts
cl6int B.l.!rr

5ll2 Benl lntcr.sl Rccciveblc: Tlc E7,EE5

fhe b,reak-up is ae below:

opening Balance

Add: Bank Int€rest lncome durin8 the year

37

A.66rnl inT.La
2020.21

Amorult in T.h
201920

Quantity (KG) t-a.r."ttty (KCt I
1,00E201

32717,7
724A95

29,695,lX
33,715l47
32842,728

30119633
29A11A32

8n282
647 )5o

572,90a
45637a

Amount in Tika Amount in Ta-ke

11659{' 149,235

755,792 423f73

224A32 1r6F90

5-0o Trrde and Other Receivables: Tlc 1g,77EJA

(i) Trade and Other Receivables o(cutred in the ordinary couree of hr.siness are iru€cure bd cottsidered good This is

arril,ed at as follows:

Trade Receivable6

Bank Intere6t R€ceivable
Cash Dvidcnd Rcccivablc

Note 6.m
Note 5.(D
Note 6.03

75236e475
87886

2320E7O

197,132584
1.O7:t07

151;77Eln 7n24o2n

791,132,584
1.506,938,531

1.66,18l,nO

To..l 752,*9A75 191;112584

7 ,69E,0Tl 275
1544926,695

775105

1 ,66r:769 324
1,469,4E4,070

7).52:7X

707,707

121563 268,290

la&s: Realised during the year
Claing Belarre

5l)3 Carh Dividend R.ceivrble: Tlc 2r2or7,
The treak-up is as below:

Portfolio of SBL C3pital Managem€ht Ltd.
Portfotio o{ EBL Securitie6 Limited

Aridr of Trad€ Rcccllnblca
Below 30 days
Wirhin 31-60 days
Within 51-90 days
Above 90 days
Provi6ion for Bad Dett6

229270
141)44

To.rl 87F*s

268,290
160JE3

-JW
1,060874
7,259,997

2320,E70

6260EtA5
72,627 571
\n52e3

17s272,96s
(1,152,730)

Ioaal 152,359415 191,132544

42458,520
27?00,EAo
71474,616
n570504

(77s,10s)

Md. Ras ul Hossain
Company Secretary
Snali Papd & Board Milh Ltd.

2 ( APR 2022

Ziaul Haque

r"naSxtLf-gi,
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limiled
?. L A?7, 2312

MAA//qGING DIRECIOR
SONAU PAPER & BOAfiD MIITS tiDChief Financial Officer

Somff Pap€t & Boald Mills ttd.

2 t APR 20n

t
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Amolrnt in Trk
2020-27

Amount itr TJ(r
20L9-20

Note il Prrticulars

7!0 Adv.n .6, Dcpcits & Prrprrtarnt : TL l9rl9,t37
The break-up is as below:

(ii) Th€te wa6 no anlorht firc by the Dlrectors (lncluding Managing Dilecto), Man ging A8crts, Managerr and othe
ofricEs of the Coopany and any d th€m r€vcrally or jointly with eny otha pftsdr.

Party wise schedule has betlt .nclGed in .{.8!.rur.-"C!.

ft chrlificrtion oa r.c.ivabl.. .r rGquircd by fhc rhcdulc Xl d lhc ConrFnic. A.t,199 't. iv.n b.Iow:

Receivable.onsid€red good in r€sp.ct o{ which the company ir fiIly s.clrrld
R€ceivable .qlsid.!€d 8ed in rcsFct of whkh th. comp.ny holdB no s€curity
oth6 than the d€bt6 p.'sonat 6.curity - 752:69A15 191'13258''

Receivablee consider.d doubtful bad 775105 7,752,730

Receivable to DirectoE
ReceivaHes due by commcrr managErrrlt
The maximum amqmt o{ leceivaue due by any dtectd or oth6 of,licE o( th€
comPany.

Exed Security Depcits (Electric & Ga! Ljne)

Advance Income Tax

L/C Margin L fus tn Tr.nsit
Advance VATDepcit
Sdlaries & Allowance6 (Ansreet)

Se.rnity Dep6it6 (CDBL)

Earl Guarantee Maidn
MTDR (ien vrith Islani Banf Bsngbde6h frd)
Repaid Insrance Premium (Flie)

990281r
7,fi3,623

27,17r3U
626Io4

7 574

200,000

2A92A17

2:127E22

10)n,654
626,ol
797574

2mrm
1.005819

22esla
1b63EO1

Note-7.(}l

Not€-7.02

Notc-7r3

Note-7.0{

7,790,678

1,663,E01

Toa.l 19;719,8a7 t2;15/i847

7tn Adv'rr|c. IrEcr. T.I: Tk 7,503,623

The break-up is as below:

Openin6 Balance

Add: Addition for the year

2721422

7,fi3i73
4,640817

2,721822

10"32S14S

(2721822)
7 362,639

(t$a14t-ess: Adiusted durint the yea!

Total 7,50.3,52t 2,727 822

Advance lncome Tax amoonting lk 272U22 hae been adlu*ed during the yeat fc th€ Ar.€ssment year 202G2021
and the balance o{ Tk 75,03,523 i6 carried fGward for the As6sBr.,tt y@t 2A7-mD,

7.02 VC M.rdn & Good6In Tr.nEih Tk.27,1n .!46 27,777 346 1.O,377,654

Total 27 )n,% 70in,654
The dttire adrount was paid 16 Impdt d law hat€rials.

7.03 Ady.rl.c VAT Dcpoeit T1.625,004
T}e b,reak-up is as below:

Op€ning Balance

Add: Depogit during the Year

626,0M 626,0M

525,OM 525,004

lrssr Adiusted durint the Year

Total 626,0U 526,004

Md. Ra Hossain ,t\s
. MANAGING DIRECTOR
- scttl,itp,tpgt g gcl.flr 1,r1!rs lL

2 t APR m22

1-f
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Direclo, & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited
2 r APR 2ti2

Company S€crotary
Sd hper & Board Milh Ltd.

? t APR 2022

Tot.l 753)a{F2O 7922A5)1.1

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chief Financlal Oflicer

So allPrpor E Boad Mills ttd

2 t APR 202?



Pr iculer8

7JX Pr€p.id Infitr.n G Prcmium (FirG): Tk 1663rfl
The tneak-up i.a a6 b€low:

Opering Balan(e
Add: Pallre'lt lnEurance ftedriudt (!ire)

lass: Adjusted du nt the vear (Note:1t.00)

-Anrr't|t ir TrL:
20D27

Amonnl irl Tekr
201920

1,663,807

2,E57230

39

2852230
4516,031 2,852230

1,1 88,129

Totrl 1,663101 r,663,E0r

Cash at Bank:

9J}0 Shrr. C.pit.l: Tlc 183P28830

The break-up is as below:

C-

36,6E7,057

4E65E,fiI3

76,944,642

1A194,n0

Amourt in Tak,

3E51,112

sBsT 3s
4871333
1315656

r,jr72654

110.831

14316,W
ri77 A9
7879j32
1J 23.j08

5E1,165

AmoEnt in Taka

1387 3A1

1158.866

7?0ln
882J11

452502

70982

3,116135

1,021,189

7,478,759

714,976

3E6,951

b) Cash in Hand

Tot.l E5r5tO50 35JE9472

The Bank Balances have been ftrrrciled where necmsarl' and were a8reed with the balanc€ as p€r b6nk statem€nts as m
3O-06-202f . Gsh in hand halance was duly certiIied.

.) 4s$s!!slc.D!lr!
500,00,000 ordinary uhares of Tk10 each s00.000,000 s00,000,000

b) Is.ued- Subr.ribcd rnd Prid -qp C.oit l:
1,5638985 ordinary 6hares o( Tk10 each.

Addr 16,63898 Bonus shares @ of Tk 10 each

Toarl 1r3,02,ttil .hdr. d TL 10 cr.L Totel 1t3,02tr31) 166rE9,t50

Distritirtio S.hedule Disclaures Undtr the Listing Regulation o( Stock ExchanS€s:

The paition of shardrolden as on 30 rune 2021 is as followa:

Particula$ d InvcstorE
No of

Investoas
Numbcr of Shares

Pcr.ant t! of
Shre Holding

2tat-2021

Sponsor 1 2,809 0.02% 0.02%

Diirctors other than Spcnsor 3 13,165,122 72.M% 72.M%

General Public 1291 4,{83,41E 24j9% 2t.27%

Financial Institutes 582567 3.18_"t 636%

['rivate Corporate lnstitute 1 13,169 0.07?" 0.r0%

9xpense A/C 1 15,798 0.20% 0.21%

Total 1AO4 18,302,883 100o/o ltlllo/o

166369.E50

16,638,980

151263500

15,126350

Md. Ras Hossain
med Ziaul Haque

Chi.f Financisl Officsr

Sonall PaPs & Board llill! ttd

2 ( APR 2022

i.'

2 [ APR 20?2

r"n=i}Arfrsr,
Managing Director I CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

24 APR ffi:?

Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Boatd Milh Ltd.

2 t APR 202

8.nl Name Brlnch N.me A..ount No

Islami Bank Bangladesh Lr4
Shahialal l6lami Bonk Lrd
Al- Ardah l6l.mi Bank Ltd.

National BanL Lrd.

Sondi Bank t td.

Shahialal Islami Bank lrd"
Dutch Bangla B.nk Ltd.

Tlre Premiet Banl Ltd
Modhumoti B6nk Ltd.

Marrantile Bank Ltd

Pubali B6nk Ud.

Chawk Mutoltoly
Dhanmodi
NerY El€phant Road

N€'\^, Elephant Road

Nerd Elephant Ro.d
Dhanhdrdi
Dhanmondi

Bangshal

AgrnagBr

Nrryabezar

GUI!han

1766

8919

246E

1464

6338

73d7

2978

4197

0004

5618

1E60

tJ)o Creh & C.6h Equiv.lcntr: nc t5,365,060
The b(eak-up iE 6s below:

Percentate of
thetc Holding

20]9-2020



Particulars

40

Amount in T:k
2020-27

Amount in Taka
2019-20

The djstribution schedule showing the number of share holders and their shate holdings in Percentate has be€n disclG€d

10,00 R€valuation R€s ervQtT]f'4,927 '445,a84
4,921A46,858

The company made tevaluation of its fix€d assets (only land) by 
'n 

indePendmt valuer M/S S H Khan & Co' Chartered

o...""il.iJ* t t u"y 2016. Moreor'er the Board ;f Directors apProved .t 45th meetht hetd on 30 May 2016'

11.00 lrry Term Benl tl,e TIL332P77'55O

The break-uP is as beloB':

Modhumoti Bank Limited.
(Aganagar Branch. Keranipni. Dhakal

t anA/CNo # 00003

Loan A/C NO# 00004

t an A//CNO f 00006

Lran A/C NO # 00009

Pubali BanI Limited.
(Gulshan Corpotare Branch- Dhaka)

lran A/CNO | 0E361

I-Ess: Currenl Pottion of lonS term loan

r!

49,075,873

1,935,894

40,257,79X

20,272.583

447,5a2397

461,854,9E0 9126E'960

1.4
Tanzirfr-Alamglr

Managing Direclor & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

Z I, APil 2.:2

id2a,977

The total long term bank loan is lyrng with Modhumoti Bank Limited Aganagar Brsnch' Keranigoni' Dhaka and Pubali

Banll-mited, Culshan Corporate Branch, Dhaka

Md. Radpdul Hossain
Compaoy Secretary
Sonali P{.tt Board Milh Ltd.

2 { APR 2022

*kffi,ffie sottAtrprreR 6. goARD llitts tio

2 4 APRNN

As p€r Folio As per BO ID Total

Holding

Toaal

Shrr€
Percentate (%)

Holders Shares Holders Shares

l-e$ thnn 500 I8{ 15,860 7t8 1tl,L75 922 127 )35 0.70

501 to5,000 t2 16,207 100 501,683 3r2 517,890 2.83

5001 to 10,000 I 5,777 27 217,699 28 223,476 1.22

10,001 to 20,000 1'I 153,638 11 153,638 0.81

20,001 to 30,000 { ,1 99,306 0.5.1

30,001 to 40,000 2 69,961 2 69,963 0.38

.10,001 to 50,000 t 1A6,692 { 186,692 7.02

50,001 to100,000 7 526,742 526342 2.88

100,00r to1,000,000 11 3,2r3,119 11 1,21a,119 1?.36

Over 1,000,000 I 13,185,122 3 13,1A5,122 72.01

Totil 79 t' 37,8.t4 1,107 18:65,039 1J0-r 18J02,883 100

2 ( APR 2022

--2

Total 4,9/1A46,A58

ZiaulHaque

175,792,251\

Total 332,A77,660 15,476,709

Chiol Financial Oficer

SoisliPapor I Boatd

Rente od Sh.re
Holdin6s

ili s Ltd.



ParticularsNote #

Amount in Taka
2020-21

Amount in Taka
2019-20

41

5;792,468,496

5,419 221:147

12.00 Deferr€d T.,( Li.bility: Tk 289J24,S95

The break-uP is as below

Calculation of Deferred Tax :

A. Tempor.ry DiIf er€nae:

Written down valu€ as pel accountint base

Written dol^tr value as P€rtax base

Taxable temPorary dif f erence

Deductible temPorary difference (Gratuity)

Incone Tax Rale

D€ferted T.x Li.bilities at the end of th€ year

B. Rrvalurtion:
Carrying Value

tand
Tax rate:

tand
Deferred T.r Li.bilitics.t the €nd of th. yc.r

Closing Dererred Tar Uabiliti€s

oFning Def€rred Tax tjabilities
Deferred Tax ass€t / Uability

Deferred T.r Li.biliti€s at the end of the yeat (A+B)

13.00 short Term Brnk LoantTk. 540232253

The break-up is a5 belor:

lslami Bank BanSladesh LiEdted
(Chawk Moghultoly Branch. Dhaka.)

Forei8n Cash Bills (UPAS lC)
Murabaha TR

Modhumoti Bank Limited.
lAganaSar Branch Keranigoni. Dhaka'l

(CC Hypo)
Foreitn Cash Bills (UPAS t,C)

Stimulus t an

Pubali Bank tinlited.
(Gulshan Corporat€ Branch Dhakal

Ovcr qrafl l.an
Foreign Cash Bills (LIPAS tr)

SBL Capital Management Limited
(2. D.t.T Avenue. Motiiheel, Dhakal

Iran atainst lnvestment in Shares

EBL Securities Lrnited
(libon Bina Bhaban.10 Dilkusha- Dhaka)

l-oan against Investment in Shares

82324596

5,175,000,000 5,175,000,000

4%

207,000,000 207,000,000

367,234,647

(1,347,554

365,8a7,093

2250%

207,000,000

207,000,000

300,241,039

280,451,849

10,160,830

2,548500
51,365,889

44,m 311
92,198,679

77,225,95?

ta',935,571

5,764,270 439
5,396,975,792

Total 2A9324,596 300,060J4'l

7A,669,175

TheabovebalanceswereinagreementwiththebalancesasFrr6PectivebankloanstatementandPortFoliostatements
as on 30 June 2021

Hossaln
Secretary

& Bo8rd Milh Ltd.

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chiof Financial Officer

Sonall Papet E Board Mill6 ltd.

2 { APR 2022

**ffi.#
satlAu PAPER ! lCt.P9 t.l!_:_S lit
2{APRMz

'1; f
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

? !. APR 23:l

Md
Company
SondiPrper

2(APR ?tlz
,c

373,246,356

{1.004,980)

372247376
25%

9t050J4{

207,000,000

207,000,000

90,376,032

Toral 6402A2253 71?,668881



ParticulnrsNote *
Amount in Taka

2020-21

Amount in Taka
2019-20

225,650 125,530

14.00

1{.01 Provision for V.lue Added Tax (VAT): Tk 5311J01

The bieak-uPis as b€lo$':

Openrng Balance

Add; CoUection with Sales during the Year

kss: Deposit during theYear

14.02 Provision for Cratuity: Tl" 1r47J54

The break-uP is as below:

Opening Balance

Add: Addition durint the Year

trss:Payment during the Year

15.00 Provisionfor lncome Tax: Tk 22361,352

The break-uP is as below:

Op€nin8 Balance
Add: Addition for theyear (Note:22.00)

Add:lncomeTax on Stock dividend

Less Adiusted dirring theYear

Less: Payment duing theYear

Trad€ and other Payables: Tk. s7r24533

The break-up b as below:

Trad€ PaJables:

Raw Materiab SuPPIier (Details are enclced in Annexue "D")

(xher Pavabl€s:
Provision for Value Added Tax (VAT) Note'1{ 01

Audit & Pro(essional F€es

Gas Bill
Bectticity Bill
lnternet BiIl
Wa8es & Salaries

Salary & Allowances
Overtime BiI
Telephone & Mobile bill
Provision for W.P.P.F

Interest Payable on MIR
Unclaimed Dividend up to F/Y: 2018-2019

Unclaimed Dividend for the F/Y: 2019-2020

Provision for Foreign ExchanSe Rate l-oss

Provision for Gratuity Note-14'02

Registiation, Rate & R€newal Fees Payable

5311501
138,000

32,505,490
2,763,6n

17,750
4,530,696

3)-42,780
1,784,861

33"335

4J70,606

3,100319
212,250

25332,795
1,919,983

41,085

3,652306
3A06,639
7395,039

3a,793
1,893,085

13,555,78\
64,a78

69,835
1,004,980

3,100J19
86,934,254

953A7AO2 a5,934254
(90,069,901) (83,833, 935)

Total 5311501

1,004,980

718,098 1,004,980

1,723,O78 1,004,980

(375,524)

Total 1,347,554

ProvisionforlncomeTaxamountinsTk,2,T2l,S22wasadjustedfromadvanc€incometaxandTkSI0TS03waspaidfor
the assessment year 2020-2021. Am;unting Tk 22,861352 is temainiflS balance for Prdision for Income Tax'

33,990,6n
(2,721,822)

38,45] A67
(4,640,817\

(8,407 503) o 32\

Total 22,867352

17,308,318

16,682359

26,402,359
10,385,210

1,663,898

Md. Ra I Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chlof Financial Of,icor

Sonali Papu A Board Mills Lld.

2 
', 

APR 2022

t$rs'-ffi
etorvlLrpleEne solno r,;riis i;:

2{APRMz

Company Secretary
Sonali Pars & Board Mills Ud.

2 { APR 2022

17J08r18

64,874
39,954
15,420

7,147,554
592,38r

Total 57324533

42

sstl3199

3,100319

1,004880

,""=ta,fr,,
Managing Director & GEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

2 { A?n 2il2



Note # Particulars
Amount in Taka

2n20-21

Amount in Taka
20t9-20

1,506,938,631

(922E1,083)

43

1,495,584554

(86,934254)

16.00 Rev€nuer TL 1rU,657.548
The break-uP is as below:

salet (lncludint VAr)

trss : Value Added Tax (VAI)

Sal€s Ouantilvl

Writing Paper & Board PaPer (Note r 5.03)

1?.00 CoGt of Sa I es r Tk.1,230,02? 344

The brcak-up is ss below:

openint Stock oI Raw Mr(edals & Chemicals

Add bc.l PuEhas€ of Riw Matdials & Ch@ri.als

Add: tmport o( Rlw Materitb & CheEricals

fus Available ,or Cslsomed

1-€5s : Cl6ifl8 Stock of Raw Mate als & Chemicals

Raw M.tedab Us.d

Add- Factory Ovcrh.ad

wage5 & Salarie6

overtime Bill

Festival Bonus

oil & tlbticant
Gas BiI
Electricity Bill

Work€rs Tilfin

Machine Repaits & Maint€nance (Noae 5.0t1)

Depreciation Ch.rges (Anner e"A")

Add: Opening Stock ol Material-ln-Process

t-er6: Oo6int Stock ol Material_ln-Process

CGt of Production

Add : Openint St(k of Finished Goods

l-ess: Closing Stock ot Finished Goods

cost of srles

Total 1,414,65754a 1,408,650J00

32,843 MT 29,417 MT

lm$74,769

!57,031,170

4na54,N4

252,581,863

272,005599

667,674976

1,025,000,243

(89,255395)

1 ,r32,262,431

(190514,169)

935,?44,a4a 947,74a,268

51.,838,729

21,157,685

4,809,048

5291,622

744395,E77

r0,72858O

6s230

647 350

54,855,115

50,29a,476

79,299,447

4,455,797

4,936,640

136,647,477

20,180,127

60,042

156318

56,764,784

1,249,534,084

12,579,E22

1,234,U? 376

9,750350

1,262,11!,906

174,764,056)

12t7349,E50

60,712,492

r232,017,914

57 301,521

1,244 597 ,736

172,579,822)

1.2A9319A15

(r0,n2,492)

,"n#rn,i.f^si,
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

u ! A?n 2i:2

1308,062342

178,034,9941

Md. ul Hossain
Chi6f Finanoiel ofiicor

CompanY Secretary
Sortll Paer & Board Mills Ltd.

2l APR m22

Sonall P80ot I Board

2(APRMz

MiIs Ltd. ,c

Torll r23O,O27348 122a,606,943

Ziaul Haque
MANAGING DIRECTOR
solhl/PAPER I 80/qfl0 t/us lID.

2t APRzmz



ParticularsNole #

44

Amount inTaL.a
2020-21

Amount in Taka
2019-20

18.00 Administrative EtPensesr Tk. 671552{6

The break-uP is aB balowr

Salaries & Allowances

F€stival B@lus

Telephone & Mobile bill

Ofiice Rent

Dir€ctors Meeting Atten&nce F€€6

Directots Remunera tion

Travelling & ConveY.nce

ACM E\P€ns.'s

Annual Ljstrng Fees

Entertainment

Spar€ Parts (Motor Car)

Oil & Fuet (Motor Car)

Ituurance t'rellium (Fire) (Notcr.Ol)

I-Gs on Fne (Notq 1t.01)

Staff Uniform

Office Maintenan.e

Intemet Bill

Eectrical ExFtrs€.

StationerieB

Nevrs PaF & Periodicals

PGtaEe & StamPs

Medical Aid ExPenses

Registratio& Fate & Renewal Fees

Allowince for Bad Debts

GtatuitY

ForeiSn Exchante Rale Lc6

Unrealiseil t €s on Investment in s-}ur€s (AnrErue 'E )

Fees & Charge6 on lnvestment in Shares (Aturerrrc' 'B)
Mi6.ella neous ExFnseg

Audit & Itofelsionsl F€e6

l,egal Fet3 & ExPenses

Bank Charges

Depr€.iati@ Chr.ges (Anncxurc''A')

39,591,061

2,n1495
427,62i

276,0N

25920o

2,700,0N

325,8D.

289,000

433,16E

48/,761

1317,009

E15395

28s2230
253,9U

9,225

12{,608

451,590

34,0m

31{r00
3,860

9390

41,630

2,704,655

37,E85,876

3,026,415

469p52

276,0A0

249,600

3,900,000

2n,228

431,700

1;178,900

384109

2,895,774

915,881

1)88A29

125,652

563J96

3r8567

92,675

548,081

5,750

12,820

7a,250

1A11,652

1,752J30

1,004,980

69,815

71a,098

15,420

1AE?:714

2,494,092

467,474

254,000

145,930

1,456,637

3A87 29s

381,7

212250

10,510

567,902

3,595572

Tot.l 6?A63215 69529232

Dfueclors M..ting Attcn&ncc Fces: Tlc 259100

D.ectorsMeetingAttendanceFe€'amountin8Tk25g,20owasPaidtosixDi'€cto'sfromwhich.gumofTk.2l,00was
deducted as VAT-and Tk 21,600 as Tax at source and were duly Paid to Govt Rev A/C vide challan'

Directors Remuneratio Tlc 2700,000

During the year the above smount was Paid as Dreclor Remuneration to thr€e DLectors from which a sum of Tlc

232,265 was deducted at source astax and duly Paid'

Allocation of DGPreciatlon

The totrl Depr€ciation a[ocated into C6t of SaIe6 and Adminbtrative Exp€ns€s durirg the yeat and subc€quentty the

prior yea! comPar.tive has been restated.

18i1 I-Gs on tire: TL.253,98{

Arireccurredlnthefactorybuildintdurinsthe[inancialyea'anddamaSedGenerators,TheabovelG6igarriv€data5

Total Ic on Fire

l€ss : InsuranceClaim Received

1-G! on Fite Totil

13553rE4
13300-000

2$,94t

Md. I Hossain Mohammed Ziaul Haque

Chiaf Finsnci8l Ofiicsr
Sonsll PaP€t A 808ft, Uills [td

2 { APR 2022

MANAGING DIRECIOR
SOI./AU P/CPER & 8OAR9 il[IS TID

?I APR2W

L:f
Tanzim Alamglr

Managing Direclor & CEO
UCB lnvestment Limiled

Z! APfl 2]:2

Cmrpany Secretary
trl PaFr & Boatd Mills Ltd'

? ,, APR 2022

Ic



ParticularsNote il

45

AErount inTaka
2020-2j,

Amounl in Taka
2019-20

19.00 S€llin6 .nd DisEibution ExP€rLses: Tk.8,428596

The break-uP is as below:

Salaries & A[owanc6
Packing & Binding ExPenses

Repairs & Maintenance
Bu6iness Promotion ExPenses

Delivery, t ad & Unload ErPens€s

Sales Promotion E\Fnses
Sample ExPensej

Fin.nce Cost Tk 61221,079

The bteak-uP is as below:

MTR (lslami Bank Bangladesh lrd.)
UPAS (lslami Banl Bangladesh Ltd )
CC Hypo (Modhumoti Bank Ltd.)

Term toan (Modhudroti Bank Ltd.)

UPAS (Modhudoti Bank Ltd.)

OD (Pubali Bank Ltd.)
LrPAS (Pubali Bank Ltd.)

T€rm Iran (Pubali Bank Ltd.)

Stimulus (Modhumoti Bank Ltd.)

21.00 Othe. lncome: Tk- 52,557,{51

The break-uP is as below:

(.) ErlLlaerclllls@i
MTDR A/c No. 838089/2839 (IBBL)

MTDR A/C No: E383{1 /3089 (IBBL)

STD A/C No: 13a7 (SIIBL)

SND A/CNo: 1860 (Pubali Bank Ltd.)

{b) In ome froms.les of shtres lRcalise G'in):

Portfol io of SBL Ca Pital Msnagement Ltd'

Portfolio of mL Securit ies l-imited

lc I c.sh Dividcnd Incom.:

Portlolio of SBL CaPilal Management tld'
Portfolio of EBL S€cutities timited

(d) 8.d Debts RecoverY

Openint Balance of Bad Debts

t-es! Ctosing Balan(e of Bad Debts (Note:5 00)

(e) ln.ome from s.les oa Moto, vehi.le:

5al6 Value of Motor Vehicle
Purchase Value of Motor Vehicle

t€a5: Depreciation
Written down Vatue of Motor Vehicle

Total a,428596

2,612,192
2,872,526

317 527
377 500
473,770

1,010,990

36E,255

415J36

4)37,167
2,0!9,a78

4r0,750

903)26
s75,071

87s270
7s2380

721729

20.00

Md. Ras Hossain

7,0r6J90
9,608,103

344,6n
2,6?22s1
2,2792EE

506,076
363,935

35,142,397

3347,806

1L,1143E2
7,248,126

72501,204
15A73,894
16,A51,772

Total

26A,290

212,567
5t,731

1J98

49,256488

12,053.220

37

2320810

377,625

1,152,730

05

590,905

800,000

1,470,000
(1260,905)

Chl.f Financhl Oficor
Solrsil Psps & Eoad llik tld.

2 t APR2012

MANAGINC DIRECTOR
SOIIAII PAPER & EOARD MITTS ITD

ZiaulHaque
s\t'"c-^'*

1

82,001

29585
t26t

,r

24APRM2

1ors8r46

1,060874
1,259,99?

209,O95

Total 52,657,457 268290

Company Secretary
}liP.PeI & Bosd Mills Ltd.

? 4 APR 2022

'La
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limiled

2I, APR 2cT



Particulnrs

46

2020-27 2019-20

a7,861,706

2200 Income T.x ExPens.: Tlc 5,945,611

The break_uP is as bclow:

Cttxesl.I3r
Net hofit befor€ Tax

trss: lncome from Sales of sha.es (Realise Gain)

lrss: lncome trom Cash Dividend

Net Profit berore Tax (without income from Sales of Share and Cish Dividend)

Add: Accounting DePreciation

Add: Provision for Gfttuity (Net off PaFnent otTk 375'5241

95,412,724
49,256,488

2,320,870
43F34,766

5A,142,109

3A$74

37161,706
60,460,355

1,004,980

l2ss: Tax base DePr€ciation

Tarable Income

Tar Fate

Income T.x on Stock Dividend

10% lncome Tax on R€alise Gain of Sales of Shares CIk 49'256'{88'10%)

20% Incodre Tax on Cash Dividend lncome (Ik 2,f20,a70'2i%l

102,519,?49 99327,Mt
700 57,7a6,203

50,189,M9 {15{0,839
22.50% 25%

17,292,536 10,385,210

1,663,898

4,925,649
464,1?4

16,682359

2A9324,596
300,060,344

12,049,108

Delerred Tax

CtosinS frelerred Tax Liabililies (Note

Opening Delerred Tax Liabilities

Deterrd Tax (ln ome)/ ErPenses

300,060,344t2 001
300,980,127

110,735,748) 919,7831

Total 1 1 ,325

23,00 Net Asset value (NAv) Per Share with Revaluation

Number of Shares

Net Asset Value Per Share

5,204,015,939

18J02,883

5,1u,869377
r 6,638,985

89,465,514 26,732,381

24.00 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Surplus for the year attrit table to Shareholderc (Net Income)

Number of Shares

ErrninF Per Shaie (Rest.ted)

25.00

Op€rating Cash lnflow durrng the Period

Number of Shres (R.steted)

kevious y€ar's EPS has be€n .diusted in accordance with IAS 33: Eamings Per Share'

During tie Financial year our sales and others Income have b€en increased as a re6ult EPs has abo been in reas€d

compare to the Financial Year 2019'2020

C.sh nows Per Share from OPeralint Activitiet

247,635,768
18302,883

1353

243585,103
18302,883

18,302,883 1

4.89 1.46

Durrnt the year the comPany purchased less quantity of raw materials an'l uied a siSnllicant Portion of the raw trate als

i"rJ ri goi.rto as inventory tor productio; of ri"islea gooas' Foi this reason durinS the yeat oP€tatint 
'ash 

flows

incredsed in comParlson h ith prevlous year

26.00 lmplicrtion of COVIDl9 on Busin€ss

On 11 March 2020, World Health Organization (WHO) d€(lared a Slobal Pandemi( du€ to Co'ona Virus rclated

respirarory dis€as€ comElonly caued as cbuD-19. To conrain the spr€ad oI this disease, along with many other countrie3

olth€world,GovernmentofBansladeshhasalsotakenanumbero'measulesslrch.sdeclarationofgmeralholi&y,
enlorcemenloflockdown,socialdistancingetc,Asaresultofthesemeasuresallbosincssand€conomk.ctivitiesal€
adversely a ffected which also imPacted our business

Md. ul Hossain
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Oflicer
Sonafl Papst & Boad Mills [td,

2L APR2l,Z2

,r{ffi
T.

? tr APR 2022

ComDanY Secretary
Sotdit4er & Board Mills Ltd'

I t APR 2022

2
..(-

TanzimlAiamgir
Manaqing Director & CEO.

UCB lnvestment Limrleo

Z ! A?R 2i:2

284.33 307.88

13.31



Pa(i.ulars

27.00 Recon.iliationo( Loss) afterTar with Cash Flows f rom Operatint Activities

Amount in Taka
2020-21

Amount inTaka
2019-20

26,732,381

50,460,355Net hofit/ (l-oss) 6fter Tax

Add: Depreciation
Add: lrss on Fire

Add: Disp6al of Motor Vehicle

Add: Finance Co6t

Add: Un eatised t-Gs on lnvestm€nt in Shares

lnss: Other Income

(lncrease)/De.reas€ rn Advance, DePGits and PrePaFent

(lncreas€)/Decrease in Trade and Other R€ceivable

(lncrease)/De.r€ase in lnventory
lrrcrease/ (Declease) in Tra de and Other PayaHes

tncrease/(De.rease) in Provlsion for lncodre Tar

Lrcr€as€/(DecreaEe) in Deferred Tax (or TemPotary Difference

Profit/l-oss A/C

Note-18.01
Note-21
Not€-20
NotF18
Note-21
Note-07
Note"O6

Note-05
Note-l4
Note.15
Note-12

Tolal

89,{65,5r4
58,342,409

253,984
209.095

61,221.079

\4a7,714
\50,797 ,E721

127 ,580,890)
36,462,120
81,644,197

1511,134

5,553.034

41

1268,290)
52,006,250

(2s,055,521)

55,859,906

17,695,068

(9,094,041)

('10,713,748\ 19"t9,783)

247 76A 243,585,103

28.00 Tax Assessment St.tus

lncome tax retum submitted by the comPany under income tax ordinance 1984 lmome tar Paid under se<tion_74 bssic of

In(om€ year Tar Liabilities

2076-207? 20't7 -2078 9,522,085 9,522,Oa5

201? -2078 2018-2019 I1,o.fl,0,17 t't,041,00

2018-2019 2019-2020 21,t43,149 21,144a]9

2019-2020 2020-2021 tl,'t29,325 11,'t29,125 Com

2020-2021 2021-2022 16,682,359 16,682,359 will be Subrnitted

29.00 SaIaryRanE€: Salary r.nte ofthe emPloyees are giv€n below

2020-202r
10 Person

19 Person
12 P€rson
13 Percon
1 Person

2019-2020
12 Person

15 Persofl

18 Person

12 Peison

Total 55 P€t3on

30.00 Payment to Directors

Details in resP€ct of PaYment to Dtectors are giv€n below

Name of Boa'd of
Dir€.tors

D€siBnation
No. of

MeetinS

MeetinS
Att€ndinE

Fees

Total MeetinB Directors Total (Taka)

Moharnmed Younus Chalrman 9,600 18,000 {8,000

Mahluza \ounus 9,600 {8,000 1,200,000 1,248,000

Director 9,600 .18,000 1,500,000 1,548,000

A.K.M Nurul Fazal Bulbul Dire.tor 9,600 {8,000 .18,000

Kazi Aslam tlossain Drrector l 9,600 28,800 28,800

,Ashlm Kumar Ro! 

-

Dtector 9,600 38,.r00 38,400

Total 259,200 2,700,oo0 2,959,200

(a) Durint the year total 5 board m€etings were held, total meeting fee was Tk' 2"59'200 in'luding VAT & Tax'

(b) During th€ Finan(ial Year Mr. Mohamhed Younus, Chairmsn of the ComPany did not rcceive any Remunerstion' MI5

Mahtuza Younus, Managing Directo, & CtlO received (12 Month X r'00'000)= Tk 12'OO'000 as Remuneration and Mt

v.i"--"a l"r"a r.ro-aln rleived (r2 Month x 1,25,000)'Tk l5'00'000 as Dte€tor R€muncration'

(c) No compersation $'as made to the Managint Dir€ctor & CEO of the comPany excePt as stated atrove

(d) No amounl was sPent by th€ comPany for comP€nsatint any member of th€ Board of Ditectors exc€pt as steted above'

,tJt.6-
ird. Hossain
Company Socr€tary
SoraliPaper & BoutlB Ltd.

2 i APR 2022

Ziaul Haque
Chief Financi.l Oflicer

SonrllP8P$ A Eoed ilh Ltd

2 { APR 2022

SOI.IATIPAPER E SOARD M/ttS T;.)

SI
5,000 - 15,000

15,001-25,000
25,001- 50,000

50,001-200,000

2,00,001-250,000

I
II
III
IV

l.
? I APR N22

1ra
Tanzim Alamgtr

Managing Director & CEO.

UCB lnvestment Limileo

2 ! A?R zii?

58 Derson

66,168,778

MD & CEO

+
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Amount inT.k
202&21

Amout in TrL
2019-20

,1.00 Production CaPacily and Ulili,ition:

Major Products Unit Production CaPr(itY
Actu.l

Production

Capacity
Utilization%

r & Board PnP(r 2020-2021 38,500 12.?38 85.03

Writing Paper & Board P.Per (2019-2020) MI 38,500 29,695 77.73

available in the ordinary course of business

35.00 Finencirl Risk M.n tcment

32.00 Event Aftet the RePodint Pcriod

a) The Board oI Diectors of the ComPany in it's deetint held on 16 September 2021 aPProved th€ linsncial 5_tateBl€nt6. ol

the comPany for the year 
"naua 

io J'o" 2021 an; authoriz€d the saEre for issue Th€ Boatd oI DLectors tlso

r€comm€nde.t 20% sto.k dividend and2;% calh dividend for all shareholders of th€ comPany for the year ended 30 run€

2o2lsubi€cttoapProvalinthenextAnnualGeneralMe€tin8hasnotbeenconsiilercdasaliabilityinthefinan.ial
statements which is in compliaNe with the Bangladesh AccountingStandard (tAS) 10 Para 12'

b)Thereisnoothe.significant€ventthathasoccurredbetweentheFinan(ialP6iuond,t€andihe.latewhenthe
Financial Stalements were authorized (or bcue by the Eoard of Dir€ctors'

33.00 C.pttal ExPenditure Com[rilment

Contract for caPital exPenditure ar€ beinS executed by the Contractols 
'ndlhe 

rumint bill are sccounted for but the

unjinish€d contracts has not been reflecied in ttris Financial statements. The.e was no mate al caPital exPenditute

authoriz€d bY theboard

34,00 Cl.im Acknowledt mcnt

Ther€ was no claim a gainst the ComPany actoowled8ed as det* as on 30 June 2021 '

35.00 Credit FacilitY

Therewasnocreditfacilityavailabletoth€ComPanyunderanyconir6(totherthant,ankcreditfacilityandtradecr€dit

The managemenl of comPany has overall for the estaHisllment and ov€rsiSht o' the comP'nl/s risk manaSehent

framework. Pisk manaSement Poli.ies, Prccedures and systEdrs are reviewed regularly to r€fl€ct chanSes in.market

conditioris anal the coi,pany's activities The 
"ornpuny 

L" exPo6uE to the fouowing rbk for its use of f'lnartbl

inslruments.

Credit Risk

Uquidity Risk
Mark€t Rilk

Credit Risk

CreditriskistheriskorafinanciallosstotheComPanyiJaCustomerolcounterPatytoafinancialinEtrumentfailsto
me€t itscontractual obligntions and anses Principalli fr;m the comPany's rec€ivables' ManrSement has t credit policy in

place that i5 controued;d monitored on an ongoing uasis.ln monitorrnS-credit risk receivabl€s are grouFd 6ccordinS to

irreir rist< profile, i.€. their l€gal status, financial cindition, ugtrng ptoiil" "tt 
Trade receivabl€s are related to sale ol

Media, tiner, Simplex, DuPIe; Board and Quatity Writhg PaPers- The maximum expGure to credit risk is repr€sented by

th€ carrying aErount of each financial assei in ihe statemeni of linancial position. Risk expcurcs f.om other financt.l

assets- i.e Cash at bank and other receivables are nominal'

Liquidity RiBk

Liquldity risk i5 the ,isk that th€ comPany $,il| not be able to m€el its finan.ial obliSations a5 they fau due' The comPaq/6

;;;.; a mana$ng liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure as far as Poesibte' that it r /ill alw'vs have

suificienr l,tuiatry-to m;et its liatilities when due untler both normel and stre6sed condition5 without imurring

,*.."poUi f*.* - ,iskint damage to the comPany's rePutation TyPicaly' the comPany enEur€s that it ha6 6ullicient

cash and cash equiv.lents to meet expected operational eipenses includiry_financi,sl obligstion tfuough gePa.ation of

rh. cash flow tore(ast with due consideration ;f time line oipayment of the financral obliSation and accordingly arrange

for sufficient liquidity/fund tomake theexPe(led Payment $'ithin due date'

Md. Ra ul Hossain mad Ziaul Haque
Financisl Officst

t5s."ffi
a i6iiii',"rL,iti ; arffi iii s i io

2I APRZUl

1-.4
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Direclor & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

Z! APl? 23:?
comDanY Secletary
SonatiPOilleto Um uo'

2 t APR m22

Moham
Chltf

Sotlltr P$6t A Bosrd Uilh ttd'

2 i APR 2022

Note *

M1'
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M.rket Risk

Market risk is the risk that any changes in mark€t Prices such as foreiSn exchange tates' hterest rate and investment in

freely traded shate of stock exchange wlll affect th; comPany's income or th€ valu€ of its holdinSs financial t|stru'trmts'

ffre iUl"ctir" .f ^".L"t 
risk manage;nt i5 to manage and control market risk exPosules within acceptaHe PalameteE'

(a) Cu.rency Ri3k

Currmcy risk is the risk that arises due to chanS€s in currency exchange rate' The comPany Procutes maior Part of raw

*"i".oU ft.t local markets and sells finishe-rl products in domestic markets whi'h are not affected t'y chanS€s in

currency exchange rates. The comPany onty p'otttrts machinedes and immaterial part of raw materlals ftom abroad

whi.h are not st8nificantly affected changes in curency exchange rate

(b) lnterest R.lc Risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that ari!€s due to changes in interest rates on bor.owinS. Lcal loans ar€, howev€t, not

signilicantly affe(ted by fluatuatlons in interest r't;risk The comPany has not mtered into any t'?e of denvative

iritrument in order to tredge interGt rat€ tisk as at th€ rePorting date

s4/. s4/-
Chief [in.ncial Offi.er ComPany Secretary

ZiaulHaque

a--.
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

z t, A?fl, ?til

tt\,6.
^I'di)i;;)#ie?,;i.,,,."

2 t APR20Tt

sdt-s4/"
Dire(tor Director

sd/-
M.nating Di.cctn

Md. Hossain
Company Secretary
Sorlali Paper & Eoard Mills Ltd'

2 ( APR 2022

Chiel Financial officor
SorEli Paper & Boad liillB Ltd'

2 4 APR 202
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ul Hossaln
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiof FinancialOfficor
SonallPapet & Eoard Mill! Ltd'

2 ( APR 202
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Managing Director & CEO
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Particulals
30 lune 2021

Qty (Kc) Ratc Taka

Material-in-Process

Paper of Different Grades 206,058 71.65 14,764,056

Particulats Pcs Rate Taka

a) Diflerent ltelrrs 590.61 22+,132

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
Schedule of Inventories

As on 30 June 2021

)L

Annexure -'B'

30 June 2020

Qty (Kc) Rate Taka

782,740 68.84 12,579,822

Pcs Rate Taka

196 594.85 116,590

Total Taka 263,923,072

Md. Ra lHossain
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Ofiicer

Sonall PaP6t t Board Mills Ltd,

2 t APR 202
2 t, IPR 2022

37,000 ?1.50 795,500 892,893 17,477,4-t4

Waste Pa r L 23,000 47.00 1,081,000

OCCWaste Pa 438,638 21.00 9,277,398 151,000 78.75 2,831,,250

Different GradeWaste Pa el 99,277 15.75 1,563,518 74,769 12.49 7M,465

ifferent CradePul 964,391 67.50 65,096,393 2,659,965 55.75 1,48,293,M9

CoCa3 31,600 23.00 28,547 23.50 670,855

57.00 't7,556 77,845 52.00 927,940

OBA 14,533 185 00 2,688,b05 30,195 210.00 6,340,950

Oxidise Modifide Starch 24,370 120.00 2,917,200 155,512 41.00 6,375,992

F 150 450.00 67,500 4,927 250.00
-t,2i1,750

ocalRetention
7,433 500.00 n6,500

Retenfion orted 23 n5.oo 17,825 6,994 n4.40 5,476,-r87

De-Fom 7,663 260.00 7,992,380

ColourPa 869 140.00 721,660 340.00 76,160

5B,F,N 3,267 900.00 2,940,300

Sodium Silicate 888 20.00 17,760 1,982 19.00 37,658

Total 7,645,9\7 E9,255,395 3,965,286 190,514,169

Sim lex rent Grade 721,,596 42.50 5,"167,830

Liner Different Grade 7,096 50.00 354,800

White Liner ifferent Grade 12,90t) 77.OO 993,300

N{edium L,345 36.00 '18,120

Pa er Different Gra
685,41.7 94.00 u,429,"198

74,909 94.00 7,M7,U6
903,263 78,034,994

379,469 48 96 18,578,802

50,068 32.50
-1,627,270

771,,573 70.00 12,010,110

{07,091 70.00 28,496,370

1,008,201 50,712,492

\82,278,876Total Taka

I.

runriSm.f-o,
Managing Director & CEO

ucB 
[,i"i$?t]i.,,"o

Raw Materials:

Finished Goods:

Spare Paits:

180

tt*"s
Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Bosrd Milh Ltd.

2 ( APR 202

Waste Paper (Fuka Board)
19.50

726,800

108

(Different Grade)

Eintine P"per (Diffetent Grad

-A-4 

Pope, (Diff..".tt Gradef
Total
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Md. Ra ul Hossa tn
Mohammad Ziau

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
Statement of Ttade Receivables

As at 30 June 2021

I Haque
. II,IANAGING D/RECTOR
- ioruettplpeR a goARD ll/tLls tID

2 { APR 20?2

Annexure -"C'

CompanY Secrstary
Sonali PaPer & Board ilills Ltd.

2I. APR M22

Chisf Fiflancial Offh.r
Sonali Paper & Board llll [td,

2 t APR 202

30 une 2020
Amount inTaka

30 une 2021
Amount in Taka

Name of the PartySl. No

7 25,368

4,954,572

5,s50,562

5,038"352

5,059,050

5,675,917

4,132,803

53s6r08
2324;t83

7,503,136
4,63"t,533
3,632,078

22,594,870

4,594,587

n,n o,rn

s,659780
2,302,660

9,238,649
9,652,433

8,276,340
7 ,484,155
9,760,138
9 368,771
4,335,506

8,493,942

3,595,772

3,779,489
2,545,200

5,757 ,038

6,294,754

4,623,0M

3,675,395
5,728,723

7,768,680
3,111,883

3,773,774
3,205,296
3,05E181

3,243J08
7,686,236

3933,67'l

4,152,700

7,"194,684

I,841,"t43
5,992,520

2,454,800

9,652,3',t6

9,952,956

7 ,578,889
8,485,848

7,673,862

El Paper & Packaging Pvt. Ltd.

Hasan Printing & Packaglng tnd Ltd'

H. A. Sattar Printing & Packagtng tnd

Interna Plastic lnd.
lndustrial PaPer Products Enterprise

J. N'I. E Packaging
Kashpia Printing & Packagrng lnd'

Motin Spinning
Modern Poly lndustries
MSA Spinning
M/S. NI.A.B PaPet Products

MR Ali & ComPanY

Platinum Print & Packaging Ltd

Royel Box

Satata Printing & Packaging

lWatton Hightec lnd. Ltd.

Wintech Core PiPe Ind.

Chandpur Paper House

Ever Green

Bashundhara Printing Zone

Razu Traders
Alam & Sons

Ananda PaPer House

lntergraphic Ltd.

MJ Paper

sid Printers

A A Yeam Mills Ltd.

Asian Paper Converting lnd
Badsha Textile Ltd.

B.N.N Packaging

Creative Paper Mills Ltd.

Dada Bobins Ltd.
G. C. Box Ltd.

M/S Akanda Traders

Rashedul EnterPrise

Floral Printirg & Binding
Neamot EnterPrise
Saddam Paper

Sristi Printer
Dhaka Trade Center

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
't2

13
't4
15

16

77

18

19

20

2'l
22

z5

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

1 152,730
192285,3r4753,144,520

775,705
Total Trade Receivables

tess: Plovision for Bad Debts
191,132,584152,369 15Net Trade Receivables

-7
-L.-

Tanzim Alamglr
Managing Director & CEO.

UCB lnvestment Limiled

zr A?a 2ii?

6,930,838

2,934,667

6,739 479
8,254,801

9,985,6-17
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Sondi Paper & Board Mills Umited
Stafto€ ofTrrde rnd Ott.t Pryables

As .t :tr JEn€ 2[El

Sl. No Nrm€ of the P.ny ADoult ir Trh
30 IEre zm

1 M/S. Babul Enterprise 225,6

Tot.l Takr 225,60

Annexure -'D'
Amount in Takr

30 Jme ZIIO

125,530

Md. ul Hossain
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiel Financlel Officer
Soosli Papor & Board Mills Il.

1L APR2022

tt$""s
- MANAGING D/RI-CfOR4 so|ltiPlprR a eoARo M/Lts LID

2L APRNN

Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Ltd.

? ( APR 2022

t ",'3r,"GManaging Director & CEO.

UCB lnvestment Llmned

125,630
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Sonali Paper and Board Mills Limited
Strtement of Investment in Shar€s

As at 30lune 2021

sL.
No.

N,me.,f Se.witi..
Compiny

Purchase value

30lun€ 2021

faka

Market v.lue of
Shares as on
30 rune 2021

Taka

Rerlised C,in
fo, th€

rY2020-21
Taka

Loan Balance

30lune 2021

Fees &
Cherg€s

durinS th€
w 2020-21

Dividend
Rec€ivabl€s

I SBLCapital Mangt. trd 188,6b7,335 193350,380 12,053,220 78,669,475 1516,311 r,060,874

2. EBL9,.urities Ltd. 252,107,648 245,930,889 37 203,268 90,376,032 977,781 1,259,997

Total Taka 440,768,983 439,28t,269 49,256,4A8 169,045J06 2,494,092 2320870

Inveslment in Shares: Tk , 4392A1259.00

The break-up rs as belora:

Md. Ra lHossain
Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Eoald Milh Ltd.

2 { APR 2022

Mohammad ZiaulHaque
Chief Financial Ofiicor

Sonrll Paper I Eoard Mills ttd'

2 { APR 2022

m.ffiffiH& iollnLtpnprP i eoAi?D Mltts LTD

2 t APR m22

\

sl.
No.

Shares in Public Limitcd Company
(Lisled Company)

2020-2021

Balance as on
30 June 2020Numbcr of

Shares

Purchas€ Vrlue

30 Jun€ 2021

Taka

Market value

30 rune 2021

Taka

Un-Realized
Cainy'(lrss)

(a) Portfolio of SBL Capital Management Limited

1 Asia lnsuranc€ Ltd- 199,72A 20,t1?,883 20,631,902 51.1,019

BD National Irlr Ltd .1E.1,518 61,4{.1,6b.1 1r1,727,393 \2.717,0?7)

Easttrn lrcurance Ltd 309,155 39,671,198 37,284,093 \2,187,405)

.l Fortune Shoes Ltd \,194,994 51,611,254 62,356,232 10,?24,978

, NRB Comrnercial Ban-k Ltd 353,600 12,802.036 11,350,560 (1,451,476)

Sub Total 2,741,995 188,667335 193J50J80 4,683,045

{b) Portfolio sf EBL S€curities Limited

1 Asra Insurance Ltd 300,000 31,895,,100 30,990,000 (90s,100)

BNICI 97,331 14,650,31r 12,399,969 12,250,342)

Eastern lnsurance Ltd {4,835,321 41,104,822 (3,730502)

.l Fortuncshoes Ltd 741,754 27,156,507 33,156,404 5,999,897

) Genex r,300,000 119,306,850 115,570,000 (3,736rs0)

Northern Iruurance Ltd 200,000 13,821,340 12,320,000 (1,s01340)

7 NRB Commercial Bank Ltd 12,140 135,916 389,694 (46,222)

Sub Total 2,992,067 252,101,648 245,930,aa9 16,170,7591

Cr.nd Tot.l 5,?34,O56 .t.t0,768,983

-t''*ffi

3 310,836

W
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(b) Auditors Certificate - Form C

FORM.C

[Rule 8(h), 8(i) and 8(t)]

Auditors' report to the shareholders

We have audited the accompanying financial statements for the period from 01 |uly 2020 to

30 June 2021 of Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited in accordance with the lntemational

Standards of Auditing, as applicable in Bangladesh and we state that y/e have obtained all the

information and explanations which we have required and after due verification thereof, we

report thal in our opinion:

(a) These financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with the requirements of

the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1982 as amended, the Companies Act, 1994 and other

relevantlaws where applicable and the Intemational Accounting Standards, as applicable

in Bangladesh.

(b) These financial statements which are in agreement with the books of account of the issuer

company give a true and fair view of the state of its affairs as at 30 June 2021 and of the

result of its operations and cash flows for the period/year then ended.

(c) Proper Books of Account have been kept by the comPany as required by the relevant

laws.

(d) The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the issuer company's business.

We also certi.$, that the above comPany has declared the following dividend for each of the

following five years immediately preceding the issue of rights share offer document under

the Securities and Exchange Commission (Rights Issue) Rules, 2005, and that the company has

duly paid off the following amounts of the declared dividend mentioned against respective

year-

Financial
Year

Date of Dividend
Declaration

Rate ("/,,) Declared Dividend (Tk.)

Cash Stock
Total

Amount
Total Paid

2020-202"r September 15, 2021 20% 20% 7,32,77,532

2079-2020 October 22, 2020 5v. 10v. 2,49,58,473 2,49,58,473

October 20, 2019 1.0v" 1.,51.,26,350 7,57,26,350

October 30, 2018

z0.l6-201.7 October 26,2017

Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh

Dated: 13 November 2021

sd/-
MABS & f Partners

Chartered Accountants

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiof Flnancial Orficsr

Sonall Peger e Botrd ttlill! ttd

2 4 APR 2022

^ MANAGING DIRECIOR
- sorttettPlpER a goARD M,tts LID

?I APRfrN

L'-
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

1! A?R 2:i?
Md. Hossain
Company Secrotary
Sonali Paper & Boad Mills ttd.

2 t APR 2022

2018-20"t9

20L7-2018

)
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SECTION 11

Rule 8 (i)

SUMMARIZED CASH.FLOWS STATEMENT, PROFTT AND LOSS ACCOI,JNT AND
BALANCE SHEET, AND DIVIDEND DECT.ARED AND PAID FOR EACH OF THE 5
(FrvE) YEARS

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited

Auditors' Report under Section-135(I), Para 2aO), of Part-tr of Schedule IfI to the
Companies Ad 1994

As per tlne requirement of g€ction-135(I), Para 24(l), of Part-ll of fthedule lll to the Companies Act 194,
management of Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited has prepared the following statements of its assets

and liabilitieg profit and lo6s accounts and cash flows for the years ended 30 Jun e 2017,2O78,2079, 2f.20

and 2021 ard submitted those to us for working and issuance of our confirmation thereon.

We, as the auditors of the Company, having examined the financial statements of the Company for the
years ended 30 June 2077,2fr18, m19, W2D and 2021 hereby confirm that the following information has

been correctly exEacted from those audited financial statemmts. In pursuance of section 135(1) urder
paragraph 24(1) of part II of the Third schedule of the Companies Act 1994 our rePort is as under:

Md. Ra ul Hossain

,tl,Vff'
i,ANAG'NG D'RECIOR

^ iotl,tLtp,qprn I coARD l,'rlts LTn

2TAPRM2

.LC
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Drrector & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

z ! A?ll 23i?Company Secretary
Sonali Paoer & Boatd Mills Ltd.

2 {'APR 202

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer

SonaliPaper & Boad Mills Ltd

2 l, APR 2022

Auditors Report in pursuance of Section-l35 (1) under Para-24 of part-ll of the Thid fthedule
of the Companies Act, 194

(i)

\l ( ll()N ( ()Nll Nl\
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Md. Rashedul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiof Financial Officer 1ff.s,ffie iotlltipnpeR e goARD ltl/tts tID

2t APR2022

Sondi eaPer & foat

2 ( APR 202

F

Mills LtdCompany Secretary
Sonali Paoer & Boatd Mills Ltd.

2t, A?R2022
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Md. u lHossain
Company Secretary ^*ffiffi,

2 { APR 20n

'vc
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Directol & CEO

UCB lnvestmenl Limited

2 ! A?R 2ii?

)
Mohammad Ziaul Haqrc

Chiof Finsncial Ofiicu
Sonall Papor & Board tlilr [td.

2 t, APR202?.
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Md. Ra I Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chief Financial Ofiic-er

SonallPaDo, & Board Mills Ltd.

2 4 APR 202

u

Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Ltd.

2 ( APR 2022

.i

3

3

tm,ffiF ioltl,LtplpeR s eoAR! Irrlls Lru

2 { APR 202?

'l- f.
Tanzim Alamgtr

Managing Dilector & CEO.

UCB lnvestment Limiled

24 A?R 2[i:
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It ANAGING DIRECToR

'io,ttqLtplpEn 
a aoAno MILts tTD

2{APRMz

,unr,?m'uf,n"
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnv€stment Limited

2 ! A?R 20i?
Hossain

pany Secretary
Paper & Board lrills Ltd.

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Ofiicer

SonaliPapsr & Boad Mill$ Ltd'

2 ( APR 20222 t APR 2022

Md.
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SECTION 12

Rule 8 o

LENGTII OF TIME DURING WHICH THE ISSUER HAS CARRIED ON BUSINESS

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh in the year 1978 under
Companies AcA 1913 & 194 as a Public Linited Company. The Company has stard
commercial operations in the same year and has successfully completed almost 43 years of
operation.

The company got listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) in the year 1985 & Re-

listed on 15 lune 2020 and listed with Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) on 21

December 1995 & Re.Iisted on 15 June 2020.

Mohammad Zaul Haoue
Chicf Finrncirl Oflicdr

Sona[ hpo, e Boord Mills Ltd .

2 ( APR 2022

.L,C
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO.

,"u 
[;"i,s:iil'*""

Id. Ras ul Hossain
Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Ltd.

2 t APR 2022

Ct-

MANAGING DIRECTOR
SOl/ALl PIPER d 8O/4R0 ,y/rrs tID

2 [ APRnr2

,.
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SECTION 13

Rule 8 ft)

IMPLEMENTANON SCIEDULE FOR COMPLETION OF EACTI SEGMENT OF TIIE
PROIECT ALONG Wtlrr TIiE PROPOSED DATES OF TRIAL AND COMMERCIAL
OPERATION OF TIIE PROPOSED PROIECT

PURPOSE OF RIGIITS ISSUE AND IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

The demand for products Sonali Paper & Board Mills Umited is increasing day by day and it
needs to further strengthen the operation through capital machinery import. The proceeds
received from Rights Issue of Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited will be invested to procure
a portion of capital machinery of the Company for growth of overall business operation. The
Company shall issue 70,987,7D Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10.00 each at par totaling Tk.
1@,817,290.W as righb offur at 1 (One) IRI: 2 (fwo) ratio i.e. l(One) Rights share for 2[two)
existing share held on the record date for entitlement.

The estimated utilization plan of the fund to be raised through the said Rights Issue is stated
below:

Particulars
Amount
in USD

Amount in
Taka

Implementation Period

Capital Machin€ry:
Brand new Caterpillar
Gas Generator Sets with
Complete Standard
Accessories

1,350,000/- -t09 
,817 ,290 / -

Total 1,350,0m/- 'tcf,817,7q/-

Note: Any excess of fund due to exchange rate shall be covered from internal sourte of
financing.

sd/-
Mahfuza Youn6
Managing Director

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 11 November 2021

s/-
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer

x/-
Md. Rashedul Hossain

Company Secretary

Md. Rashedul Hossain
Company Secretary
SonaliPaper & Board Mills Ltd.

2 ( APR 2022

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chisf Financial Oflicsr
Sonsll Plprf a 8oE {t Millr Ltd.

2 ( APR 2022

Managing Direclor & C

'"''?rfi"ilitil

,unr,3A,Lgn,r\-$
I.,IANAGING DIRECIORa Sbttllr p,rpee t egi r-'l 

"rrl.-9 
-"1

2 ( APR 202

Ea.
ited\

Three to six months
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SECTION 14

RuIe 8 (I)

QUANTITY OF SHARES TIELD BYEACI DIRECTORAND PERSONSWHO HOLD 5%
OR MORE OF TTIE PAID.UP S}HRE CAPTTAL OFTHE ISSI,JER ON TIIE DATE OF TIIE
RIGHTS STIARE OFFER DOCI,JMENT

Hossain
Secretary

Soali PaPer & Board MiIs Ltd.

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chlal Financlel Ofic€r

Sona[ PrP3l & Eoed ]iliIt Ltd.

2 { APR 202

m,m
^sot,.tLip;o:q 

I s:irn 'r i5 r,

2 { APR 2022 i APR 2022

run ikai^G'
Managing Director & CEO.

u.u,Ti",#?:ifii,".Md.
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QUANTITY OF SHARES HELD BY EACH DIRECTOR ON THE DATE OF THE
RIGHT SHARE OFFER DOCUMENTS

COMPOSITION OF SHAREHOLDING POSITION OF THE COMPANY

As on March 2022

sd/-
Mahfuza Younus

Managing Director

sd/-
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer

sd/-
Md. Rashedul Hossain

Company Secretary

Place: Dhaka
Dated:23 Aprll2022

Md. Hossain

ConPanY Secretary
Sonal PaPer & Board Mills Ltd'

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chicl Finandel Ofiicsr

6odl POrr E Boatd ll! ttd.

21 APR 2022

-*ffm,Tffi

^ soMrt p,tP:R 3 eolR! t!'l'ts tI!

? ( APR M22

Name of the Directors Position Number of Shares Percentage

Mohammed Younus Chairmalr 3,028,201 73.79%

Mahfuza Younus Managing Drector 3,022,326 73.76%

Mohammed laved Noman Director 39.94%

A.K.M. Nurul Fazal Bulbul
Independent

Director
Nil Nil

Ashim Kumar Roy
Independent

Director
Nil Nil

Total number of shares held by the Directors L4,822)46 67.49o/o

Total number of shares held by all category 2L,963,459 100%

Particulars Number of Shares
Total Amount in

TK
Percentage

Sponsor/ Director 14,828,110 148,281,100 67.51y"

Govemment
lnstitute 27,21.8,590 12.40%

4,473,490 44,134,900 20.097.

Total number of shares held bY
all category

21,953,459 2L9,534,590 100%

1-L APR 2022

-L:4.
Tanzim Alamglr

Managing Director & CEO.

UCB lnvestment Limited

2 t A?R 211:2

8,nT,619

As on March 2022

QUANTITY OF SHARES HELD BY BENEFICIAL OWNERS HOLDING SHARES

S",t, On ABOVE ON THE DATE OF THE RIGHT SHARE OFFER DOCUMENTS

There are no beneficial owners who own 57o or above shares of sonali Paper and Board Mills

Limited on the date of the right share offer documents.

?7,21.,859

Foreign
General Public
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SECTION 15

Rule 8 (m)

NA}[E ADDRESS, DES'GIPIION AND OCCIJPATION OF DIRECTORS; MANAGING
DIRECTO&MANAGERSANDCOMPATIYSECRETARY OFTHE COMPANY

Board of Directors

Manrgement and Executives

Name of Directors Position Address
Educetiond

Qu alificetion
Occupation

Mohammed Younus Chairman
51, Central Road,

Dhanmondi, Dhaka-
1205

H.S.C Business

MahfuzaYotrnus
Managrng

Drector

51, Central Road,
Dhanmondi, Dhaka-

1205
H.S,C Business

Mohammed Javed
Noman

Director
51, Central Road,

Dhanmondi, Dhaka-
1205

BBA Business

A.KM. NurulFazal
Bulbuf

lndependmt
Director

House No-28/A,
Road-3, Old D-O.H.9

Banani, Dhaka
Adviser

Ashim Kumar Roy
lndependent

Director

Flat No-158,
'Dgonto', 3 & 3A

Paribag Dhaka-1215
M. COM Consultancy

Name of Enployee Position
Educetional

Qudi{ication
Occupation

Chief Financial
Officer

15/1Q Sobhanbag
Officers Quarier,

Dhanrnondi Dhala
MBA

Service
Holder

Md. Rashedul
Hossain

Company
Secretary

27 /5/ A-1, Topthata
Road, Dhaka-1000

MBS
Service
Holder

Head of Interndl
Audit

House183, Road-S,

Mohammadia Housing
Ltd- Dhaka

MBA, CA.PI
Service
Holder

AL-Mamun Parvez GM, Accounts
322/2" Jafuabad,,

Mohammadpur, Dhal<a
B. Com

Service
Holder

Md. Sayed Hassan
DGM,

Commercial
186 Chata Moszid line,

Rayerbazar, Dhaka
Service
Holder

s/-
Mahfuza Younus

Managing Director

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 11 November 2021

sd/-
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer

sd/-
Md. Rashedul Hossain

Company Secretary

Md.
conroany Secretary .

Smditer & Board MiIs Lto'

? t APR 2022

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chief Financial Ofiicsr

Sonsli P.psr & Board tlill8 Ltd.

2 ( APR 2022

MANAGING DIRECTOR
SONALIPAPER 

' 
BOAP,D I,III.LS !T9

1-f-
Tanzimi{iamgir

Managing 0irector & CEO
UCB lnvestmenl Limited

? , i^^ a...I ! Ai i'l r:'-J'i

,.

24APRM2

M. COM

Address

Mohammad Ziaul
Haque

Md. Malabub Alam

B. Com

Hossain
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SECTION 15

Rule 8 (n)

NAME OF TTIE PUBLIC IISTED COMPANY UNDER COMMON MANAGEMENT

Name
Position held in

SPBML
Narne of the Public

Listed Company
Position held in
Iisted companies

Mohammed Younus Chairman
Shahjalal Islami Bank

Limited
Direc tor

Maifuza Younus Managing Director Express Insurance Ltd Director

Mohammed Javed Noman N/A N/A
A.K.M. Nurul Fazal

BulbuI

Independent

Director
Director

Independent

Director
N/A N/A

None of our Directors except disclosed above has any directorship in other companies listed

on the exchanges.

Md. Rash ul Hossain
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer
Sonali Papor & Board Mill6 tto .

2 ( APR 2022

,t\t
l '.1 i'_ _: _-_-14

to.

2 { APR 202

fffrFf;}ffi*,*'

'1- a
Tanzim Alamglr

Managing Director & CEO.

uce tnv;tpin|;iinrteo

As per the Securities and Exchange Commission (Rights Issue) Rules, 2005; there is no Public
Usted Company under the complete common Management of Sonali Paper & Board Mills
Limited. However, some directors of SPBML as disclosed below hold directorship in other
companies listed with the exchanges:

Director

Exim Bank Ltd.

Ashim Kumar Rov
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NAME AND ADDRESS OF TIIE UNDER,WRITER(S) ALONG WTII THE NI.IMBER OF
SHARES TJNDERWRITTEN BY EACII UNDERWRITER AND AI.SO TTIE NAME AND
ADDRESS OF ISSTJE MANAGE& AUDITORS, LEGAL ADVISER AND BANKER TO
TIIE RIGIITS ISSUE

Name and address of the underwriter(s) along $,ith the number of shares undena'rittm by

each underwriter
(a)

(b) Name and address of issue manager

Name and address of the auditor
(d) Name and address of the legal adviser

(e) Name and address of banker to the rights issue

st( ()N(()\ll\ls

Md. Rashedul Hossain

'Yd^il1?#?fJ!5^""''f '""
2 { APR M?2

Mohammad ZiaulHaque
Chi6l Financial oflicor

SonaliPa0or & Board litills Ltd.

2 ( APR m22

companY Secretary
Sona$ Papel & Board ilills Ltd'

21, APR 2022

u**'ffi,'ft*

SECTION 17

RuIe 8 (o)

(c)
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(a) Name and address of the underwriter(s) along with the number of shares

underwritten by each underwriter

(b) Name and address of issue manager

(c) Name and address ofthe auditor

(d) Name and address of the legal adviser

The issuer has no legal advisors.

Md. ul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiof Fifl ancial Oflicor

Sonali PaPor A Boad Mills ltd

2 ( APR 2022

t\r"e''"'''
- MANAGING DIREC|ORr sor^tntrpepen r eonRo lvr,rs rID

2 { APR m22

'L-f
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

z ! Al?. 2i:?
ComDanY Secretary
Sonali PaPer & Brd Mills m'

2 t APR 2llzl

Underwriter/s
Number of shares

Underwritten
Amount

Underwritten (!!f
Bengal Inves trnents Limited
Ad&ess: Bilquis Tower (9th Floor), Plot: 06, Road

46, Gulshan Circle -2, Dhaka-"1212

Website: bengal-investments.com

Email: md.ben linvestmen il.corn

1.0,481,729 1.04,877,290.00

CAPM Advisory Limited.,
Tower Hamlet (9th Floor), 16, Kemal Ataturk
Avenue, Banani C/A, Dhaka-1213
Website; capmadvisorybd.com

Email: md@ca mad bd.com

500,000 5,000,000.00

Total 10,987,729 1,09,817,290

AddressIssue Managey's
Bulu's cenue, (17th Floor) Plot-CWS-(
Avenue, Dhaka-1212
Website: ucb-investment.com
Email: support@ucb-investment.com

A)-1, Road No-34, Gulshan

UCB lnvestment Limited

AddressAuditor
SMC Tower (7th Floor), 33 Banani C/A,
Bangladesh
Website: mabsj.com
Email: info@mabsj.com

Road #17, Dhaka 1213,

MABS & , Partners

Chartered Accountants
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(") Name and address of banker to the rights issue

Ad&essBanker to the Rights Issue
Bulu's Centre, Plot-CW$(A)-
Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-1212
Website: ucb.com.bd
Email: inf o@ucb.com.bd

1, Road No-34,

United Commercial Bank Limited

AddressBranch NameRegion
Concord I.K. Tower ('tst floor), Plot#CEN(A)-2,

Gulshan-2, DhakaNorth Avenue,1

House#1, Road#4, Block -A, Section-5, MirPur,

Dhaka
Mirpur2

Paradise Tower (Ground to 2nd

Sector#03, Dhaka-MYmensingh
floor), Plot#11,
Road, DNCC,

Uttara, Dhaka.
3 Uttara

11, Kawran Bazar, Titas Gas Bhaban, Kawran Bazar,

Dhaka
Kawran Bazar4

20, Dilkusha C/A Dhaka-1000Foreign Exchange5

Unisay Tower (1st floor) Mymensingh Road, Union-

.O - Chandana, Dist- GaziBason,P
Gazipur Chowrasta

Badhan Community Centre (1st tu), 231ls, B.B

Road, Chashara, Nara7 Chashara

Dhaka

17, Chota Bazar, M 2200Mymensingh8Mymensingh
Aerial Legend Centre, Hotding-1080,

PS-Panchlaish, Chi
CDA Avenue,

East Nasirabad CO.R. Nizam Road9

Atlas Rangs Plaza, Plot No.7,

Agrabad C/A, Ward No.36, PS-Bandar, Chittagong
Sheikh Mojib Road,

Ci Co oration, Dist. Chi
Agrabadt0

, Comilla-3500(1st floor125/777, aComilla11

ChittagonB

-6100Maha Sarak,
Rajshahi12

580022-t, Jhawtola, Pashari Mansion,Bogra
Rajshahi

47, K.D Ghosh Roacl, Khulna-9000Khulna1,1Kiulna
Hosue# 87-88, HemaYet Uddin Road, Barisal City

P.S-Barisal Sadar, Barisal.Co oration,
Barisal15Barisal

1683 / A, Ztndabazar, thetZindabazar76Sylhet
Asha Centre, 624, G.L. RoY Road, Ward-24, RangPur

oration, I5-Kotwali, RanCi
Rangpur17Rangpur

ComDanY Secretary
Snrat itaper & Board Mills Ltd'

2 t APR 202

Mohammad ZiaulHaque
Chiol Financisl Otficer

SonaliPsper & Board ills Ltd

2 i APR 2022

. MANAG'NG DiRECIOR

'boltettp,qprR 
r goAno rtllLrs LL

2 { APR 20t2

Md.

'La
.TIrll'.:,#:.

SL.

Culsha n

6

?oZ; N4fiE; gst F'), shaheb Bazar, Natore

13

Hossain
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SECTION lE
Rule 8 (p)

PARTICULARS ALONG WTTII TTIE TERMS AND CONDMONS OF TIIE MATERHL
CONTRACTS INCLI,JDING VENDORS' AGREEMENT, TJNDERWRITING
AGREEMENT, ISSUE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT, AGREEMENT WIIII THE
BANKER TO TTIE ISSUE AND CONTRACT FOR ACQIJISMON OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQI,JIPMENT

(a) Particulars of Vmdo/s Agreement
(b) Particulars of Underwriting Agreement
(c) Particulars of Issue Management Ageement
(d) Particulars of the Banker's to the lssue Agreern€nt

(e) Particulars of Contract for Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipm€nt

\l( ll()\(()\ll\15

Md. Hossain

3,fi lii?ifiI'"'i.i,l"iffi o

2 
', 

APR 2022

*m.ffi^
r SbllLrPePin r eorR! t,'rLLs lTD

2{APRM2

1-a
TanzimTflamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limitgd

? ! A??, ?t:?
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiof Finanoisl Oflic-er

Sonsll Pspor & Boad tlilh Ltd.

2 { APR 022
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(a) Particulars of Vendor's A8reement

SPBML has not entered in to any vendor agreement till to date.

(b) Particulas of Underwriting Agreement

Full amount of Rights Offer of SPBML has been underwritten by underwriter/s as shown in
the classified information part of ROD. Each underwriter will be paid underwriting
commission @ 0.25% of the nominal value of shares underwritten by them out of the Rights

Issue. Simultaneously, with the calling upon an underwriter to subsaibe and pay for any

number of shares, the company will pay no additional commission to that underwriter on the

nominal value of shares required to be subccribed by them.

(c) Particulars of Issue Management Agreement

UCB Investnent Lirnited is appointed as Issue Manager for the Rights Issue of the Company.

Accordingly, an agreement was made between the Issue Manager and the Company. The

Company will pay a lump-sum issue management fee amounting to Tk. 15 Lac only to the

Issue Manager.

(d) Paticulars of the Bankey's to the Issue Agreem€nt

United Commercial Bank Limited is the Banker to the Issue who will collect the subscriptions

money of the Rights Offer. The Bankers to the Issue will be paid commission @ 0.10% on the

amount of eubscription collected by them. But no commission will be paid to SPBML. The

Rights Issue subscriptions money collected from the shareholders by the Bankers to the Issue

will be remitted to the Company's STD Account Name SONALI PAPER & BOARD MILIS
LIMITED - RIGFITS ISSUE A/C and Account no. 0541101fiX)005811|3 with Gulshan Branch.

Md. dul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chiof Financisl Officer

S$allPaFr & B€rd l ills ttd.

2 L APR 2l,?2

,trt"t.
- MANAGING DIRECTORr sowALiP,tpeR a goARo riilis lll-')

2{APRMz

ComDanY Secretary
Sond i'a9er & Board lllills Ltd'

24tiPR20n

U,+-ffi[:u
2 ! A?n 2::?

(e) Particulars of Contract for Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment

After the balance sheet date 30 lune 2021, the Company did not acquire any Property or

entered in to any agreement for acquisition of any properly.
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SECTION 19

Rule 8 (q)

NI]MBER OF RIGIITS SHARES THATTHE DIRECTORS ARE @ING TO ST'BSCRIBE
AND IN CASE THEY PROPOSE TO MAKE RENUNCIATION, THE REASONS AND
EXTENT OF SUCH RENUNCIATION

DIRECTORS TAKE-UP OF RIGHTS SHARE

We declare that the directors of Sonali Paper & Board MiIs Limited shall not renounce any
ehares and are expected to exercise their full portion of Rights offer in the following wav:

Status
Number of

Shares Held

Taking-Up
In the
Right
Offer

Number of
Shares to be

Renounced

MohammedYounus Chairman 3,024,207 1,514,100 Nil
Mahfuza Younus Managing Director 3,022,326 L,51-t;t 63 NiI
Mohammed faved
Noman

Director 8,n1.,61.9 4,385,809 Nil

tndependent
Director

Nil NiI

Ashim Kumar Rov
lndependent

Director
NiI Nil Nil

s/-
Mahfuza Younue
N{anaging Director

sd/-
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chie{ Financial Officer

sd/-
Md. Raohedul Hossain

Company Secretary

Place: Dhaka
Dated:23 Aprn2022

Md.
comoanY Secretary
Son{i*r & Board Mills t'to'

2 ( APR 20n

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chi6f Financial Oflicsr

Sonall Prpot t Board ilills [td.

2 4 APR 202

*mffi;"ffif soltqltPlp;R l goiPg t,lrrs LrJ

?. t APR2[?

,.L, a
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

z ! A?R 2t:2

Name of Directors

A.K.M. Nuul Fazal
Bulbul

Nil

Hossain
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SECTION 20

Rule 8 (r)

STATEMENT OF ACTUAL UTILISATION OF FI.JND RAISED BY PI,JBLIC OFTERING
OT SHARES OR RIGIITS SHARES, IF ANY, PRIOR TO THE PROPOSED RIGHTS ISSI,'E
VI$A.VIS PLAN THEREFOR

DECLARATION REGARDING UTILIZATION OF PREVIOUS FUND

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh in the year 19V vnder
companies Act, 1q13 & 1994 as a Public Limited Company. The present owner took over all
the shares of the company in 2005. Before that, the company was out of operation for a long
time. After taking over the drarge the management brought the company into operation on

March 11, 2007.lts' shares were being tsaded in the OTC market up to 15 fune 2020 which
indudes sponsors contribution to paid-up capital and subsequent bonus shares. Hence, the

amount of fund raised through kritial Public OIIer (IfiO) and its uhlization are beyond the

lnowledge of the cur€nt management.

Further the company did not raise any capital through issuance oI rights share previously.

sd/-
Mahfuza Younus
Managing Director

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 11 November 2021

Hossain

sd/-
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer

s/-
Md. Rachedul Hossain

Company Secretary

(-

ComPanY Secrotary
S$sli PaW & Board Mills Ltd'

2 t APR 2022

Mohammad ZiaulHaque
Chirf Flnandal Omc€r

Sooall Pe.t t Eosrd tlifls ttd

2{APRMz

ffiffiO SOUl.ttptptq Ser.,i.R:,r iLLS L-,

2l APR mrz

Md.

TC
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

2 4 APR 203?
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SECTION zr
Rule 8 (s)

APPLICATION FORM FOR DEPOSTTING THE SUBSCRIPfiON MONEYWITH THE
BANKERS TO THE ISSUE FOR TITE RIGHTS SHARE,IA/TTH THE PROVISION FOR
RENUNCIATION OTTHE RIGHTS OFTER

(a) Letter of Offer for Rights Issue to the Shareholders

(b) Form of Acceptance and Application for Shares, Form-A
(c)

Apptication by Renouncee(s), Form{

sl( ()\ ( ()\ \ts

comDanY S6cretary
Surali PaPer & Bosrt t4ils uo'

2 { APR m22

Chio, Financitl Officer . MANAGING DIRECIOR

'so|llt PIpER E aolRo ll'lrl-is LID

2I APR M2

I
Hossain Mohammad Ziaul HaqueMd.

SooCl P.Pr I Bosrd

2 t APR m22

Form of Renunciatiory Form-B

(d)

t ill! Ltd.

1ra
Tanzim Alamgtr

Manaqing Director & CEO.

UCB tnvestmenl Lrmited

? { APR 2O:2
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(a) Letter of Offer for Rights Issue to the Shareholdert

Md. ul Hossain

lo

imffie iottqLtplpee s ect,?! r,;tlts lrl

24APRMN

,"*,r3*fi
Managing Dirsctor &tEO

UCB lnveslment Limited

2L Api,fin

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
51, Central Road, Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1205

Telephone: 5861056-59, 77n7, F ax +842-58613q15
E-mail spslrare@younus8roup.com; Website: www.spbr bd.com

Folio/BO Account No
Name
Address

LETTER OF OFFER FOR RICHTS ISSUE

Dear Shareholder(s)

We are pleased to inlorm you that the Board of Directors in its 59s Board Meeting recommended to
issue 1O981,729 Ordinary Shares as rights shares of Tk10.00 each at an issue price of Tk10.00 per share

on the basis of 01[R]:02 i.e., 01 (One) Rights Shares for every 02 (Two) edsting share held, which was
approved by the Shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting @GM) held on 11 November 2021.

As a registered Shareholder as on May 23, 2022 (Record date for entitlemerrt), you are entitled to
subscribe your rights share.

If you wish to accept the above Rights Share in full or in Part, you are required to submit comPleted
Application Form-A annexed hereto with necessary payments. You may, however, renounce your
rights in rGpect of all or part of your entitlement in favour of others in which case th€ Renunciation
Form-B and Form{ annexed here to be submitted duly filed in by you and the renouncee(s) along
with necessary payments. The rights cannot be exercised for frachon of a share i.e. below fult unit of
share.

All the payments for accepted shares are to be made in cash or by P.O/DD/Cheque @ Tk.10.00 each

and to be deposited with any of the branches of Bankers to the Issue during Banking hours. Any
extension of time will be notified through nationat dailies. Payments through P.O/DD/Cheque, must

be payable to " Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited" and must be drawn on a Bank in the same town
where the Branch of Bankers to the Issue in which the application form has been submitted is situated.
It is to be noted that all transactions above Tk. 1-00 lac must be alfected through Demand Draft/Crossed
Cheque/Pay Orders.

The offer will be deemed to have been declined if completed AppLcation Form-A and/ or Renunctation
Form-B and Form-C with necessary payments have not been received by lune 28, 2022 or by such later

date as may be notified through national dailies to that effect.

A sell-explanatory Rights Share Offer Documents is attached for your kind information and evaluation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

sd/ -
Mahfuza Younus
Managing Director & CEO

ComDanY Secretary
Sonali Papei & Boald Milh Lto'

2 [ APR 202?

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiol Flnancisl Oflicel

Sonali Pspot & Board ills ltd'

2 t APR 202
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(b) Fomr of Accepance and Application for Shares, Form-A

lffilwnXf'r.fi curr o 1rl fiiFrmr vlm r

Application Form - A
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited

51, Cental Road, Dharunondi Dhaka-l205

SIJBSCRIPTION
Opens on Clocer on

lnne 17,2022 lwre fr,2022
hours both da 6 inclusive

FORM OF ACCEPTANCE AND APPLICATION TOR SIIARES

Th. M.!r.8in8 Director & cEo
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
51, Centrul Roud, Dhlnmondi, Dhakr-1205

Denr Sir,

I/We apply for sllotment of ordinary ahire6 indicnted below in recponEe to your leller of Rightc Offer and cutiect to th€ Memorandum .nd
Articled of A6sociation6 of the Company. I/We hereby agre€ to accept th. 6hares a6 may be allotted to aie/us on the terms laid down in the

letter o( ofler and enclose the neceecary leEritt n e OIk. 10.m per shsre in ca6h or by Draft/Pay Order/Cheque No...............
daled........................drawnon............................Brnk..,.....,,........Brarrch.

FolidBO Actount No.
No. of gh.r€. h.ld .t tlr.

clort of budnerr on
M.y B,lXZl

No. of 6hrer
offcted

No. of 6haree
Accepted

Totel Amount Paid
(rt.)

Yours faithfully,

Address
2. Name (in block letter6) Signature

Address:

Ac fpr Jrrovisim of the Dellrxitory A.t, 1999 and reguLtio.. 6.de tl|e errnder, righb .h.re ih.ll .rnly he i..ired in dematerieliznd

conditiorl An lpplc.nt drurt .pply ,or.lloErent of righta clurec rrentirning hi!/h€r Ben ffcfuy owner (BO) Ac@unt nunber in the

lppllcation forn.

Notet Sign tur€ mu.t be thc !&unc irs rf,.3 furni6h.d to th. Co6p.ny.e.ru.r. In car€ of Inconpl€t. applicatior! the offct will be
deemed to have been de.lined. eCh order to be isoued in favor of Sondi P & Borrd Mtlls Limtted

Datedr..,,...,.,../

ACIG.IOWLEDGEMENT RECEIPT OF SHARE MONEY

CI6k .....................Received Tk....................,
Mr./Mr...............................
................,.......for.........,.......
order/Dralt/Cheque No...,...

ation Sl. No (SPBML'8 Se.l)

Md. Ra ul Hossain Mohamma

) "itty fiom
.. Folio/Eo A.count

......No.(s) of rightB shdes of sondt P.p.r & Botd

........ddte,...,.........,...........of......................84nk.,,,................

No...........

Mtll. Linrltcd
..Branch,

Cash/Pay

(B.nk'. S€.1) Sign*rrc of Rccctvlng Officct
DetG:

Chiof Flnsnci.l Ofiics,
Soorfl Plp3 I Borf{ ltillr ttd

2{APRM2

r ,.r,r 1a ' a " -''--.:

2 ( APR 2027

s d Ziaul Haque

rt\-f

IIIIIII

Gompany Secretary
*fi*ii*'i'dll**

Right6 Ofrer of 10,$1,729 Orditury Shat.s of Tk10.m e.ch at &n i6sue price of Tk.10.m each btaling Taks fB$7rg) offered on the ba6is

of (ll(Onc) lRl:Ol(T\f,o) i.e. One RiShts Shffe .g&irt8t o2(fwo) eristing chare held to the chareholders whoce nanre rpFared in the B]Ere

re8iBt€r al the dose of busimce on Mey 23, aXIL

Application Sl. No. . . .

(Bankc Seal)

1. Name (in block letter6): Signature:

BO Account No.

- L-ftanzim Alamol
Managing Oirector &6tO

'"tlrili"ic'"I*
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(c) Form of Renunciation, Form-B

ffi"- lFFf cqn s lr{ fiffiairtt Tr{ r

Renunciation Form - B

51, Central Road. Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1205

Rightd Offer of 10,$1,729 Ordinary Sharee of Tk.10.m eoch.t an iBdqe price of Tk.10.m each rotalin8 T.ka 101r,81729) offered on the basic

of Ol(On.) [Rl:{nGwo) i.e. One Rightd Share sgainst 02(fwo) exictiag ehare held to the ohareholderc whoee narne appeared in th€ share

regi5ter at the (lo6e of burinecs on Mey 23, AD2

SUBSCRIPTION
Opanr on Cloaea on

Jwv 8,2o22
Within banking houni hoth days irrclusive

FORM OF RENUNCIATION
(lr4 lh3(e (.tgk.!i1(t elr e.,6t{lil)

Thc Man ging Dtector & cEo
Sonali Paper & Board Milh Limited
51, Centrdl Road, Dhanmondi, Dhak!-1205 Application Sl. No

(Bank's Seal)

Dear Sir,

l/We hereby renounce my/our rights to the Ehares offered to he/us as noted below in favor of fE ron(s) sccepting the 6a're 8nd 6igning in
Application by Renouncee(E) and apFly foi 6lotinent in hi6/her/th€ir nnme(6).

No. of Shrer hdd d ttc
clore of budnao on

M.Y 23, !P2
No. of Shzea

offered
No. of Shsec
Renounced

Tot l Amou* P.id
frr.)

Signnture:

Address

Md. Ra dul Hossa tn mmad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Oflicer

Sonali Papel & Board Mills ttd

2 4 APR2072

*ffi,ffi,ffir solieLt PlpeR a soARD Llitts iID

2{APRMz

BO Account No

l. Name

2. Nrme:

IITIIIIIII

Ar fter provilion of ttE Dep€it ty AcL f999 and re$Luo.! uude therermder, righre sh.te oh.ll only tp ieeued in dcftareri.lized
condition. Ar lppucant mu6t lpply lor allotdrent of rights 6hare6 lr€ntioning his/her Benenciary ot^,nrt (BO) Account ftunrb€t in tlie
applicatior forn.

Conpeny ealicr. In onplcl. c incorrcctly ftllcd epplitdon will bcSigrrtute mu.t bc thc saBe .. wa. furni.hed

Company Socretary
Sonali Papot & Board Mills Ltd,

2 t APR2t22

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited

Jtae O,?o.22

Ddted: ............,/........-...... /..............

Foliry'BO Acrourt No.

Yours faithfully,

1. Name (in block letters): Signaturei

Address:

2. Name (in hlock letterc):

N.B. u:e photocopy in calc of rcnounceanent favolirg mme th.n 2 (two) pc|r8onr

-w-
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO
ucB rnvestmfithllnited

Numr,(s) of Ronouniee(s)

lllll



(d) Application by Renouncee(s), Form-C

I cqrtrTolrl{ TIFII

Thc M.tL.Bing Dirfttor & cEo
g)nali PBp€r & Board Mills Limited
51, Centr.rl Rord, Dhnnmondi, Dh.rka-12E Applicrrtion 9. No

(Ban}'e Sel)
Dear Sir,

As the Bhsreholder(s) at pre-Pige ha6/have renounced hi6/her/theit righb to the chares offered, in my/our frvor, I/We do hereby apply
for the number of shrres as renounced. by making payrnent of Tk. ............-........ being the value oI ............,...........Sh4te6 @ Tk.10.m
each.

GE R,ors cffi cr& sF q{t rr{EI)
N.B, ur€ phdocopy ln c.4 of r.noltn.GEcr* Ievotlng aror then 2 (trvo) pcronr

Signatue of the Renouffet(6)

Renouncer 1 Renoucer 2

A5 frer provi5ion of the Deposilory Ac! 1999 and regulationo arade thereunder, ri6hta ahate chall only be issued in dehaterid.lized

condition. Atr applic.trt muct apply for allotment of rightB shrres EEntioning hir/lEr Beneficiary Owner @O) Ae-count nunibe, in tlle
.pplicrdon 6orEr.

Notr: Slgndurc aurt bc ttc ruc ee wu furnLh.d to tLc CoEp.rV c-lt.r. IaoEplcta q llrdrccdy 6llcd ryplice$on rrlll bc
ected.

SiEnature: Sign.ture:
Name (in block letter6):

slo.D/o.w/oS/o.D/o.Wlo..
Addr.s{

BO

No.
BO

No. II IIIIlrIIIltltIl

Received Tk...,.........
Mr./Ms........................
........................for.,....,.
order/ Drart/ Cheque No.

ACKNOWLEDGBMENT RECEIPT OF SI{ARE MONBY

flr R€rs cffi ql(fsfrsU gr|rEI)

Gaka" """" """"
. Polio/BO Account

.....No.(c) of rightr rhrres o{ Sori.li P.prt lt Bo-d
....,,.date.....,...,................of..........--.......... Bank ,.....,.............

....,...,......,...) only from
No.....-..................................

Millr Liottcd in crBh/P.y
..Branch.

cation Sl. No {SPBML'8 Sea.l) (Bar*'e Sed) Signdurc of Rccciving Officcr
D.tc:

Md. Ras ul Hossain
'L r-

Ianzim Alamgir
Managing 0irector g CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

24 APn 2il2

ComPanY Secretary
SonaliPo;rr& Board Mills Ltd.

2 { APR 2022

,a

Renunciation Form - C

APPI-I(]ATION BY RENOUNCEE(S)

Dated: ............/.............../...-..........

Yours faithfully,

1

Name (in block letters):

Addross:

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chisf Flnancisl omcor
Sonell PlPu I 8o.rd Mllls Ltd.

2 t APR 2022

'!t\r6'
. ATANAGING DIRECTORr soru,lLtp,frR I oo,tRD tlltts tTD.

2T APRNN
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SECTION 22

Rule 8 (t)

DECI.ARATION ABOUT TIIE RESPONSIBIUTY OF THE ISSUE MANAGE& THE
UNDERWRITER, THE AI.'DITORS AND THE DIRECTORS IN FORMS.A, B, C AND D
RESPECTIVELY

(a) Declaration about the responsibility of the Issue Manager, Form-A
(b) Declaration about the responsibility of the Underwriter, Form-B
(c) Declaration about the responsibility of the Auditor, Form{
(d) Declaration about the responsibility of the Directors, Form-D

Md ul Hossain ,r\"f
MANAGING-DIRECTOR
cntlllr clDE? f p.1,r^ I ir rc rTn

? I APR2022

'1; f
Ta:rzi;r Aiamgl;

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestmenl Limiled

2 { APR to:?

ffry{iliiF:I",tu Ic

\l( ll()N ( ()\ll \15

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chisf Flnencisl Officor

Eon€ll Pspor & Bosrd Mills [td.

2 ( APR 202



(a) Declaration about the responsibility of the Issue Manager' Form-A

FORM.A

[Rule 5 and 8(t)]

Declaration (due diligence certificate) about resPonsibility of the issue

manager in respect of the rights share offer document

For UCB Investment Limited

This rights share offer document has been reviewed by us and we conJirm after-due

""amirrition 
that the rights share offer document constitutes full and fair disclosures about

therightsissueandtheissuerandcomplieswiththerequirementsoftheSecuritiesand
Excha"nge Commission (Rights Issue) Rules' 2006; and that the issue price is justified under

the proiisions of the Securities and Exchange Commission (Rights Issue) Rules' 2006'

80

sd/-
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO
Place: Dhaka

Dated: 24 October 2021

Md. Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque r*\

comDany Socr€tary
Sollali Papei & Boar0 Milts Lto'

2 t APR 2022

Chi6f Financisl Ofiicot
Sonali Paper & Boad Mill! Ltd.

2 { APR 20?2
2 t, APR7.022

Uc

T(
tanzi;,:r Alamcii

Managing Director giEO
UCB lnvestment Limited

7.!, A?P,ten
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For Bengal Investments Limited

sd/-
Tahid Ahmed ChowdhurY

Managing Drector

Place: Dhaka

Dated: 26 October 2021

FORM-B

[Rule 6 and 8(t)]

Declaration (due diligence certificate) about reaponeibility of the

underwriter(s) in respect of the rights share offer document

This rights share offer document has been reviewed by us and we confirm after due

examination tlut dre issue price is justified under the provisions of the Securities and

ExchangeComrrrission(Rightslssue)Rules,2005,andalsoEratweshallsubscribeforthefor
the undlr_subscribed rights shares within fifteen days of calling thereof by the iszuer. The

issuershallcalluponusforsuchsubscriptionwithintendaysofclosureofthesubscription
lists for the rights issue.

For CAPM Advisory Limited

sd/-
Tania Sharmin

Managing Director & CEO

Md. ul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chief Flnanclsl Ofticor

- -La
ranzi;-n Alar;i;

Managing Director & CEO
UCB lnvestment Limiled

t-

m,ffi
rsor/LIP.lp;R 

& eoAnD rlirLts LrD
Sonall Pspor & Boad Mills ttd .

2 t APR 2022 2 4 APR 202 26 APR MU

(b) Declaration about the resPonsibility of the Underwriter' Form-B

FORM.B

[Rule 6 and 8(t)]

Declaration (due diligence certificate) about responsibility of the

underwriter(s) in respect of the rights share offer document

This rights share offer document has been reviewed by us and we confirm after due

examination that the issue price is justified under the provisions of the Securities and

ExchangeCommission(Rightslssue)Rules,2006,andalsothatweshallsubscribeforthefor
theunder.subscribedrightsshareswithinfifteendaysofcallingthereofbytheissuer.The
issuer shall call upon us for such subscription within ten days of closure of the subscription

lists for the rights issue.

Place: Dhaka

Dated: 26 October 2021

Comoany Secretary
Sonalii'aper & Board Miils Lto'

2 
', 

APR 2022



(.) Declaration about the responsibility of the Auditor, Form-C

FORM-C

[Rule 8(h), 8(i) and 8(t)]

Auditors' report to the shareholders

Wehaveaud.itedtheaccompanyingfinancialstatementsfortheperiodfrom0lfuly2020to
30 ]une 2021 of sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited in accordance with the Intemational

Standards of Auditing, as applicable in Bangladesh and we state that we have obtained all the

informaton and explanations which we have required and after due verification thereof, we

report that, in our oPinion:

(a)Thesefinancialstatementshavebeendrawnupinaccordancewiththerequirements
of the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987, as amended, the Companies Act' 1994 and

other relevant laws where applicable and the Intemational AccountinS standalds, as

applicable in Bangladesh.

(b) These financial Statements which are in agreement with the books of account of the issuer

company give a true and fair view of the state of its affairs as at 30 ]une 2021 and of the

result of its operations and cash flows for the period/year then ended'

(c) Proper Books of Account have been kept by the comPany as required by the relevant

laws.

(d) The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the issuer company's business'

we also certify that the above company has declared the following dividend for each of the

following five years immediately preceding the issue of rights share offel document under

the Securities and Exchange Commission (Rights Issue) Rules, 2006, and that the company has

duly paid off the following amounts of the declared dividend mentioned against respective

year-

Financial
Year

Date of Dividend
Declaration

Declared Dividend (Tk.)

Cash Stock
Total

Amount
Total Paid

2070-2021 Sep tember 16, 2021 207, 20% 7,32,11.,532

2079-2020
"10% 2,49,58,473 2,49,58,473

2018-2019 October 20, 2019 1,,5-1,26,350 't,51,26,350

2077-2078
October 26, 201.7

Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh

Dated: 13 November 2021

sd/-
MABS & | Partners

Chartered Accountants

Md. Ra ul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financlal Of{icer

Sonali Prper & Boatd Mills Ltd .

? t A?R2022

*mffi
lcn.,,,tt,ta tct rI i..i,i .ri'l

nJ)t -)t;n -, -)'1

2TAPRMz

'Lf
Tanzim Alamoir

Managrng Director & iEO
UCB lnvestment Limitel

2 4 APR ?Oi?

Company Secretary
SonaliPaper & Board Mills Ltd.

2 ,' APR 202
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Rate ("/o)

October 22, 2020 5%

10%

October 30, 2018

20-16-2017
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(d) Declaration about the responsibility of the Directors, Form-D

FORM-D

[Rule 8(t)]

DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE BY THE DIRECTORS ABOUT THEIR

PERSoNALRESPoNSIBILITYINRESPECToFTHERIGHTSSHAREoFFER
DOCUMENT

This rights share offer document has been prepared, seen, reviewed and approved by us and

we colLctively and individually accept full responsibility for the accurary of the information

given in the righs share offer documen! relevant documents and financial statements

submitted to the Commission anci others concerned under the Securities and Exchange

Commission (Rights Issue) Rules, 2006.

We confirm, after making all reasonable enquiries, that all condidons conceming this rights

issue and rights share offer document have been met We further confirm that we have not

concealed any information or statement which might have any bearing on the information

already made. In case of any default ol {ailure on our Part, civil' criminal or administrative

action may be taken aSainst us.

Md. Ras ul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financisl Officsr

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Ltd

2 

" 
APR 2022

'l; f
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Dkector & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

sd/ -
Mohammed Younus

Chairman

sd/-
A.K.M. Nurul Fazal Bulbul

Independent Drector

sd/-
Mahfuza Younus
Managing Director

sd/-
Mohammed Javed Noman

Director

sd/-
Ashim Kumar RoY

Independent Director

Company Secretary
Sonali Paoer & Board Mills Ltd.

2 ( APR 2022 ZI, APR ?TU

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 11 November 2021

,r\-f
- MANAGING DIRECTOR

Jo sollrLrP,]PIP I gal.t: ',r,LL! r It

2 4 APR 202
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MANAGING DIRECTOR
S0/rvAllPAPER & 804P0 l,lllts UD

Tf
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Dhector & CEO
UCB lnvestment Limitad

?( APR lil?
2 4 APR 2022
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Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chist Financial Officsr

Sonali Pspot & Boad Mills Ltd.

2 { APR 202
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HossainMd
ComoanY Secretary
Sonali PaPeI & Board Mills Ltd'
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SECTION 24

Rule 8 (v)

A DECLARATION THAT THE RIGHTS SHARES TO BE ISSUED IN
DEMA'II,]IIIAI.IZT]DFORMANDTHESUBSCTUBINGSI{ARF]HOI,DERSHAVETO
APPLY WITH RESPECTIVE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNTS

A per provision of the Depository Act,7999 and regulation made there under' rights share

shall only be issued in dematerialized condition. An applicant must apply for allotment of

rights shares mentioning his/her Beneficiary owner (BO) Account Number in the application

form.

Md. ul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chi6f Flnancisl Ofiicor

Sonali PapBI & Board Mills Ltd.

2 i APR 202

,r\"s
. L4ANAG]NG-DIRECTORr so/leLtPip;R I B(r,i! t'r4s lI!

a:f
Tanzim Alamglr

Managing Directot & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited
CompanY Secretary
Sonali PaPer & Board Mills Ltd'

2 [ APR 2022 2 t APR2022 ?{ APft I3:?
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SECTION 25

Md. ul Hossain

T'r-
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

z I APR 2x:2

Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chi6f Finsncial Omcor

SonaliPapor& Board ills Ltd.

2 t APR 202

CITIDIT RATING I{IIPOIIT OIT THH ISSU},R, IF THE OFFER IS AT A PREMIUM

The Issuer is offering the Rights at par. so, credit rating is not applicable in this case. However,

sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited has valid credit rating which is summarized as follows-

CompanY Secretary
SonaliPapor & Board tlills Ltd.

2[APRM2

,"r',':':_-_._:'::l

2 t, APR ?022

Credit Rati Status
Short TermTerm

Entity Rating ST-3

Stable
A2

Outlook
2022anDate of Rating
7023anuValidity of Rating

CRABofCreditassl

,.

Long

12
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SECTION 26

(u) Certificate on Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

(b) Corporate Govemance Compliance Status

5F(-Tt()N ( ()\ Tf\'Is

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Md. Ra edul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque

ComPanY Secretary

Sonali PaPer & Board Mills Ltd.

tm.ffir sotnLrpep;R g aoiqc tlrlts LID

2 L APR2022

_TC
,aru*tffi

Z{ App, ?si:.2 
'- 

APR 2022

Chlof Fhanclal Omcer

Sondi Papor t Bostd itifir Ltd,

2 t APR 202
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(a) Certificate on Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

Annexure-B

[Certificate as per condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)]

REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF

SONALI PAPER & BOARD MILLS LIMITED
ON COMPLIANCE ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company'

Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by
the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Govemance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions

of the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial

Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so

far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Govemance

Code.

We state that we have obtained all the inJormation and explanations, which we have required,

and alter due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our oPinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Govemance Code as

stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Govetnance Code issued by the Commission;

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial

Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as

required by this Code;

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the comPany as required under the Companies

Act, 7994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory

sd/-
Principal
Rahman Zasim & Co.

Cost & Management Accountants

Md. Ra ul Hossain
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Ofiicer .

Sona Pagor & Boad Mill! Ltd '

2 4 APR 202

'L-a
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director I CEO

UCB lnvestment LimitedMANAGING DIRECTOR
so,\it| P/PES & B0AR0 t//[S (ID

24 APRNN

Ic
2 i APR 2fi:?

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Govemance Code of Sonali Paper

& Board Mills Limited for the year ended on 30 June 2021.. This Code relates to the NotiJication

No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207 /AdN\/80 dated 3rd June 2018 of the Bangladesh

Securities and Exchange Commission.

Dhaka, 15 October 2021

Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Board Mills Ltd.

2 l, APR 2022
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(b) Corporate Governance Compliance Status

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the commission's Notification No.

SEC/CMRRCD/ 2006-758 /207 / Admin/8o dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the

Securities and Exchange Ordin ance, 1969:

(Report under Condition No. 9)

Condition
No.

Title Complied
Remarks
(If any)

Board of Directors
1(1) Size of the Board of Directors

The number of the board members shall not
be less than S(five) and more than 20

(twenty).
1(2) ln endent Directors:

1(2)(a)
At least one fifth (1/5) of the total number of
directors in the company's board shall be

independent directors.

Board
comprises 5

members
including 2
Independen
t Directors

1(2)(b)
For the purpose of this clause "independent
director" means a director-

1(2)(b)(0

who ether does not hold any share in the

company or holds less than one percent (1%)

shares of the total paid-up shares of the

1(2)(bXit)

who is not a sponsor of the company or is not
connected with the comPany's any sponsor

or director or nominated director or
shareholder of the company or any of its
associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and
parents or holding entities who holds one

percent (17o) or more shares of the total paid-
up shares of the company on the basis of
family relationship and his or her family
members also shall not hold above

1(2)(bXiii)
who has not been an executive of the
company in immediately Preceding 2 (two)
financial ears;

1(2Xb)(iv)

who does not have any other relationship,
whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the
company or its subsidiary or associated

ES;com

Md. Ras I Hossain ZiaulHaque

Chisf Flnancisl Officer

Sonrll P89or & Boatd

-L'a
Tanzim Alamoir

Managing Director g "CEO

UCB lnvestment Limiled

2{ APR I:N2 L APR ?02?

ComDanY Secretary
SonaliPaP€r & Board Mills Ltd.

2 t APR 2022
21 APR 202

ilflrt6. ,.

Sonali Paper & Board Mills Limited
Status of Compliance with the Corporate Govemance Code (CGC)

as on 30 Iune 2021

Not
Complie

d

1

company;

mentioned shares in the comPanY;
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r(2)(b)(v)
who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right
Entitlement Certificate) holder, director or
officer of any stock exchanBei

who is not a shareholder, director excePting
independent director or officer <;f any
member or TREC holder of stock exchange
or an intermediary of the capital market;

r(2)(b)(vi)

1(2)(b)(vii)

who is not a partner or an executive or was
not a partner or an executive during the
preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned
company's statutory audit firm or audit firm
engaged in internal audit services or audit
firm conducting special audit or professional
certifying compliance of this Code;

1(2)(b)(viii)
who is not independent director in more
than 5 (five) listed companies;
who has not been convicted by a court of
competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in
payment of any loan or any advance to a

bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution
(NBFI); and

1(2XbXix)

t(2)(b)(x)
who has not been convicted for a criminal
offence involving moral turpitude;

1(2Xc)

The independent director(s) shall be

appointed by the Board and approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting
(AGM);

No vacancy
Occurred1(2Xd)

The post of independent director(s) cannot
remain vacant for more than 90 (ninety)
days; and

1(2)(e)

The tenure of office of an independent
director shall be for a period of 3 (three)
years, which may be extended for 1 (one)

tenure only.
Qualif ication of lndependent Director1(3)

1(3) (a)

Independent director shall be a

knowledgeable individual with integrity
who is able to ensure compliance with
financial laws, regulatory requirements and
corporate laws and can make meaningful
contribution to the business;

1(3) (b) Independent director shall have following qualificfitions:

N/A1(3)(bXi)

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or
director of an unlisted company having
minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00

million or any listed company or a member
of any national or international chamber of
commerce or business associatiory or

1(3)(b)(ii)

)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top-level
executive not lower than Chief Executive
Officer or Managing Director or Deputy
Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer
or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company
Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance or Hgad ot&gal Service or a

Md. I Hossain
ZiaulHaque

T.
-ranzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limitod

2 ! APll 2ii2

u

Chief Flnancial Officer
goorll Prgot & Board tlills Ltd '

2 4 APR 2022

MANAGING DIRECTOR
SOI/AIIPAPER & 80/RD M/LLS tID

2 t APR 202

CompanY Secretary
sonafirlffifittstto' tc



candidate with equivalent position of an
unlisted company having minimum paid-up
capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed
company;

N/A1(3XbXiii)

Former official of govemment or statutory or
autonomous or regulatory body in the
position not below 5th Grade of the national
pay scale, who has at least educational
background of bachelor degree in economics
or commerce or business or Law;

1(3Xb)(iv)
University Teacher who has educational
background in Economics or Commerce or
Business Studies or Law;
Professional who is or was an advocate
practicint at least in the High Court Division
of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered
Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst
or Chartered Certified Accountant or
Certified Public Accountant or Chartered
Management Accountant or Chartered
Secretary or equivalent qualification;

1(3XbXv)

The independent director shall have at least

10 (ten) years of experiences in any field
mentioned in clause (b);

I 3 C( ) ( )

No such
incident

arose

In special cases, the above qualifications or
experiences may be relaxed subiect to Prior
approval of the commission.

1(4)
Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief
Executive Officer
The positions of the Chairperson of the
Board and the Managing Director (MD)
and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the
company shall be filled by different
individuals;

1(a)(a)

The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of a listed company
shall not hold the same position in another
Iisted company;

1(4Xb)

1 ,+ c( ) ( )

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected
from among the non-executive directors of
the company;
The Board shall clearly define respective
roles and responsibilities of the Chairperson
and the Managing Director and/or Chief
Executive Officer;

1(4Xd)

No such
incident

arose

ln the absence of the Chairperson of the
Board, the remaining members may elect one

of themselves from nonexecutive directors as

Chairperson for that particular Board's
meetint; the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the
minutes.

1(a)(e)

Y}l(s)

Md. ul Hossain
Company Secretary
$nali Papsr & Board Mills Ltd.

2 { APR 2022

mad Ziaul Haque

Chief Flnanclal Offic€r *^kffi',ffi
& ibtrettpriin a soAPD r'lLts tr!

2 t APR m22

91

SorlCt P80..1 Bdfll

2 t APR mzz

Millr Ltd.

1(3)(d)

The Directors' Report to Shateholders T'
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO
UCB lnvestment Limited

2! APl? ?i:2
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The Board of the company shall include the following additional statements or
disclosures in the Directors' Report prepared under section 184 of the Companies Act,
1994 (Act No. XVIII of 1994);-

1(s) (0
An industry outlook and possible future
developments in the industryi

1(5) (ii)
The segment-wise
performance;

product-wiseOI

1(5) (iii)
Risks and concerns including intemal and
external risk factors, threat to sustainability
and negative impact on environment, if any;

1(s) (iv)
A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross
Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin, where
applicable;

1(s) (v)
A discussion on continuity of any
extraordinary activities and their
implications (gain or loss);

1(s) (vi)

A detailed discussion on related party
transactions along with a statement showing
amount, nature of related party, nature of
transactions and basis of transactions of all
related party transactions;

1(s) (vii)
A statement of utilization of proceeds raised
through public issues, rights issues and/or
any other instrumentsi

N/A

1(s) (viii)

An explanation if the financial results
deteriorate after the company goes for Initial
Public Offering (lPO), Repeat Public
Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct
Listing, etc.i

N/A

1(s) (ix)

An explanation on any significant variance
that occurs between Quarterly Financial
performances and Annual Financial
Statements;

N/A

1(5) (x)
A statement of remuneration paid to the
directors including independent directors;

1(5) (xi)

The financial statements prepared by the
management of the issuer company present
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity;
Proper books of account of the issuer
company have been maintained;

1(s) (xiii)

Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the
financial statements and that the accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment;

1(s) (xiv)

lnternational Accounting Standards (IAS) or
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have
been followed in preparation of the financial
statements and any departure there from has
been adequately disclosed;

Notes to
Accounts

2.09

11(/
(5) (xv)

The system of internal control is sound in
design and has been eflectively implemented
and monitored;

Md. ul Hossain
Ziaul Haque - l-f^tanzim Alamoir

Managing Director g-CEO
UCB lnvestment Limited

2 t, gp1 ,"r*
',..1l..

Chief Financial Officor
Sonali hp6r & Board Mills Ltd

2 i APR 2022

. AIANAGING DIRECTOR
rsot#LtpepeR c ao,aRO l,i/ts tID

2 t APR2n2

comDany Secretary
sonali PaeeriRBltt;'rills Ltd

1(5) (xii)



Md. Hossain

ComPanY Secretary

Sonali PaPer & Board Mills Ltd

93

Tanzim A amgir
Managing Director & CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

2t APR 23:2
MIA/A6ING D/RECTOR

SOI./AU PAPER E BOAEO MIttS tID

means of redress;

acting
effecti

tcclve beenhaers protecsharehold()rlM n v ot f,lnteresthelnOIonsve ctaba Surof m by
thererSreho deshaolltronc rng

vehaveandindirectlvirectld v
1(s) (xvi)

company's ubility to continue as a Solng

ao.,""rn, the issuer comPany is not

.or,ria"t"a to be a going concero the fact

aiong with reasoni there of shall be

doubt uPon the issuerThere is no significant

disclosed;

1(5) (xvii)

tioNSan deviathalana tion sigrrificAn exp
theofuIES tstinSStlathe oPeramfro year'
theted andhibeshallmCO ghlighuer Pany

NL'dex abeIIhasthereoNScasor

1(5) (xviii)

Page No. 11Key oPerating
preceding 5

summarized;

(five) Years shall be
and financial data of at least

1(5) (xtx)

N/A

r;stock for the

if
pany

SSUEIthereasonstheontionlanaAn exp
OIcashd ndedlareddecnothasmco1(5) (xx)

USbonot l1.lhehe ffectt() tSS tementa
shallrobeenhasencldi idtocSOIIEhS

declared as interim dividend;
1(s) (xxi)

director;

heldmeedBoarober tingsmuntotalThe
eachndancettea byandl'acthed vulrng1(s) (xxii)

N/AParent or S

Companies and
ubsidiary or
other related Pa

Associated
rties (name-

wise details

Companies and other related parties (name-
SubsidiarY or AssociatedParent or

wise details

1(s)(xxiii)
(a)

ve Officer Compantief ExecuS ChOIDirect
odeaHOfficerFinanciaChiefSecretary

theirandlianceComndtdi (lu tlrnalnte
wisenamedrenChilrtnrnoandSESou5p

cletails

1(s)(xxiii)(b
)

Executives; and1 (c\f xxtll
ten Percent (10%) or

more voting interest in the company (name-

wise details

Shareholders holding
1(s)

(xxiii)(d)

ders:-tion

aaot director,ntintmereatn orintmea PPotheofln PPO
hoshareethtoinformafL(5) (xxiv)

brief theme ofuresa1 (xxiv a)

nature of his or
functional areasi

in specificher expertise1(s)(xxiv)(b

names of comPanres tn

holds the directorshiP

h the person also

the membershiP
whic
and

of commi ttees of the Board;
1(5)(xxiv)(c)

Page No.
"19-20

ti

Analand ysisscussl0nS( DManaEemen ileddetatiMDoro n8CE presenby
ando115 positheofanalysls

ofslonlscuclah brie
.-1 oonsti

1(5)(xxv)

? T APR 2O?2
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,r

2 ( APR 202

ZiaulHaque

SonaliPapsr

Chi6f Financial
& Boad

or

Board'
be

1(5) (xxiii)

on thedisclosure
case

director;

signed
comp:rny'

Mill8 Ltd



changes in the financial statements, among

accounting Policies and estimation
tion of financial statements;

for
1(s)(xxv)(a)

.hu.g"t in accounting Policies
estimation, iI any, clearly describing
effect on financial performance or results

and financial Position as well as cash flows
for suchin absolute

and
the

1(s)(xxv)(b)

comparative analYsis (including
inllation) of financial performance
and financial position as well as cash flows
for current financial year with immediate
preceding five years explaining reasons

effects of
or results

thereof;

1(s)(xxv)(c)

compare s

results and
uch financial Performance or
financial position as well as cash

flows with the indus scenano;
1(5)(xxv)(d)

briefly explain the financial
scenario of the cou and the Iobe;

and economic
1(s)(xxv)(e)

risks and concerns issues rela

financial statements, exPlaining such risk
mitigation plan of the

ted to the

concernsand
com ; and

1(s)(xxv)(f)

i.e., actual position shall be exP

shareholders in the next AGM;

projection
tion,

tificafinancial

fo rtforecasorlan oruturcf p
nce andIman Somc perfooperapa v'

tionth US thereof,tion,
1Posi

tolained the
1(s)(xxv)(g)

Gilaration or certilication by the

the CFO to the Board as required under

condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per

CEO and

Annexure-Ai and

1(5)(xxvi)

compliance of conditions of this Code as

required under condition No. 9 shall be

disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-

C

The report as well as certificate regarding

1(5)(xxvii)

Meetings of the Board of Directors
The company shall conduct its Board

meetings and record the minutes of the

meetings as well as keep requirecl books and

records in line with the provisions of the

relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards

(BSS) as adoPted by the Institute of

Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB)

in so far as those standards are not

inconsistent with an condition of this Code.

1(6)

Code of Conduct for the Chairpersory
Officer

bers and Chief Executiveother Board mem
1(7\

N

The Board shall lay down a code o

based on the recommendation of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
at condition No. 6, for the

th.e.-Board,

f conduct,

(NRC)
other boardof^

1(7)(a)

Md. Ras ul Hossain
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members and Chief Executive Officcr of the

company;

NRC shall be posted on the website of the

company including, among others, prudent

conduct and behavior; conJidentiality;
conllict of interest; compliance with laws,

rules and regulations; prohibition of insider

trading; relationship with environment,
employees, customers and suppliers; and

Board of the holding company shall be made

applicable to the composition of the Board of
N/A

The code of conduct as determtned by the

diary Comofrs uS bSIlrD toecenc oB darovG erna

Provisions relating to the comPosition of the

1(7Xb)

2

2(a)

N/A
At least 1 (one) independent director on

Board of the holding company shall be a

director on the Board of the subsidiary

com

the

2(b)

N/A
The minutes of the Board meeting
subsidiary company shall be placed for

review at the following Board meeting of the

hold com

of the

2(c)

N/A
The minutes of the resPective
of the holding company shall state that they

have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary
alsocom

2(d)

N/A
tt " erdit Committee of the ho

company shall also review the financial

statements, in particular the investments

lding

made anthe subsidia com

2(e)

Managing Director (MD)
(CFO), Head of Internal

or Chief Executive Offic
Audit and Compliance

er1cro1, cf,lef rinancial officer
(HIAC) and ComPanY Secretary

CS
3

Appointment3(1)

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director
(MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a

Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial

Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit
and Com liance

3(1)(a)

The positions oI the Managing Director
or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Company

Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
(HIAC) shall be filled by different

(MD)

individuals;

3(1Xb)

The MD or CEO. CS, CFO and HIAC

The Board shall clearly define respective

roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFO,

ofa

time;

the HIAC and the CS;

3(1)(c)

3(1)(d)

Md. Ra u lHossain
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Oflicor

SonaliPaper & Eoard Mills Ltd'
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olof

the subsidiary comPanY;

Board meeting

Iisted company shall not hold any executive

position in any other company at the same
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The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall
not be removed from their Position without
approval of the Board as well as immediate
dissemination to the Commission and stock

excha e S

3(1)(e)

Requirement to attend Board of Directors
Meetings
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the
company shall attend the meetings of the

Board:
Provided that the CS, CFO and/or the HIAC
shall not attend such part of a meeting of the

Board which involves consideration of an

agenda item relating to their personal

matters.

3(2)

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief

Financial Officer (CFO)3(3)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the

Board that they have reviewed financial
statements for the year and that to the best of
their knowled e and belief

3(3)(a)

these statements do not contain any
materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that

t be mislead and

3(3)(a)(i)

these statements together Present a tlue and

fair view of the company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting
standards and a licable laws;

3(3)(a)(ii)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certi$
that there are, to the best of knowledge and
belief, no transactions entered into by the

company during the Year which are

fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code

of conduct for the company's Board or its
members;
The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO

shall be disclosed in the Annual rt.3(3)(c)

1.
Board of Directors' Committee:- For ensurin8 good govemance in the comPany, the

Board shall have at least followin
Audit Committee;4(i)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee4(ii)
Audit Committee5

R nsibilitys(1)

The company shall have an Audit
Committee as a subcommittee of the Board;s(1)(a)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board

in ensuring that the financial statements

reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company and in ensuring a good

stem within the business;Smont

s(1xb)

s(1)(c)
The Audit Committee shall be responsible to
the Board; the duties oI the Audit Comrnittee
shall be clearl set forth in writin

ComDanY Secretary

*natiialer a 
foffi 

itts tto'

3(3Xb)

sub-committees:

to the Board of Directors
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etteCommiuA dittheoftitu onnstiCos(2)
The Audit Committee shall be comPosed of

at least 3 three members;s(2)(a)

The Board shall aPPoint mem

Audit Committee who
executive directors of

excepting ChairPerson of th

shall
the

e Boar

be non-
comPany
and shall

bers of the

d
d ctIC OIentind end1 neot easdu aeincl

be "financially literate" and at least 1 (one)

member shali have accounting or related

financial management background and 10

IIENCE;ears of such exten

All members of the audit committee should

s(2)(c)

When the term of service

member expires or there is any circumstance

causing anY Committee member to be

unablJto hold office before expiration of the

term of service, thus making the number of

the Committee members to be lower than the

prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the

board shall aPPoint the new Committee

member to fill up the vacancy immediately

or not later than 1 (one) month from the date

of vacancy in the Committee to ensure

continuity of the Performance of work of the

Audit Committee;

of any Committee

s(2xd)

The companY secretary s

of the Committee;secreta

hall act as the
s(2Xe)

The quorum of the Au
meeting shall not cons

dit Committee
titute without at least

dent director1 one
s(2)(0

etteommrCnChairpersos(3)
The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the

dent director;1n

5(3)(a)

N/A

the Chairperson of the

Audit Committee, the remaining members

may elect one of themselves as Chairperson

forihat particular meetinS, in lhat case there

shall be no problem of constituting a quorum

as reouired under condition No 5(4)(b) and

the reason uf absence of the regular

Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the

minutes

In the absence o[

s(3xb)

Chairperson of the Audit
remain Present in the

Committee shall
Annual General

Meeti AC
s(3)(c)

of the Audit CommitteeMees (4)

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least
ear:its fours(a)(a)

The quorum of the meeting
Committee shall be constituted in presence

of either two members or two{hird of the

of the Audit

members of the udit Committee,

s(4xb)

-)_.
Md. Ra I Hossain

m ul Haque
Chief Financial Officsr

SonEliPapor & Board Mills [td,

2 4 APR 202
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Audit Committee, who shall be an
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whichever is higher, where presence of an

dent director is a must.inde
Role of Audit Committee: The Audit
Committee shallr5(s)

s(s)(a)
monitor choice of accounting policies and

les;
5(5Xb)

monitor lnternal Audit and Compliance
process to ensure that it is adequately

resourced, including approval oI the lnternal
Audit and Compliance Plan and review of
the Internal Audit and Com liance rt;
oversee hiring and performance of external
auditors;

s(5)(d)

hold meeting with the external or statutory
auditors for revierv of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board

for a roval or ad

s(5)(e)

s(sxf)
review along with the management, the

annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for a roval;
review along with the management, the

quarterly and half yearly financial
statements before submission to the Board

for a roval;

s(s)(s)

review the adequacy of internal audit
function;

s(5)(h)

review the Management's Discussion and
Analysis before disclosing in the Annual

oru
s(5Xr)

N/Areview statement of all related Party
transactions submitted menUthe manas(sxi)

review The Management Letters or Letter of
lnternal Control weakness issued by
statutor auditors;

s(s)(k)

oversee the determination of audit fees based

on scope and magnitude, level of expertise

deployed and time required for effective
audit and evaluate the performance of
external auditors;

5(5)0)

N/A

oversee whether the proceeds raised through
Initial Public Offering (lPO) or Repeat Public
Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have

been utilized as per the PurPoses stated in
relevant offer document or prospectus

the Commission:

s(s)(m)

rting of the Audit CommitteeRs(6)

to the Board of Directorss(6Xa)

The Audit Committee shall rePort on its
activities to the Board,s(6)(a)(i)

The Audit Committee shall immediately
report to the Board on the following

if anfind
s(6)(a)(ii)

N/A
l!1oy1u;1ii11a1 report on conflictsgf interests;

Md. 't\sr* -L-f
Tanzir-n Alamoii

Managing Director &tEO
UCB lnvestmenl Limifed

I1l A?R Ii:2

ad Ziaul Haque
ChiEf Financial Officor
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Company Secretary
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2 t APR 2022

Hossain

MANAGING DIRECTOR
so,\l/t/PIPER & B0AR0 M/llS liD,.

2 t APR2022

Oversee the financial reporting process;

s(s)(c)

approved by

Reporting
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N/A
suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity
or material defect identified in the internal
audit and compliance process or in the
financial statements;

s(6)(a)(ii)@)

N/A
suspected infringement of laws, regulatory
compliances including securities related
Iaws, rules and re lations; and

s(6)(a)(iiXc)

N/A
any other matter which the Audit Committee
deems necessary shall be disclosed to the

Board immediatel
s(6)(a)(iiXd)

Reporting to the Authorities:
If the Audit Committee has reported to the

Board about anything which has material
impact on the financial condition and results
of operation and has discussed with the

Board and the management that any

rectilication is necessary and if the Audit
Committee finds that such rectification has

been unreasonably ignored, the Audit
Committee shall report such finding to the

Commission, upon rePorting of such matters

to the Board for three times or completion of
a period of 6 (six) months from the date of
first reporting to the Board, whichever is

earlier.

s(6xb)

Reporting to the Shareholders and General
Investors
Report on activities carried out by the Audit
Committee, including any rePort made to

the Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii)

above during the year, shall be signed by
the Chairperson of the Audit Committee
and disclosed in the annual rePort of the

s(7)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)6.

Responsibili6(1)

The company shall have a Nomination and

Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-

committee of the Board;
6(1)(a)

6(1Xb)

The NRC shall assist the Board in
formulation of the nomination criteria or
policy for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, experiences and

independence of directors and top-level
executive as well as a policy for formal
process of considering remuneration of
directors, to level executivei
The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC
shall be clearly set forth in writing covering
the areas stated at the condition No.6 5

6(1)(c)

Constitution of the NRC6(21

The Committee shall comprise of at least

three members including an independent
director;

6(2Xa)

Md. dul Hossain
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiof Flnancisl Officer
Sonell Papor t Eoad irlills Ltd.
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All members of the Committee shall be non-
executive directors;6(2Xb)

Members of the Committee shall be
6(2)(c)

6(2Xd)

In case of death, resignation,

disqualification, or removal of any member

of the Committee or in any other cases of
vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy
within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of

in the Committee;

6 2 e( ) ( )

The Chairperson of the Committee may
appoint or co-opt any external expert and/or
member(s) of staff to the Committee as

advisor who shall be non-voting member, if
the Chairperson feels that advice or
suggestion from such external expert and/or
member(s) of staff shall be required or
valuable for the Committee;

6(2)(f)

The company secretary shall act as the
secretary of the Committee;o(zXg)

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not
constitute without attendance of at least an
independent director;

6(2Xh)

No member of the NRC shall receive, either
directly or indirectly, any remuneration for
any advisory or consultancY role or
otherwise, other than Director's fees or
honorarium from the com an

6(2X,)

6(3) on of the NRCC

6(3)(a)

No such
incident

arose

ln the absence of the Chairperson of the

NRC, the remaining members may elect one

of themselves as Chairperson lor that
particular meeting, the reason of absence of
the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutesi

6(3Xb)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the

annual general meeting (AGM) to answer
ries of the shareholders:the

6(3)(c)

of the NRCM6(4)

in a financial ear,
6(aXa)

No such
incident

arose
6(4Xb)

The Chairperson of the NRC may convene

any emergency meeting upon request by any
member of the NRC;

6(a)(c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall

be constituted in presence of either two
members or two third of the members of the
Committee, whichever is higher, t'here
presence of an independent director is must

No. 6 2asr uired und co

Md. Rashedul Hossain
Company SecretarY
son*raXert 
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nominated and appointed by the Board;

The Board shall have authority to remove
and appoint any member of the Committee;

occurrinq such vacancy

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the

NRC to be Chairperson of the Committee,
who shall be an independent director;

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting

)x



The proceedings of each meeting of
shall duly be recorded in the min
such minutes shall be confirmed in the next

thE NRC
utes and

meetin of the NRC.

6(4)(d)

Role of the NRC6(s

NRC shall be independent and res

or accountable to the Board and to the
ponsible

shareholders;
6(s)(a)

NRC shall oversee, among others, the

following matters and make report with
recommendation to the Board:

6(sxb)

formulating the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director and recommend

a policy to the Board, relating to the

remuneration of the directors, top level

executive, the follow

6(s)(bxi)

the level and composition of remuneration is

reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate suitable directors to run the

con] an successfull

6(s)(bXiXa)

the relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and meets aPproPriate

benchmarks; and
6(s)(b)(ixb)

remuneration to directors, top level

executive involves a balance between fixed
and incentive pay reflecting short and lonS-

term performance objectives apProPriate to
the work of the corn and its

o(sXbXl)(c)

devising a policy on Board's diversity taking
into consideration age, gender, experience,

ethnicity, educational background and

nationali

6(s)(b)(ii)

identifyin8 persons who are qualified to

become directors and who may be aPPointed

in top level executive Position in accordance
with the criteria laid down, and recommend

ointment and removal to the Board;their a

6(5Xb)(ii0

formulating the criteria for evaluation
performance of indePendent directors and
the Board;

of.

6(5Xb)(iv)

identifying the company's needs for
employees at different levels and determine
their selection, hansfer or rePlacement and

motion criteria;

6(s)(bXv)

developing, recommending and reviewing
annually the company's human resources

and Iicies;
6(sXbxvi)

Witl be

disclosed6(s)(c)

The company shall disclose the nomination
and remuneration policy and the evaluation
criteria and activities of NRC during the year

ata Iance in its annual r ort
External or Statutory Auditors
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The issuer company shall not engage its
external or statutory auditors to perform the
following services of the company, namely:-

7(1)

appraisal or valuation services or fairness
oprnlons;

7(1)(,)

financial information systems design and
implementation;

7(1)(iii)
book-keeping or other services related to
the accounting records or financial
statements;
broker-dealer services;

7(1)(iv)

7(1)(v) actuarial services;

intemal audit services or
services;

special audit
7(1)(vi)

any service that the Audit Committee
determinesi

7(1)(vii)

7(1)(viii)
audit or certification services on compliance
of corporate governance as required under
condition No. 9(1);

any other service that creates conJlict of
interest

7(1)(ix)

7(2)

No partner or employees of the external
audit firms shall possess any share of the
company they audit at least during the
tenure of their audit assignment of that
company; his or her family members also
shall not hold any shares in the said
company
Representative of external or statutory
auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders' Meeting (Annual General
Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting)
to answer the queries of the shareholders.

7(3)

8 Maintaining a website by the Company

8(1)
The company shall have an official website
linked with the website of the stock
exchange.

8(2)
The company shall keep the website
[unctional from the date of listing.
The company shall make available the
detailed disclosures on its website as

required under the listing regulations of the
concemed stock exchange(s).

8(3)

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance

e(1)

The company shall obtain a certificate from a

practicing Professional Accountant or
Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and
Management Accountant or Chartered
Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or
audit firm on yearly basis regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance Code of Commission and

Md. Ras ul Hossa tn
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

chisf Financisl Otlicer

StnaliPapor & BosId Mills Ltd
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shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the

Annual Report.

e(2)

The professional who will provide the

certificate on compliance of this Corporate
Governance Code shall be appointed by the

shareholders in the annual

e(3)

The directors of the comPany shall state, in
accordance with the Annexure-C attached,

in the directors' report whether the
company has complied with these

conditions or not.



104

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF T}IE RIGHTS ISSUE

(a) Basis of the Offer
(b) Entitlement
(c) Acceptance of the Offer
(d)

(.) General

(0 Condition o( Subscription
(g) Payment of Share Price

(h) L<rk-in on Rights Share

(,)

Md.
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(a) Basis of the Offer

The Company records its share register of members on May 23' 2022 for determining the

shareholders who are eligible to receie this offer of shares on rights basis. The ordinary shares

are now being offered o,t u 'igit' 
Uu'i' to the shareholders holding shares on the record date

at Tk.10.00 each, in the ratio JfOflnl'Oz, i'e , 01 (One) right shares for every 02 (Two) existing

shares held on the record date'

(b) Entitlement

As a shareholder of the Company on the record date on May 23' 2022 the shareholders are

entitled to this Rights offer. oirly itre hotaerlsl of a minimum of two fully paid ordinary share

is entitled to receive the RiShts Offer'

(c) AccePtance of the Offer
A shareholder may accept and apply for the shares hereby offered' wholly or in part by filling

in efpti.utlon - ftr^ e una *Urnittittg the same along with the application money to the

Bankers to the Issue on or before the Clo-sing Date of subscription of June 28' 2022'

(d) Renunciation

A shareholder may renounce all or part of the shares he/ she is entitled to in favour of any

other person(s) otttu, tt art an infant or person of unsound mind' He/ she can renounce his/her

rights/entitlement of shares by signini Renunciation Form-B' Renouncee(s) shall fill in Form-

C approPriatelY.

(e) General

All applications should be made on the printed form provided by the Company in this Rights

share offer Documents only and should be completed in all respects. APPlications which are

not completed in all resPects or are made otherwise than as herein provided or are not

accompanied Uy tt" p,op"t upplication amount of-deposit are liable to be reiected and the

,ppfi."ai"" -oi"y .ec"i"ud in resPect thereof shall be refunded'

All communications in connection with the application for the Rights share should be

addressed to the Company quoting the registered folio number/BO ID number in the form'

(0 Condition of SubscriPtion

Rights Offer of 10,987,729 Ordinary Shares of ft-19!0 each at an issue price of Tk' 10'00'

totaling Tk. 709,817,290'00offered on the basis of 01 (One) [R] : 02 (Two) i'e'' 01 (One) rights

share against 02 (Two; exising shares held_by the sharehotder(s) whose name(s) appeared in

the Coripany's Share Registeiat the record date as onMay 23' 2022'

I

Md. Ra lHossain
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

-Lr
-ranzim Alamgi;

Managing Director & CEO
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(g) Payment of Share Price

Payments for the full value of Shares applied for shall be made with designated Branches of
Bankers to the Issue by Cash/Pay Order/Demand Draft payable to "Sonali Paper & Board
Mills Limited" and crossed. The Pay Order/Demand Draft for payment of share price must
be drawn on a Company in the same town to which the application form has been submitted.
It is to be noted that all transactions above Tk. 1.00 lac must be affected through Demand
Draft/ Crossed Cheque/Pay Orders.

(h) Lock-in on Rights Share

The Rights Shares of Directors and other shareholders holding 5% or more shares shall be
subiect to lock-in for a period of three years from the date of closure of the rights share
subscription. In the event of renunciation of rights shares by aforesaid persons, the renounced
shares shall also be subject to lock-in for the same period shall be operative.

(i) Others

The application not properly filled in shall be treated as cancelled and deposited money will
be refunded. For any reason, no profit/compensation will be paid on the refunded amount.

The offer will be deemed to have been declined if completed Application Form-A with
necessary payments have not been received by June 28, 2022 or by such later date as may be

notified through national dailies to that effect.

Md. ul Hossain Mohammad Ziaul Haque
Chief Financial Ot{icer

Sonali Papor & Board Millr ttd

2 /, APR 2022

,t\r6.
. MANAGING DIRECTOR

' solntr plpER g gol PD !,1!t-LS 
t-TD

2TAPRMz

-La
TanzimAlamoir

Managing Director & 
-CEO

UCB lnvestment Limited

L4 Apr", nlt

CompanY Secretary
Sonali Paeer & Board Milh [td.

2 /, APR m2
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SECTION23
Rule 3

OTHER INFORMATION REGARDING CONDMONS TO BE FULFILLED PRIOR TO
MAKING RIGHTS ISSIJE

(a) Such rights issue and price thereof have been approved by the shareholders in a general

meetint
(b) The proceed of previous public offering, or rights i.ssue, has been utilized full
(.) Arurual general meeting har been held regularly

(d) The rights issue has been fully underwritten on a firm commitmmt basis by the underwriter
(e) The financial statements of the company is prepared a6 per Intemational Accounting

Standards (IAS), as applicable in Bangladesh, and audited as per lnternational Standards of

Auditing (ISA) as applicable in Bangladesh

(0 The issuer or any ol its dir€ctors i6 not a bank-dehulter
(g)

(h) Profitability record in the immediate preceding year

\t( It(|\(()\I1\1S

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chi€f Finanoial Officer

SonaliPapor A Board Mills Lttl'

2t APR?0?7.

- MANAGING DIRECTOR0 solll,tt pApffi a aoA'RD l/rLls IID

2 t APR20n

ts-

The issuer has been credit rated by a credit rating company, if the offer is at a premium

(\e
Md. Rashodul Hossain
Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Boad Milh Ltd.

2 { APR 202

1.c
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Dilectot & CEO

UCB lnvestmenl Limitsd

1[ APR ?iln
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(a) Such rights issue and price thereof have been approved by the shareholders in a

general meeting

The Board of Directors of SPBML recommended to raise capital through issuance of rights

issue on its 69th board meeting held on 16 September 2021 and the rights issue and issue price

have been approved by the shareholders at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 11

November, 2021. The extract of the minutes of the EGM regarding the approval is presented

irt Arurexure-1.

(b) The proceed of previous public offering, or rights issue, has been utilized full

SPBML has not offered any public issue and right issues previously

(c) Annual general meeting has been held regularly

SPBML has been holding Annual General Meeting (AGM) regularly since 2006. The detail of

compliance is disclosed below.

STATEMENT OF DATE OF AGM HELD AND DIVIDEND DECLARED FOR

LAST 5 YEARS

SPBML has been holding Annual General Meeting (AGM) regularly since 2006. The detail of

compliance is disclosed below.

Year Date of AGM
Dividend Declared (%)

Cash Stock Total

2020-202-t -t1-1"1-2021 20% 20% 40%

2t1.9-2020 24-12-2020 5?. 10% 1.5%

20"t8-20-19 70% 707o

20-17-201.8 17-01.2019

20r6-2017 18-01-2018

sd/ -
Mahfuza Younus
Managing Director

Place: Dhaka
Dated: 11 November 2021

sd/-
Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chief Financial Officer

sd/-
Md. Rashedul Hossain

Company Secretary

ul Hossain

,IrmT* --1-'f
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO.

UCB lnvestment LimitedMohammad Ziaul Haque
Chief Financisl Ofiictr

Sonall Papor & Boerd Mill! tts.

2{APRMz

t'.-

Company Secretary
Sonali Paoer & Board Mills Ltd.

2'( APR 202 U. APR ?i:?

1.6-01.-2020

. MANAGING DIRECTORD solutl PNen & aaAP! t,!!-Ls LTD.

? I APR MTz

Md.
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(d) The rights issue has been fully underwritten on a firm commitment basie by the
underwriter

This rights issue has been fully underwritten on a firm cornmitment basis. Detail of the

underwriter and declaration is presented in page no. 68 & 81 of this document.

(e) The financial statements of the company is prepared as per International
Accounting Standards (IAS), as applicable in Bangladesh, and audited as per International
Standards of Auditing (ISA) as applicable in Bangladesh

The financial statements of SPBML are prepared as per International Accounting Standards

(IAS), as applicable in Bangladesh, and audited as per Intemational Standards of Auditing
(ISA) as applicable in Baagladesh. The detail of compliance is disclosed in the Independent

Auditor's report of this document.

(f) The issuer or any of its directors is not a bank-defaulter

The issuer and its directors are free from loan default as per Bangladesh Bank.

(g) The issuer has been cedit rated by a credit rating company, if the offer is at a

premium

The Issuer is offering the Rights at par. So, credit rating is not applicable in this case. However,

SPBML has valid credit rating which is summarized as follows-

(h) Profitability record in the immediate preceding year

The profitability record of SPBML for the last five years is presented below-

As per audited financial statements for the year ended 30 |une 2017 to 2021,.

Md. Ras edul Hossain
Company Secretary
Sonali Paper & Board Milh Ltd.

2 t APR 2022

Chief Flnancial Officer

Sonali PaPet & Board t'ti[t ltd

2 4 APR 2022

\

Credit Rating Status
Long Term Short Term

Entity Rating A2 (Lr) ST-3

Outlook Stable
Date of Rating 12 January 2022
Validity of Rating 31 January 2023

Rating assigned by: Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh (CRAB)

Particulars 2021 2020 2019 2018 2077

Net Profit after Tax 89,465,5L4 26,732,381 30,786,789 28,566,254

Ziaul Haque
$\t

. IIANAGING DIRECTOR
lb canrtt r oroco e peir_r^ |iil r c,Tn

2 t APR20n

-L,-
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Direclor & CEO
UCB lnvestment Limited

?.,. APf, 2il2

63,429,M7



Md. Ra ul Hossain
,t\s

2 { APR 2022

110

ae
Tanzim Alamgir

Managing Director & CEO
UCB lnvestment Limited

2t, i'Pf, ?gil.

Sonali Paper & Board }Iills Limited

I I \r'r.rrb(r:ll:l

't',1.,r-,,

rrrr{ic Dircror }t ttt !f-

ril

ladqo&n Dirrcrc 4

.r l hrtP \',n.llrlr.rIrrIrntl,!:,t.r1,..:n:h,l,,,r

'It...l\(il rJr | ,.

.l

I E[rt lh. rGtr{ *rs @ adcd rp nli r !t ol t Lr ro dE clEi,

r\lr. I rloatr)
( l.lr-.. ro . \l(dint

CompanY Secretary
somri Paelp&RBfdrf irls Ltd.

Annexure-1: Extract of EGM held on 11 November 2021

Mohammad Ziaul Haque

Chiol Financial Officsr

Sonali PaPfi & Board Mills Ltd .

2 /, APR 2022


